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DIRECTOR, GUATEMALA CITY INFO J-1C0BRA

RYEAT

REFS

PERUKES LIRING-3

A. MEXICO CITY 3 159
S* GUATEMALA CITY 9739lN0bl'

ZZfcvEBIN43465

1. LIRING-3 WRITTEN REPORT PER LIRIOG-S HEQucSI .aS

REVIEWED BY STATICS WITH ASSISTANCE LEONARD S. TCRKET. REPORT

LIMITED TO ACTUAL EXPERIENCES WHILE INCARCERATED GUATEMALA CITY

ASS INFORMATION ACTUALLY RECEIVED FROM FAR KERBERS IN SAKE JAIL.

LIRING-3 BRIEFED TG DECLARE HIMSELF READ’' HELP GUAT REBELS F -.

J IDEOLOGICAL REASONS AND AT SAME TIME IMPLY HE IS SEED MATERIAL 
i

HELP AFTER LONG IKPRISOHXEST. j

2. LIRING-3 WAS WAITING AT LIRISG GATE 1733 HOURS WHEN ;

v LIRIXG-3 ARRIVED WITH REPORT. MEETING HELD IN BACK ROOM CONSULATE ~

- AXD LIMITED TO LIRING-3 AND LIRING-9. FCLL HIGH POINTS THIS g

MEETING: i / . -f
■ ' 3

A. LIRING-9 DID KOT READ REPORT BUT HAD LIRING-3 GIVE 

HIM MAIN POINTS ORALLY. APPEARED MOST INTERESTED IN LIRING-3 \

'1 _ STATEMENTS ON HOW GUAT REBELS FEEL TOWARDS PBRUXEN. NODDED WHEN f

LIRING-3 STATED WHAT REBELS NEED IS ADE SI ATRE FUNDS NOT ADDITIONAL

X-* i. A ] | |
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PAGE 2 MEXICO CITY 8223 SECRET

MEN (MEANING ULVISORS).

B. LIRING-3 EXPLAI NED HE ANARCHIST, LEFTIST, IDELAIST

AND FELT TRUE REVOLUTION GOING CV GUATEMALA. THIS WHY HE

▼ r*“•“e*rn uti Oruc C’1
»; •

•:T t,E?ELS ‘NY W‘Y POSSIBLE. THIS SEEMED

SATISFY LIRING-9. . .

C. LIP.iNG-9 AGAIN MENTIONED TRIP. TO HIS COUNTRY FOR

LIRING-3 AND WIFE AND AGREED ARRANGE FCR PASSAGE LIRING-4 C!i '■

P2RU4EU SHIP TO CANADA SO LIRING-4 COULD SEE FATHER WHO NEW YORK 

RESIDENT AND ILL. LIRING-9 ADAMANT LIRIKG-4 SHOULD SCT SEEK VISA 

TO UNITED STATES AS THIS WOULD EXPOSE HER TO “GRILLING" BY LOCAL 

EMBASSY.

D. LIPING-9 MADE VAGUE PROMISES HELP LIRING-3 IB CURRENT 

DIFFICULT SITUATION ALTHOUGH NO FINANCIAL HELP MENTIONED.
E. LIRING-3 WAS REGUESTED TO RETURN TO LIRINg47dEC ; FECtfW/) j

FCR FUTHER TALKS. LIRIN3-9 WAS SHOWN LETTERS REVENTLY RECEIVED . ?
•* . 1

BY LIRING-3 FROM FAR CONTACTS IS GUATEMALA. LIRISG-3 DECLINEDO \

"HOWEVER TO LET HIM KEEP THEM AND LIRING-9 MADE’ KO ATTEMPT COPY "; |
THEM. . ’ ■ ~ ~ | -> - ..... ■

3. POUCHING LIRING-3 REPORT. WILL CABLE FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS. - |

APPRECIATE TORMET VISIT AND ASSISTANCE. ’ . ' ■ I u - I

4. FILE 201-798301. s
i. • ■ c 
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SECRET 232236Z .'07 62 CITE GUATEMALA CITY 9739

IMMEDIATE riEXICO CITY I«FO IMMEDIATE DIRECTOR

RYBAT PER U KE N

REFS A 23.”^ E3 L-i 4 0 6 1.2

i LEONARD S. TGRWET (IDES} GUATEMALA CITY CASE OFFICER TO TRAVEL

MEXICO CITY FOR REF DISCUSSIOKS. TCRMET ATTEflPTIKG BOOK PASSAGE

24 SO’/. WILL ADVISE FIRM ETA BY CABLE 24 KOV. REQUEST

MEET AS ACCOMODATE

2. FILE r

SECRET

SECRET



SECRET £322i5Z l<a.- €8 -SITE GUATEMALA CITY 5742

IMMEDIATE MEXICO CITY ISFO IMMEDIATE DIRECTS?

RYBAT PEAlMEJ*
REF: GUATEMALA CITY 9735 ’1C&2-. iV'Zlzi ?i - 06 | |

IPE»:| | ; 4l

i 
a £ v n c I
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SECRET 233301Z ?'C'J 63 CITE GUATEMALA CITY 5736

immediate iiexico city info d'mediate director, routine jmccbp.a !

RYBAT/PERUKEH/LIRI.NG-3

REF; MEXICO CITY S155(h/^-

1. BECAUSE LIP. ING-3 COULD NOT

7?HnuFP; ii. 4u2S I

GICALLY HAVE GAINED DETAILED.

INSIGHT INTO INSURGENCY MOVEMENT IN GUATEMALA DURING ENCARCERAIICS, 

DO NOT BELIEVE II NECESSARY FCr. GUATEMALA CITY STATION OFFICER , 

PROVIDE EXTENSIVE AND DETAILED BRIEFING FOR PREPARATION LIRINS-3

REPORT. SUGGEST FOLLOWING GENERAL GUIDELINES, SUBJECT TO HCS 

APPROVAL, WHICH OSTENSIBLY TO BE IMPRESSIONS OF LIRIHG-3 BASED i 

ON CONVERSATIONS VITH FAR LEADERS WHILE IP JAIL. !
i

A. EMPHASIZE FRAGMENTATION, DISORGANIZATION AND COMPETITION

OF INSURGENT FORCES HAVE SERIOUSLY DISRUPTED INSURGENT MOVEMENT^ 
' I

WHICH NOW STAGNANT. ; j

B. LEADERSHIP IS OBVIOUSLY IMMATURE AND INCAPABLE Or i
i

. ORGANIZING AH EFFECTIVE MOVEMENT. i

C. ACCORDING ROLANDO "CEBCLLITA" FAR FUNDS MISUSED BY

LEADERS IN "HON-REVOLUTIONARY WAYS."

i- D. RECENT FAR TERRORISM, WHICH FOR MOST PART ILL-CON/EIVED

1 AND NOT PART OF OVERALL STRATEGY, HAS WEAKENED MOVEMENT THROUGH; . 
JfXb ZEC&eb id c/s 23. tou 66 0400^.

r SECRET



14-00000

4

j!

LOSSES FROM GOG RETALIATION. GOG ABLE TAKE ADVANTAGE OF IMPULSIVE

$

ACTIONS SY FAR MEMBERS WHO FAILED KAKE ADEQUATE PREPARATIONS

BEFOREHAND.

E. ESSENTIAL THAT NEW LEADERSHIP CADRE BE FOUND TO REPLACE

PRESENT COMMAND IF REVOLUTIONARY MOVEMENT'TO SUCCEED

2. FYI: OBJECTIVE OF ABOVE IS TO PAINT AS DISMAL A PICTURE

AS POSSIBLE FOR CUBANS, AND TO SUGGEST THAT LATTER IMPOSE CONDITIONS

WHICH WILL BE UNACCEPTABLE TO PRESENT INSURGENT LEADERSHIP. FEEL 

’ THAT ANY ATTEMPT BY CUBANS TO REPLACE CURRENT LEADERSHIP WOULD .

FURTHER FRACTIONALIZE AND DEMORALIZE INSURGENTS,

KO INDEX 2C1-73S331

'SECRET

<1-

SECRET
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• IMMEDIATE GUATEMALA CITY,DIRECTOR INFO JMCOBRA

RYBAT peruken LIRING-3
REF! MEXICO CITY 7900 -3-2?] Z^felf 68 Im 4 0 2 7 3

J . • • A
1. DURING LONG DISCUSSION LIRING-9 HAD AT LIRING WITH 

• ; LIRIKG-3 ON 21 NOV LIKING-'9 ASKED LIRI.NG-3 PREPARE DETAILED 

WRITTEN REPORT DUE 1730 HOURS 25 NOV ON HIS EXPERIENCES GUATEMALA 

j'■ AND HIS CONTACTS WITH FAR PERSONALITIES WHILE INCARCERATED, 

i - WHEN L-RING-3 MENTIONED LACK ADEQUATE PBRUWEN SUPPORT LIRING-9 
I ■ 
| EXCITEDLY AGREED STATING HIS CAPITAL DID NOT UNDERSTAND FAR A!© 

i HAD DONE MANY THINGS HE ADDEp LIRING-3 SHOULD POINT OUT

t ON PAPER HOW PBR'ji'IEN HAD FAILED IS GUATEMALA AS> GIVE HIS ;
I - 
I OPINION OF WHAT NEEDED. LIRING-9 ALSO VERY INTERESTED IN WHAT

LIRING-3 KNOWS OF SQUABBLE BETWEEN GUAT LEFTISTS. AMONG MANY 

OTHER QUESTIONS LIRING-9 WANTED TO KNOW WHETHER JEANETTE FIRK HAD 

i FAR MISSION BEFORE HER £EATH. |

i *• _. . 2. LIRING-9 STATED CHIEF LIKING "DOES NOT HAVE VERY MUCH

! TO DO WITH THESE THINGS" (CLANDESTINE ACTIVITIES IN GUATEMALA) ; 

S' ' AND "HIS OPINION DOES NOT MATTER." SAID WOULD ARRANGE FOR 
! • ' . I
■ > r
! - . ’ f

! ' i
! • j ' ' ‘ '■
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PAGE 2 MEXICO CITY 8159 SECRET

MEETING AT 1730 ON 2 5 Mil WITH “SOUE MY COLLEAGUES’ SO CAN 

DISCUSS LIRINS-3 REPORT AND SUGGESTIONS AT LENGTH "IN BETTER 

PLACE FOR PRIVATE TALK." WHEN LJP.IK5“3 EXPRESSED EOPE HE MIGHT 

AIL7LIF7 '■'.13 RZFGaI !<•’ 33333* 1-i id^ucis.* CnPiiAL; LiJti#G“9 

| SUGGESTED HE MIGHT BE INVITED FOR CULTURAL EXPOSITION TO MAKE 

TRIP APPEAR INNOCUOUS AND OFFERED TO MAKE ALL NECESSARY ARRANGE- 

j KENTS, 

j 3. REQUEST GUAT CITY STATION OFFICER FAMILIAR WITH FAR/

I PG I Or PROCEED MEXICO CITi MORNING 23 NOV TO DISCUSS ABOVE. AND

j' PROVIDE GUIDANCE FOR PREPARATION LIRING-3 REPORT TO LIRING. IB

i ADDITION TO PERSONAL EXPERIENCE LIRINC-3 COULD ATTRIBUTE INFO 

| WHICH WOFIRM MIGHT WANT REACH PBRU.HENERS TO NOV DEAD JOSE IGNACIO. ' 

j ROLANDOCLOPEZ) RUIZ WITH WHOM HAD CONTACT IN JAIL. FuS ADVISE ,

| ETA BY IMMEDIATE. WILL MEET AT AIRPORT BUT IF ANYTHING GOES }

I WRONG OFFICER SHOULD PHONE IDES. !
I i
| 4. FILE 201 -79830’. •

SECRET

'? SECRET

i



IMMEDIATE GUATEMALA CITY ,DIRECTOR INFO JMCOBRA

ptrfct® 22HOV68IN40270bintui in

RYBAT PBRUMEN LIRING-3 •

REF MEXICO CITY 815 9 -

1. ILi'N IS PHONE NO. 20-76-66.

2. FILE 201* 7 98301.

SECRET

SECRET
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^MEXICO cm
info: .LA CITY

n i

RY BAT PBRUMEN LI RING

1. SUBJECT TO GUATEMALA STATION CONCURRE WE BELIEVE. LIRING/3

D EE CANDID WITH LIRING/10 AND TELL HIM WHAT AND AS .MUCH AS ME

TO KNOW. WE FEEL IF LIEING/3 ATTEMPTED WITHHOLD OR DISTORT
I DETAILS HIS IMPRISONMENT, IT CGULD BE COUNTERPRODUCTIVE TO OPERATION

LIRING/10 PROBABLY COULD CHECK GTEER SOURCES FOR ACCURACY

BELIEVE IT MORE
BECOME INVOLVED

SUGGESTS LIRING/3 GO
DO SO

IDENTIFICATION REFERENCE WAR
NAMES

AND 201-776733

END OF MESSAGE “
v1

wh/cog/ops. //

tircurr
uujum «mcu SECRET

- .1

EVER, LIRING/10 PBRUMEN, HE SHOULD NOT HESITATE

3. DEFER TO GUATEMALA CITY FOR

WILLIAM V. BROS 
C/WHD

4. FILE 50-6-141/3, 201-798301

2. THERE NO URGENCY FOR LIRING/3 MAKE TRIP TO PBRUMEN. WE

LOCAL PBRUMEN/GUATEMALA EXILE ACTIVITIES.1 IF, HOW-

WH/2/G V

ADVANTAGEOUS FOR HIM TO REMAIN MEXICO AND ATTEMPT

Aumtx: 
o/zm

KAUFMAN

sass

P/<C/WH/1

REPRODUCTION BY QThU THAN THE ISSUING OFFICE IS PROHIBITED

i

3



BAH:

WH/1 
4167/1973
6 November 68

CASK StCaCTAllAY DlSlEMfMAnOV

CO*A:

SECRET

TO

SECRET

O irmx

no corr

(oot« and tune n
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file m a

CITE DttECTOC

MEXICO CITY INFO: GUATEMALA'-CI

RYBAT PBRUMEN LI RING
REFERENCE: MEXICO CITY 7945 (IN 27oj3j’‘

1. HQS TRACES NEGATIVE RE RAFAEL ARGUETA AND ENRIQUE PUENTE.
2. FILE 201-248917, 201-798301 AND 50-9-11.

END OF MESSAGE
WH COMMENT: *LIRING/3 received brief typewritten unsigned letter 

‘ -^hich expressed happiness his release from Guatemala 
jail. Envelope was from Enrique Puente Men's Store 
in Guatemala City and writer identified self as 
Rafael Argueta. i
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AC HOPED HE VILL SCO:.' SECOVEH FROM THE "EAN ANGUSTIA’ CAUSED 

DY "NY CCj.NTRY." vriter CONCLUDED WITH APOLOGIES FOR MISTAKES

1& vaTr.Oc.'.APr.Y A\j DcEi.'.z. SE«l Li.*>***3*3 nSiULu Jt~
LSI5G-3 TO REPLY TO HIX AT FOLLOWISS ADDRESS: j2. f>V= 27, 57, l 

ZOEA 12, GUATEMALA C.A.^ RATHER THAN TC ONE APPEARING AS RETURN 

ADDRESS ON ENVELOPE. \

2. ENVELOPE IS AIRMAIL STATIONERY "LA DALIA AZUL , ENRIQUE 

R3EXTE C, ARTICULOS PARA CAEALLEP.OS, SI A VEX IDA Y 1CA CALLE, 

TEL: 44-72, GUATEMALA, C.U." VITH RETURK ADDRESS OX 3ACKRAFAEL 

ARSUETA A., 11 AV. 25 22, ZCL’A E, GUATEMALA C.A. EK’JsloPE IS 
------------------------------- - — ------------------ — j 

POSTMARKED 22 OCT OSER 1363. AND IS ADDRESSED 70 LIRIXG-S|AT CALLE 

I-fi'AE 7, CX. JUAREZ, MEXICO, D.F. (SALON DE LA PLASTICA MEXICAKA

WHICH LIE ING-3 HAD GIVEN TO JUAN AND MIGUEL LEOS BARRIOS AS BEST

o



O rP.GZ 2 XSXICC CITY 7545 S E C R E T

o
3» LL'lKG—o CwXXE'L ED r.-.G^AELY SIXPLY Cc-SIGiiED

0 CHECK K3k CCXXG CHASSEL. STATES HE HAS OEVEE HEALS OF SALE 
• • • •
' RAFAEL AaEj— 1A A AL^ ASSJXES I* AL-AS i*-. RGTiCCiAL LcTlxu% DROP*
o _. i _

> FLAKS E2n.Y I™_EL IATELY A OKS CL LEE GEK’S HiCEiFT A.'o ASKImG "AEGuiTA“

O -3. ITS SEXT LE~~EE DIE ECTLY “0 APAaTXEKI LIEISG-4 SEKTE5 SUH I KG

L LIKISG-5 A3SEK0E. LL1IKS-5 ’JILL ASK SEISES TC EXPEDITE CCJJTACT
o

; "Sixes HE PLAXSI3S 7HAVEL".

O 4. IS THESE SOXE WAY GOAT EXALA CITY STATICS CAS CHECK OS

’!*’ ^-«A 1 A33RESS VITH3UT AT LEAST FCE JCOXEST KAKISG GS SPOT CHECK
o . • ■ k

G USISS LIAISOK?
t; ' •; ..

O 5. FILE 221-24SS17, 201-798331. .■! ■
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SECRET D41649Z NOV. €8 CITE GUATEMALA CITY

MEXICO CITY IEFO DIRECTOR

RYBAT

REFS: A*. DIR-47438

B. MEXICO CITY-7923 5 / j “--- —
I. AGREE REFERENCE A. /

2. TRACES 05 PERSONS MENTIONED REF B AS FOLLOWS: .

A'. JOSE IGNACIO ROLANDO (LOPEZ) RUIZ, AKA JORGE HERNANDEZ

RIVAS, AKA “CE3CLLA” - FAR MEMBER ARRESTED 9 MARCH 1958 AND EXECUTED

LATE APRIL 1963. |
f •

3. JUA8 JOSE AND MIGUEL ANGEL DE (LEOS) BARRIOS, 30TH V1TH

VARIOUS ALIASES, EROTHERS WHO TRAVELED SOVIET UNION 1964^ MEMBERS OF

FAR, ARRESTED LATE MARCH 1968, BELIEVED SENT TO PAVCB PENAL FARM 26

APRIL 1953 AM) STILL SERVING SENTENCE

C. FRANCISCO (RAMIREZ) CORADO - PGT LEADER ARRESTED >MAY 1967

AND RELEASED LATE AUGUST 1968

D. JULIO CESAR (MACIAS) MAYOR A, AKA CESAR MONTES" - FAR

LEADER, WHOSE CURRENT LOCATION UNKNOWN j

/Eo “PAVEL" - NO TRACES

3. STATION WILL DISCUSS LIRING-3 CASE AT ANYTIME CONVENIENT!

SECRET



OTHER PARTIES.

4. DEFER FILE#

SECRET

SECRET a
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Total. Copies 
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POUTING AAWDAJ® * SCtX BT

ISSUED

cl|wm k

DIRECTOR .GUATEMALA CITY

P3RUMEN LIRING-3RYBAT

SECRET B1213ZZ NOV G^CITE MEXICO CITY 7S^

1
iNov63 '.‘- 2532 IROWTON REESTABLISHED CONTACT LIRING-3 29 OCT AND 1

DETAILED DEBRIEFING EVENING SAME DAY* R CWT ON ALLED SD. ( 
IE ARRANGED7 RELEASE THROUGH BROTHER OF BUSINESS CONTACT WHO I
BEGAN

COLCKEL GNAa LIRING-3, WHO ACCEPTED STORY WITHOUT QUESTION ,

STATED KE UNDERSTOOD ROWTON COULD NOT HAVE ARRANGED EARLY

RELEASE FOR OBVIOUS SECURITY REASONS AND FELT ALMOST

INTOLERABLE SUFFERING WORTH PAIN SINCE HAS COME OUT IN BEST

L

•4 -•

POSSIBLE POSITION VISA-A-VIS FAR AS WELL AS PBRUMEN

2. LIRING-3 HAS BEGUN GIVE COMPLETE DETAILS ARREST

ASKED ROWTON KEEP SENSITIVE POINTS IN STRICTEST CONFIDENCE

PARTICULARLY FROM LIRING-4. WHOM FEElS WOULD NOT APPROVE HI

CONTINUED POLITICAL ACTIVITY EVEN CN BEHALF ROWTON <> HIGrC-IGHT S

DEBRIEFING FOLLOW

A. ROLANDO "CEBOLLITA". FAR OFFICIAL

BLOCK 400 WITH LIRING-3 TOLD LATTER THAT HE

WHO SHARED CELL

HAD SENT REPORT |

nr
w

.mOF ARREST-FAVORABLE TO LIRING A TOLD LATTER-THAT HE HAD-DBEHJ ■T-ErS^

OF ARREST FAVORABLE TO LIRIN-3 AND PLACING BLAfE ON FRANCISCO

SECRET
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PAGE 2 MEXICO CITY 7922 SECRET ;

LARA AND CARLOS PERSASAL TO FAR >©QS THROUGH HIS KOTHER WHO 

ALLOWED TO VISIT HIM PRIOR TO HIS EXECUTION.

3. BROTHERS JUAN AND MIGUEL (LEON) BARRIOS, WHO .
> ' I

j CLAIMED TO EE G-2 FAR, WHO ALSO SHARED CELLBLOCK AND REMAINED

i It.’ CLOSE CONTACT LIRING-3 THROUGHOUT HIS DETENTION , SHOVED j

; L1RIKG-3 REPORT THEY HAD RECEIVED JULY FROM “RELIABLE FAR SOURCES'

> vEXICC" DESCRIBING LIRING-3 AS “ANARQUICO, SIN PARTIDO,

I' COKDUCTA BUENA, CONF IABLE , RESPONSABLE PERO DIFICI). COsTP.OLAR

j FOLLOWING THIS GENERALLY FAVORABLE REPORT JUAN AND MIGUEL

(LEON) BARRIOS DISCUSSED FAR SITUATION FREELY WITH LIRING-3 • t
AND ARRANGED FOR SECRET CONTACT WITH FAR REPRESENTATIVE ? . i

i tcvt r*n «e>* irtri » u <*a tri n i tn tup 7 mam —rm v n“n t rsrr-r» , . .
j IL.AXUU rr. VLL o MLJU lULU UXAXIIU U IIU.ULJ wVIJfL.CILLl *

I OF POWER SINCE HAD IN FACT DESERTED REVOLUTION BY REMAINING
«

| CUT SIDE COUNTRY FOR EXTENDED PERIOD. MONTES CURRENTLY ?EXICO;
t ■
I WHERE EXPECTED REMAIN. FAR HAS COMPLETELY BROKEN WITH ! 

i
. GUAT CP. THIS ACCORDING LIRING-3 REFLECTED IN COOLNESS EVIDENTI ■ ■ I

I BETWEEN LEON BROTHERS AND FRANCISCO CORADO, CP RESPONSIBLE IN
I i ...

. RAVON PRISON. FAR HAS NOT BEEN RECEIVING FINAPCIAL CR MATERIAL... . ... .......... . .... ... । t
SUPPORT FROM PBRUMEN FOR PAST SIX MONTHS SINCE REFUSAL F^R ACCEPT 

/ ' -j-
FBRUMEN TERMS (SUPERVISION PBRUMEN EXPERTS , FAVORED POSITION J

.................. : .i '"■■■■■

,•?. Q SECRET J |



PAGE 3 MEXICO CITY 7322 SECRET

FAR MEMBERS TRAINED IN PBRUMEN) ALL FUNDS^K PAST CHANNELED 

THROUGH GUAT CP- ETC) .

3. LIRING -3 TOLD ROWTON HE INSTRUCTED LEON BROTHERS HAVE 

“PV-TL” ?.ZT IL' TILS:: ’.IT?. nii-i u/iicrtnlNE HIS ADDRESS) THROUGH 

SALON DE LA PLASTICA MEXICAN BY POSING AS PERSON REPRESENTING 

"VILETA"WHO INTERESTED IN BUYING LIRING-3 WATERCOLORS GONE l!i 

PRISON). LInIL’G-3 PLANS FOR COVER PURPOSES t’CRK IN SIQUEIROS 

STUDIO CUERNAVACA AND ARRANGE SOONEST BELLAS AP.TES SPONSORED 

EXPOSTION HIS LATEST PA IHTINGS.

4. WILL POUCH COMPLETE LIRING-3 DEBRIEFING AS SOON 

IN COMPLETED. STATION HOPES LIRING AND PARTICULARLY LIRIKG-12 

WILL TRY ESTABLISH CONTACT WITH LIRING-3 AS HE CAN BE EXPECTED 
Save info of value to pbrumen regime, station intends have 

LIRIKG -3 TELL LIRING-13 ENOUGH TO WET HIS APPETITE AND CONVINCE HIM 

LIRIKG-3 SHOULD BE DEBRIEFED AT SOME LENGTH. LIRING-3 WOULD 
TELl(lIRING JsJhE WILLING OUTLINE DETAILS HIS ORDEAL INCLUDING 

INFQ-PSP.UMENS SHOULD KNOW BUT ONLY TO HIGH PBRUMEK j
FUNCTIONARY^ND IN PBRUMEN?) PRIOR TO POSSIBLE LIRING-3 TRIP ' ; 

PBRUMEN, SUGGEST HQS , GUATEMALA CITY AND MEXICO CITY STATIONS 

DETERMINE WHAT CAN BE PASSED PBRUMENS. CONFERENCE IN GUATEMALA
• 1 1 I I ,a

■ ■•••-.. ■' ’ ’ . ........J.
■ ; - -SECRET ' t

u IFU
U

U



PAGE 4 MEXICO CITY 7923 SECRET

CITY BETWEEN ROWTON, FEADYER AND GUAT CITY STATION REPS MIGHT

BE USEFUL IK THIS CONNECTION

5. ASSUME GUAT KAMES MENTIONED ABOVE ARE WAR NAMES

CAN GUATEMALA CITY SHED SOME LIGHT THEIR IDENTITIES

SECRET

cttu cueckAS

SECRET
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SECRET 24 1826Z OCT 58 CITE GUATEMALA CITY\96I4

1EXIC0 CITY INFO DIRECTOR

t

FBRUMEN LIRING/3

REF: MEXICO CITY 7775 79623)

Z40ctG8 IN20246^

1. ESMICA/13 REPORTED LIRING/3 AND COMPANION DEPARTED GUATEMALA

B OCTOBER 1968 VIA TACA FLIGHT 210 FOR MEXICO CITY. THEY ASKED FOR

ASD RECEIVED ESCORT DIRECTLY FROM PRISON FARM TO AIRPORT

2. FILE: 201-248917

SECRET
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SECRET 0423B7Z OCT 68 CITE MEXICO CITY 7486

DIRECTOR, 

REFS: A. 

Ba 

C.

GUATEMALA CITY

DIRECT OR 3 65 84

GUATEMALA CITY 9517

HMMA 35.32 PARA 5

5CstE3 h\0650 I

1. STATION WISHES TO REITERATE ONCE MORE ITS RELUCTANCE TO 

SOMEHOW TRY TO FREE LIRIBG-3 FROM JAIL IN GUATEMALA CITY BY | ]-

EXPOSING HIS VOFIRM CONNECTION. MEXICO CITY STATION 

IN AGREEMENT WITH REF B STATEMENT THAT MORE TIME SHOULD BE ALLOWED 

TO SEE IF LIRING-3 WILL NOT BE RELEASED IN NOT TOO DISTANT FUTURE 

WITHOUT INDICATING VOFIRM INTEREST. AS STATED IN REF C SUCH INDICA­

TION IF IT LEAKED CARD STATION ASSUMES THIS POSSIBLE IN GUATEMALA; 0? 

IF IT ATTRACTED SUSPICION GUAT REBELS, MEXICAN LEFTISTS OR 
, LO

FBRUMENERS WOULD RENDER FURTHER OPERATIONAL EXP&ITAT10N LIRING-3 
I 

AND LIRING-4 PROBLEMATIC. IT NIGHT EVEN PROMPT GUAT REBELS TO 
i 

TAKE REPRISALS AGAINST LIRING-3 AND LIRING-4. FURTHERMORE; STATION 

NOT AT ALL SURE THAT FREEING LIRING-3 THROUGH INTERVENTION' 

LIAISON MIGHT NOT JEOPARDIZE ROVTON SECURITY.

2. IF LIRING-3 RELEASED AFTER NORMAL TRIAL WITHOUT ANY 

INDICATION OF OUTSIDE INFLUENCE STATION ASSUMES BOTH HE AND LIRING-4

SECRET



VPAGE 2 MEXICO CITY 74 85 SECRET

WILL HAVE IKCREASED 0PEP.ATI08AL POTENTIAL. IF LIRING-3 NOT

R CURRENTRELEASED IE EEAR FUTURE LIRING-4 MAY FIND ONLY WAY OUT

PREDICAMENT IS AT LEAST TEMPORARY RETURN TO FERUriii SHE MIGHT

AT THAT POINT BE AMEKABLE UNDERTAKE MISSION SIMILAR TO THAT SHE

PREVIOUSLY A GHEE ABLE ATTEMPT FOR WOFIRM

3. STATION WOULD NATURALLY BE WILLING RE-EXAMINE ITS ..

I POSITION RE LIRIWG-3 IF GUATEMALA CHY STATION COULD DETERMINE

BEYOND ANY REASONABLE DOUBT THAT APPROACH OF JUDGE THROUGH

KOT LEAK. CAB GUATEMALA CITY STATION GIVE SUCH

ASSURANCE? -

SECRET
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SECRET GTE Dtt£CTO«
37z SE?e3i 3G58’y

IT?, *w*’VWMALA CITY

RYBAT TYPIC LIRING . .

MEXICO CITY 7335 (IN 99476)*

;—BOWTQN-RETURN—STILL UNCERTAIN PENDING RESOLUTION DEVELOPMENT

ACCESS TO AMCAGE/1.

2. RE LIRING/4, ROWTON COULD SEND MONEY OSTENSIBLY FROM L/4’S 

FATHER IN NEW YORK TO BAIL HER OUT OF PRESENT DESPERATE SITUATION,

BUT THIS WOULD BE ONLY TEMPORARY SOLUTION IN ADDITION INHERENT 

i SECURITY RISKS (FATHER IS REPORTEDLY HOSPITALIZED AND NOT JN

POSITION PROVIDE FINANCIAL HELP AT THIS TIME). L/4'S REFUGE IN 
1 
f LIRING ESTABLISHMENT, ON OTHER HAND, WHICH ROWTON COULD NOT CONVINCE
I

HER TO TAKE AS LONG AS HE WAS GIVING HER MONEY, WILL SERVE TO IMPROVE

1 HER ACCESS AND MAY LEAD TO REPATRIATION. ROWTON FEELS LATTER
» । -

EVENTUALITY LIKELY ONLY IN EVENT HIS CONTINUED FAILURE RECONTACT

’ HER SINCE L/4 WOULD POSSIBLY HAVE NO OTHER ALTERNATIVE. IN THAT 
fe-r’ -__ t
r ;• CASE, REBRIEFING AND RESUPPLY S/W PRECLUDED PRIOR DEPARTURE. ROWTON "

. • t* ■?,

t . COULD DEBRIEF L/4 UPON HER RETURN MEXICO IF AND WHEN LIRING/3
i • ♦•'J

k a RELEASED FROM PRISON AND CONTACT REESTABLISHED.
1 I 1;

L • 
i, _______ roerouwa O»<ttl_______ __ _ .1 - ' ’
I . UUAUMO OW»Ct« 1 «- r- r~ n ~ ! ftal-iS | i , Mwmonw
E • • ( SECRET II •—»—.«* ‘ o»km
L. i__________ • I - —i
*■ MPRODUCT1ON BY OTHER THAN THE IMUING OFFICE i$ PROHIBITED. «•*»»«>.

1 ■ •’ ■ -- - -s •
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PAGE TWO

S. FOR GUATEMALA: WOULD APPRECIATE RECOJQ1ENDATIOXS RE

cm BSSCTOft

onaoTDTi rsw vjotv o'.tvicv rw TTorvr./q »KT» iccrv'Tj’TO vww T1TT

AWARE WOFIBM INTEREST MUST BE SHOWN AT HIGH LEVEL BUT FEEL GCAT 

OFFICIALS COULD ALLEGE MEXICAN GOVT INTEREST TO THEIR SUBORDINATES

AS BASIS OF RELEASE.

4. FILE 201-798301.



RYBAT TYPIC 25Sa*ce :'.9S47S
1. LIOBION MONITORING LI SA SPAN REPORTED LIRIKG-4 ENTERED '■

LusinG WunSiBu Z2 »tritftc-K

STAY BECAUSE SHE UJiABtE FIND

KE-yutSlty Lir>iMG runblSH PLACE TO

WORK THIS NGT ABLE PAY FOR LODGING. '

SAI? WOULD STAY LIRINS UNTIL PROBLEM SOLVED

2. WISH BRING ABOVE ATTEST IOS RONTON

INFO ROWTOS TRAVEL PLANS AIS ETA STATICS

FILE 201-793581

SECRET

i
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SECRET 3013423 SEP €3 CITE GUATEMALA cn£ p: f. £ r, g •

DIRECTOR INFO MEXICO CITY Ay

RY3AT TYPIC LIRINS

U GUATEMALA CITY STATIC4 IS SM H? TO yrc

RELATIONSHIP IS ANY WAY NECESSARY 7C SUPPORT UNILATERAL WOFIRM

OPERATIONS, NEVERTHELESS IT MUST 3E REALIZED THAT AFTER 6 MONTHS,

REVEALING bOFIRK INTEREST IS LL3ISS-3 IS SOMEWHAT AWKWARD. WHILE

GUATEMALAN CITY STATION IS KOT FULLY CCGNIZAST OF ALL OPERATIONAL IMPLI­

CATIONS LIRING-4 OPERATION AND ITS VALUE TO VOFIRM, WE CONTINUE TG RE­

LIEVE THAT BY ALLOWING MORE "lf$ LIRINS-3 AND COMPAKIOS WILL BE RE­

LEASED WITHOUT NEED INDICATE WOFIRM INTEREST. THIS APPEARS MORE IS LISE 

WITH MEXICO CITY STATION POSIT ICS THEY DEFINITELY HOT IK FAVOR

INTERVENTION WITH GOAT AUTHORITIES WHICH WOULD FINGER LIRIiiG-3

AS SOME TYPE WOFIRM ASSET (fEXICO CITY 5 9 84) . |

2. ' IF MEXICO CITY HAS CHANGED ABOVE POSITION AND SOW AGREES 
i

WOFIRM INTEREST CAN BE INDICATED t SUGGEST FOLLOWING APPROACH:

STATION WILL ADVISE ESMAJOR-20 THAT MEXICO CITY HAS DEVELOPED 
AN OPERATIONAL INTEREST I*i LIR1SG-3*S WIFE BUYABLE PROCEED i 

WITH OPERATION BECAUSE OF HER C0KCE38 OVER FATE OF KER HUS SAND J

VE CAN T>£N ASK ESMAJOR-20 ATTEMPT ASCERTAIN WHEN TRIAL* ‘

SECRET
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SCHEDULED ASD IKDICATI.OK WHAT SENTENCE KAY EE. BELIEVE ARY

& ESMAJOR-20 KAY REVEAL TO THE COURTS WILL DEVELOP

RESPONSE. OS THE OTHER “56D . rr tut or

REVEALING WC7LRM INTEREST DIRECTLY IS LIRING-3, THE STATIOS

CAS SO ADVISE ES*!AJOR‘20 A SO RE SLIEST HIS HELP

3. FILE: 201-248917
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RE?; HMMA 346S2, 17 May 1958

'' DISPATCH SECRET I X | !
xi !ttJOXE3fC2 BSCKHG

:i / i * 1Chief, ^esterr- Hemisphere Division ( yr | coaoc
r,J3. s' ।

y / j ICKtr CWJffID DiV
AOCt BCeUfeS

r-iitt < - j 1 ;
Chief of Station, Mexico City^ /« | Jsxraiia

kun x
0 Activities of

\J v

1IRIXG-3, LIRING-4 May through Mid-September 1958

Action Required: For your Information.

MlCROrlLMEO

1. Forwarded under separate cover are twelve reports prepared by

the latter

2. The main topic covered in ROZTON’s reports is LIRI}5G”4*s efforts to 
obtain help in getting LIliIXG-3 out of Jail in Guatemala as soon as possible. 
1IRITG-4 is almost penniless (RCT^rci; has made only token payments to he’r 
after 15 June) and has beer, moving from one apartment to a cheaper or.e living 
on the sale of paintings left by LIRli'G-3 and small loans freer leftist contacts 
In the hope that she may be able to do something for 1I2UXJ-3, LIRING-4 has 
resisted all of RCUTCH's efforts to get her to undertake a clandestine mission 
to FEr.urEN, a mission, as Headquarters knows, was planned long ago. .is a 
foreigner, LIRIKG-4 cannot work in Mexico without taking the chance of being 
deported, if caught. Although she has not tried it, she would probably be 
refused a visa to go to Guatemala to visit LIRIKG-3. She might also face 
difficulties in Guatemala including possible detention and interrogation if 
she succeeded la obtaining an entry permit to that country

3. By aid-Septesber 1963 LIRING-4 had received very little help from 
Mexican leftist or outright Communist friends. In spite of promises to 
to bribe the Guatemalan judge scheduled to try LInI2?G-2 all HRIMG-A’s

her 
try 

friends" succeeded in doing vas to print several articles in the local press 
(some of then with LJRING-3's photo) claiming that IIRIMG-3 vas unjustly 
iisprisoned, that he vas about to be executed, etc. If anything, these

Attachments reports u/a/c #1 
'Idea rpts u/i/c #2

Distribution: 
drig C/WHD v/atta 

tefl piI" a ol - 793 2>O I

# • ; • ’’ CS COFf

continued
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HMMA - 35502 26 September 1968
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articles did little to prejudice the Cuateralans ia favor o 
As a tostter of fact, the latter who succeeded in sending LX.

h:g-3.
... „ _____  .. _ __ ______  __  _____ ._ ______ _______ 4 a ; feu
letters via the Mexican Consul in Guatemala City who comes to visit[him in 
jail, recently claimed that ha was saved frets a prison "transfer" by the 
Ctiarensl’n •r'g’ hy th» <'rri”al of the Mezican Consul. LIRING-3 viewed this
"transfer” puiuly and sisyly as an e?:e

4. LIRi:;C’4 received even less help from LIRI3G who told her that 
there was nothing it could co to help Llr.ING-3. LIEI2EJ-4, on the advice 
contained in one of the cotes sent from prison by LXRINC-3, kept away from 
LIRIEG and its employees until she cat URIilG-lO by accident at the I office 
of one of the leftist papers on 27 July. LIRIKG-10 convinced her to resume 
her visits to LIKING. That the local PE LUMEN s still have doubts about 
LIRING-3 despite his i-tprisoruuent in Cuateuaia is indicated by the statements 
code by Rodolfo REYES (see RCWTCN’s 17 July report) to the effect that the 
latter would not be willing to help LIRING-3 until he found cut on what 
side of "el griego" (RGWTCN under false identity) he was. REYES added that 
1IRING suspects the "griego" of KORIRM connections, although it has no 
definite proof of this.

I as cnose maue by aiinS confirm the Scacioa’s belief 
i from hotr.e, is still attempting to investigate 
t also re-enforce the decision of the Station not to 
i, to obtain the release of LIRIEG-3. Such an 
;culc not only expose LIRILG-3 to PSRUMEh’ and

it would probably also have adverse repercussions 
LIRUEJ-11 whom ECmIGS met briefly on 5 July (see

s report dated 9 July) said nothing about LIRU;G-3’s arrest when
•3 remained 

who of course knows that 
probably in 73RUHEK. This

5. Statements sucn 
that LIKING, upon orders 
RGUTON. Such statements 
attempt, through liaison 
attempt, if it leaked, w< 
Guatemalan FAR reprisals 
on RO’.-rTON's security 
RCj-^O: * 
ROwTON cortplained that mail which he said be sent to LIRIL 
unanswered. It is also to be noted that REYES, 
LIRING-4 is in Mexico, told RCJ.TCN that she was 
shows clearly the distrust with which 11" TNG vie.Js RCt.TON

4. LIRING-4 developed close relationship with Orlando
unist

iv tiid-Sepcexber, ia fact, SUAREZ 
s apartment although LIRING-4 claimed to ROWTON chat 

;e? her apartment 
of LIRING-4's 
effort was made to

tiroscural pointer 3.-.vxd Ah?.*. 
was staying at LIRIKG-4’ 
there was no romancing between the two and that SUAREZ u. 
because he was too broke to get one of his own. In view 
assessment of SUAREZ as very leftist and pro-AMTnJG-l no 
approach him.

7. Contacts between RCVTON and LTRING~4 have taken

core and rare convinced that RCUTOX cannot or will 
release of LIRDJG-3. In her frantic efforts to do 
LIRHC“4 has in fact not bad any contact with RCKTCH 
Unless LIRING’3 is released by the Guatemalan 
only a light sentence keeping him in Jail only a short 

it is doubtful teat LIRIKG-4 will be of much use Xo ROWTON and

place with decreasing 
freguenty because the usefulness of LIRING-4 to WOFIRM has sharply decreased 
and because LTRING-4 is 
not help her obtain the 
something for LIRING-3, 
since early September, 
authorities or receives 
time longer 
the Station,

for Villard C. CURTIS

■S E C R of 2
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DIRECTOR INFO MEXICO CITY

TYPIC L1RISG

REFERENCE : DIRECTOR 36584

1. MEXICO CITY 7335 NOT

CITE GUATEMALA CITY 9511

Z/SepE8 IJmO I 147

RECEIVED BY GUATEMALA CITY

2. FILE 201-79 8301

I
SECRET

SECRET



i

ETs ikeraanb s /j nw 
DC/WH/1 
7375
26 Sept 68

S E C R» E

tUUfC’Ar UttOkMAJiOtt

C£M>

c

SECRET

V

ie

I

(IN 99476)*

MllMCt FO 
TOTAt <0*1

•5 'll 37zSs?63

STILL UNCERTAIN PENDING RESOLUTION DEVHO
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(com ess am« hied)

. MEXICO CITY, GUATEMALA

RYBAT TYPIC LIRING

' REF: MEXICO CITY 7335
. i

1. ROWTON RETURN

ACCESS TO AMCAGE/1

CITY

>"• . ’ 2. RE LIRING/4, ROWTON COULD SEND MONEY OSTENSIBLY FROM L/4’S 

FATHER IN NEW YORK TO BAIL HER OUT OF PRESENT DESPERATE SITUATION, f

.-- BUT THIS WOULD BE ONLY TEMPORARY SOLUTION IN ADDITION INHERENT

■ >. ■ t x RIftAO . i n rxv£fx"vaTHDLY xxOcPITALIZED AND NOT IN
?' 1.'. ..
’^POSITION PROVIDE FINANCIAL HELP AT THIS TIME). L/4'S REFUG3 IN

4'

%
LIP.ING ESTABLISHMENT, ON OTHER HAND, WHICH ROWTON COULD NOT CONVINCE -

HER TO TAKE AS LONG AS HE WAS GIVING HER MONEY, WILL SERVE TO IMPROVE'.

HER ACCESS AND MAY LEAD TO REPATRIATION. ROWTON FEELS LATTER .

‘EVENTUALITY LIKELY ONLY IN EVENT HIS CONTINUED FAILURE RECONTACT

HER’SINCE L/4 WOULD POSSIBLY HAVE NO OTHER ALTERNATIVE.

.-CASE,’ REBRIEFING AND RESUPPLY S/W PRECLUDED PRIOR DEPARTURE. BOWTON i
- \

■ COULD DEBRIEF L/4 UPON HER RETURN MEXICO IF AND WHEN LIRING/3 ♦

RELEASED FROM PRISON AND CONTACT REESTABLISHED

ce<3»ttw*TiHa ometn

UHU'»c ornc»

•4

»- < wim> •

REPFODUCTION 87 OTHER THAN THS ISSUING OFFICE IS FSOHiailEO.
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PAGE TWO
CITE CI21CTO1

; S. FOR GUATEMALA: WOULD APPRECIATE REC0J2IENDATICNS RE

POSSIBILITY EARLY RELEASE OF LIRIXG/3 AND ASSOCIATE FECM JAIL. -j < 

AWARE HOFIRL' INTEREST MUST BE SHOWN AT HIGH LEVEL BUT FEEL GUAT .

OFFICIALS COULD ALLEGE MEXICAN GOVT INTEREST TO THEIR SUBORDINATES



DIRECTOR . .#

bybat typic 25Ss’E& L\99478 '-*4
1. LIOMIOtJ KGS II OR IMS LISAHPAS REPORTED L1RIKG-4 ENTERED i

LIRIBG HOBBIES 25 SEPTEMBER. REQUESTED LIRISG FURBISH PLACE TO ' ;

STAY BECAUSE SHE USABLE FIKD WORK THIS KOT ABLE FAY FOR LODGING’. ‘ 
i . M

SAID WOULD STAY LIRIKG UKTIL FROBLEH SOLVED . I

2. WISH BRIBG ABOVE ATTENTION ROWTOS. ALSO WOULD APPRECIATE "
.-.r ~t
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SECRET 281854Z AUG 68 CITE 'GUATEMALA CITY 9326

MEXICO CITY INFO DIRECTOR .

REF A. MEXICO CITY 6658

B. GUATEMALA CITY 9242

C. GUATEMALA CITY 9138 
ff-riou Off tj RiHCr

1. ST-A^yfiiag'SO; 0, UMJBfjfrS CASE CONTINUES

IftnsEB IN6701 I

BE SAME.AS

THAT REPORTED REF B.

2. DURING LAST QUERY OF RE STATUS OF

REF C), SAID SINCE CASE IB HANDS

CASE (REPORTED

OF COURT THEY

USABLE PROBE FURTHER RE OUTCOME. BELIEVE ANY ADDITIONAL QUERY OF 

WOULD BE CLEAR INDICATION OF SPECIFIC STATION INTEREST

IN LIRING/3

3. DIRECTOR 16024 (REF B OF MEXICO CITY 6658) NOT RECEIVED

BY GUATEMALA CITY*

■--SECRET

. BT

SECRET



JUDGE SCHEDULED TRY CARLOS (JURADO) DELMAR COULD 3E BRIBED OTHER

THAN STATEMENT BY ARTURO CSERRaKO) BEREA TO EFFECT THIS TO BE 

ARRANGED BY GUAT COMMUNIST PARTY AT REQUEST MEI.1 CAS CO®I'JSIST '

PARTY. PERSON TO SAKE ACTUAL BRIBE, HOWEVER, WOULD HOT BE KNOWN

AS LEFTIST.

2. MEXICO CITY ENGLISH LANGUAGE DAILY THE NEWS" 5 A'JG CARRIED 5 

;1 ARTICLE TITLED "MEXICAN ARTIST TO BE EXECUTED". ARTICLE QUOTED

6R0&P OF INTELLECTUALS INCLUDING PAINTERS, WRITERS, POETS ASD 
6vT ft.

_ SCULPTORS TO SAY GUAT >5^ 0)-rt-e t4 -oZE CUTE JURADO BECAUSE HE

ENTERED GUATEMALA IN HIS CAR FOUR MONTHS AGO ASD PICKED UP SOKE :

HITCHHIKING YOUTHS WHO LATER TURNED OUT BE CONNECTED WITH GUAT 

COMMUNIST GUERRILLAS. ARTICLE OBVIOUSLY PLANTED BY LOCAL LEFTISTS 

” IN EFFORT SPREAD NEWS JURADO ARREST AND DETENTION TO FORCE OFFICIAL

GVT INTERVENTION. ROWTON TRYING ESTABLISH FROM L1RIRG-4 WHO

PLANTED ARTICLE

SECRET
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PAGE 2 KEXICO CITY 6658 SECRET

3. BELIEVE KEWS ARTICLE COULD BE USED TO APPROACH LIAISON !

• ARD ASK FOR DETAILS OB JURADO CASE WITHOUT INDICATING ANY SPECIAL

CORRECTION TO JURADO. SPECIFICALLY, WHAT SENTENCE CAN BE EXPECTED

POUTlMi ANQ/QR tMTULS ■ SEB-ey

>1 6 |

2 I 2 I
3 1 •i
<!
si ,o|

SRAnCMDtEMM W DESTROY C **G

IS JURADO CASE ABD WHEN?

4. FOR DIRECTOR: DESPITE SOXEWHAT COOLER RELATIONSHIPWITH ,

RCWTO5 AT THIS HOIST BECAUSE JURADO SITUATION, LIR1KG-4 STILL :

WILLING GO PBRUHEN AS SOON AS JURADO FUTURE SETTLED , PARTICULARLY

IF HE DEPORTED OR SENTENCED RELATIVELY SHORT JAIL SENTENCE
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JEXICO CITY INFO DIRECTOR

REF A SCVASHINGTCW 94613

DIRECTOR 15576B

STATION APPRECIATES MEXICO CITY STATION OPERATIONAL PROBLEM
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' WITH LIRING/4, HOWEVER, SICE ACTION SUGGESTED REF A MIGHT
I

RESULT IN LIRING/3 CASE BEING WORKED OUT WITHOUT ANY ADDITIONAL

INTERVENTION, BELIEVE REASONABLE THIME SHOULD BE ALLOWED TO PASS

PRIOR LIRING/4 TAXING ANY ACTION
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MEXICO CITY INFO GUATDUIA CHY

MEXICO CITY 6223 (IN 47056)*REFS: A

GUATEMALA CITY 9236 (IN 47690)**

HQS FILES INDICATE ARTURO SERRANO IN 1966 WAS DIRECTOR

PCM PUBLISHING HOUSE FONDO DE CULTURA IN MEXICO CITY, BUT THERE NO

DETAILS RE HIS CONTACTS WITH THIRD COUNTRY EXILES OR OFFICIALS. WE

THEREFORE UNABLE COMMENT ON VALIDITY HIS CLAIM TO ASSIST LIRING/3

2. CONCUR GUATEMALA CITY COMMENT REF B. FEEL LIRING/4 SHOULD

CONTINUE PRESS SERRANO FOR MORE DETAILS HIS CHANNEL TO AND IDENTITY OF

GUATEMALAN OFFICIALS INVOLVED BELIEVE LIRING/4 AND STATION WILL THEN

BE IN BETTER POSITION TO ASSESS VALIDITY SERRANO CLAIM. SUGGEST LIRING/4

ALSO CHECK SERRANO STORY WITH LEFTIST CIRCLE OF FRIENDS TO ATTEMPT

VERIFY C9 AND EXPLORE POSSIBLE SOURCES OF FUNDS IF FEASIBLE. STATION

Cooiwmiwo cmcm
T15VFT

MUAimo eracn SECRET
MnMKncankc 

CM»UI

B

1

REPRODUCTION BY OTHER THAN THE ISSUING OFFICE IS.PROHIBHED. Corr iro.
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TO rUVXTCO CITY

SHOULD NOT ADVANCE LIRING/4 ANY FUNDS UNLESS LIRING/4 ABLE SECURELY 

EXPLAIN THEIR SOURCE.

END OF MESSAGE

INDEX - SERRANO . '

WH COMMENTS: *LIRING/4 approached by PCM member Arturo SERRANO who 
claimed he has contact with Guatemalan exile who could' 
arrange bribe through relatives in Guatemala to assist 
LIRING/3 who imprisoned that country.

**Guatemala City requested more information prior to 
commenting on feasibility of bribe offer by SERRANO.



SECRET 202236Z JUNE 63 CITE MEXICO CITY 5934 20 JaiSStt«3521
GUATEMALA CITY , DIRECTOR

KAPOK

I. LIRING-4, WHO POSTPONED DEPARTURE TO CUBA IS HOPE HELPING / 

LIRING-3, HAS RECEIVED SEVERAL DISTRESSING NOTES FROM LATTER WHO, 

CONTRARY TO PREVIOUS INFO, STILL AWAITING SENTENCE IN JAIL. / \ 

LIRING-3 COMPLAINS ABOUT VERY MEAGER FOOD, UNSANITARY QUARTERS

AND CGNSTANT^FEAR OF PHYSICAL VIOLENCE. j r

2. IN ONE NOTE LIRING-3 STATES MEXICAN EMBASSY IN GUATEMALA

CITY ABL^DO^VER Y^LITTLE FOR HIM AND HINTS HE MAY RECEIVE SEVERE ?

SSTENCE UNLESS SOME EFFORT MADE INFLUENCE JUDGE DECISION. JUDGE

70 BE "INFLUENCED" MENTIONED AS JUAN SANCHEZ, OFIC1AL TERCERO DEL
JUZGADO CUARTO DE PRIMERA INSTANCIA. IN OPEN CODE LIRING-3 ! J

REQUESTED LIRING-4 APPEAL TO ROWTON (IN ALIAS) IN CONNECTION WITH j

ABOVE AS EXPECTS HIS TRIAL AND SENTENCING EARLY JULY. ■ |

3. MEXICO CITY STATION DEFINITELY NOT IN FAVOR INTERVENTION I

WITH GUAT AUTHORITIES WHICH COULD FINGER LIRlNG-^iS SOME TYPE 1

WOFIRM ASSET. IS THERE SOME WAY, HOWEVER, GUAT CITY STATION COULD
v i i
DISCREETLY ASCERTAIN PROBABLY SENTENCE GIVEN LIRING-3 AND ADVISE.

SECRET
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PEXICO CITY INFO DIRECT® 11 JeiK!n35S20
- REFSt A. GUATEM^A CTTY-g?96.( taJ / SIGO 3

B. MEXICO CITY-5984 fsTN 3 5'ajo)

CONTINUES OPINE j'

j THAT SENTENCE WILL BE LIGHT VIEW ONLY KNOWN CHARGE IS DISTRIBUTION 

: COMMUNIST PROPAGANDA.
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TOGElHEii WITH FRaRCXSCC CLaAhJ o.’iGINEERoD LlftliG-S FnAJClSCU ■ j
i

Lnitn TRIP TO GuaTE.'SHLa ancRE N<jW IJCARCERATiD. ShuCLVaL Saj • > I

1 LIKING-^ SEVERAL TZ.-icc AFTiK LIRi^G-o aRREST AT CUE PGI.4T SaYIHG j
, ■ i

; A .‘IIGHT HaVE Tv HULU up □ajK TO LuaE TO i.IRIUG-4 ASSISThuUE. j
’ .?■ ‘ ' j

ACCORDING iiAnUcL Criar.CUE) PARDIiiAS, SawDuVaL AnfioSiED 5 MhY SHORTLY i

1 AFTER HIS.WIFE RETunitoD FROM TRIP TO GUATEMALA. SaSDCVAL WIFE ’
i

AQu STAYING aT.HCuSE tivuou BY Mak Cue. TOGETHER WITH FAMILY FRANCISCO >

9

LaRA.
> I

2. iu ATTEMPT CCuHTt-h EVtUTUhLITY MEXICAN POLICE COU OASIS : .• - ?

liirU PnuvIuED oY SaRovVaL) MIGHT BE LOOKrtiG FOR LIRIHG~4 FUR ;* j

■ iiiT oKRuG AT lull, STaIIua HaS ASKED LIRING-4 GIVE UP BOTH aPaRTMLUTS i
1 ■■■ J
; SHE hMB LIRIHG-3 HAVE BEEN REciTIMG. LIRING-4 HOW LIVING WITH ; . '
s’ ■ i - * - -
| SHijFRItlio. BoFORE MGVii.G SHE RECEIVED VISIT OF Mau WHO Dc.SCRIBc;D j

I SELF AS LhWYER OF MEXICaU EMBaSSY GUATEMALA CITY; LAWYER SAID Hcl f ’ !
। ■ • i r ■ ■ I

ArFOIRIoD uEFEHD LlEiliG-S. LIR1KG-4 HaS RECEIVED FIVE SHORT
l ' A !

SECRET



F'ACr. «. WcAlCO vll V 5>(--a3 S E C K t I

»'lhSSHbt-> bhui llhJNG-3 S.'JuGGLEu rHUM JAIL. CAE IN OPzJi CODE

| GLG.itbrtD J.'i» Gt 1‘AGbcP i'U HIM. STATION NATuKALLY WILL DO NO

GOCH IHING.
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Chief,... gestern Heaisphere Division
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5£r»g E33B

________ Chief of Station, Mexico City(/ - I 
SJLKI A PBRUMKS/Activities of LIRING-3 and LIRING-4

iMOOFUl

MTOEX18S

Action Required: FYI

Reference : HKMA-34484, 16 April 1968

1. 
renorts 
1 April

Forwarded under separate cover are eleven contact

to 10 May 1968 prepared by Wallace B. ROWTON

2 The main points covered in ROWTON’s reports are:-

a. LIRING—3*s association wi.h Gxiatenalan rebels 
Mexico City, his departure for Guatemala and his 
*est and sentencing there;

LIRIBG
TL j reaction of friends of LIRING-3's and 

contacts to the sees of his arrest:

c. LIRING-4*s efforts to "case” the offices of . 
the LIKING Consulate, particularly the "safe rooe", ! 
and;

d. The obvious provocations of LIRING—4 by 
Sergio VALDEZ.

Continued

Attachments:
Reports (under separate cover)

Distribution:
■ f 3 - C/VHD v/atts (under separate cover) 

OS (M
eaci-stiS'M

aaansean

HMMA-3 
cusswurea

sanua ana mo «u»a

SCI-7?H-3tl

17 May 1968 |
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3. The product of L12ING-4*s efforts to case the 
LIKING consulate will be reviewed in a separate dispatch 
which will also transmit floor plans and drawings oi that 
LIKING component. There is little question that the-lews 
of LIRING-3's arrest in Guatemala gained LIRING-4 the sym­
pathy of various nsesbers of LIKING including LIRING-3, -9 
and -16. They seen to understand LIRING-4's desire to postpone 
her departure for PBRUMES after having received her long awaited 
PBRUMEN visa. The problem now is to have LIEI5G-4 leave for i 
PBRUEE5 while LIRING-3 is still incarcerated in Guatesala. As 
aentioned in a recent cable, BOSTON has encouraged LIBING-4*s’ 
plans to try to visit LIRISG-3 in jail in Guatemala City as 
BOWTON feels that LIRING-3 will probably urge LIKING—4 to 
spend in PBRUKEN at least sone of the tine he has to spend in 
jail. As for the conduct of Sergio VALDEZ (see BOTTOM's reports 
dated 19 April and 6 May), it appears that the latter has delib­
erately been provocating LIRING—4. As this Station sees it, 
VALDEZ's purpose was to try to "shake up" LI2ING-4 in the absence 
of LIRING-3 to test her reactions. It is doubtful that he acted 
—— — *44^ ——_ i_ c. e •*.
indication that he nay have been doing this for the PBRUMEN’s 
(although this is no doubt a possibility). The Station is look­
ing into the desirability, at this point, of placing VALDEZ 
under surveillance. The clain " 
Carmen LOZADA 4 certain sun of 
in PERCIES has no foundation.

that BOTTOM in alias offered 
noney for Intelligence infornktion

for/Tillard C. CURTIS



Subject: ' nllscc 5 uccl-on ksetinr -rith LIklHC-/4. i ;
« ;

1. i'cr.t-c ret with Li.-.y. ~/± at the Liana Lestuumnt (Salle I icsissippi} 
froc ebct-t 'Ic'IJ until 'i-CC cl 3-5/4/c<.. 1/4 aszed beaten wbetier fee had 
beard anyr-'ing frer IIuI. i/3 and stated that she was be&n;/ to worry since 

he bad promised to let her knew cd an eidress in Chiapas to eiiefe she ccuLi 
write, Hcwton pretended rot to >nc.« precisely where a rd fcr how long l/> in­
tended tc be oway, co men Li no that he felt it unfortunate that he had been 
out of tea's three days before L/3 had left and did not have the benefit of 
a final discussion, rowton aliened thet 1/3 had not told han very such in 
t.e letter he had left with 1/4 frr =^.uj xn fact,
j«ui not mentioned enytniun about Raul Kcreno dfiying bin and rrancisco Lara 
to Chiapas in his car. In a further effort to xotsrerexi/K dissuade 1/4 free 
believing subsequently (when she finally learned of his arrest} that novtezi 
van responsible for the tragic develcpnent, loston alleged that he had urged. 
1/3 not to cross the border but ;only to guide Lara. to a safe crossing point 
and return imediately to can Cristobal.
2. 1/4 stated that ucfortuEaael,; cha herself knew very little of the final 

arrangements. She explained, that 1/3 had t:ld ter that be had p-ersunded Laui 
noreno to drive bin and Lara to Chiapas because oi the self-inflicted leg ’ 
wound, that prevented. Lara fr-:n walking any great Cistnnae. Cha added that L/3 t 
in ais last ’-elsplena conversation with her told bar that Haul ..oreno had 
finally "chickened cut' and returned tc ;exic: City, (1/4 rate no mention of 

Carlos rersaval and lest on asrenes that after .-laul - oreao backed cut of bis 
previous c emit sent, probably even before they let Mexico wity,l/3 turned 

to Carlos fersaval and psrsu-ded hie tc drive then to Chiapas in his car, and. 
subsequently to acccnpany tf.es across the border}. 1/4 ccntinued ithat she 

was h-»cpy that Lowton bad dissuaded 1/3 fron crossing the border becasue she 

was well aware of the dangers involved if he fell into a trap or was picked 
up by the Guatenalnns. She added thr.t she did no t ynrticularly likei francisco 
Lara anyway and felt that he .as too sell known to escape detection. j
3. In reply tc Ho./tcn^s query, 1/4 stated that Sandoval of the "thirteenth" 

(Yon Sosa Group) had telephoned her several tines to ask if he could help her 
in any way, but did net apparently have any news. Heaton suggested ithat L/4 

keep lx touch with Sandoval just so he sight have learned cu-aetriing fren 
?Aa or Yon lesa contacts. L/4 ,~sve Ho<ton landoval's address as Leipa £4»apt 
B, but coexisted that she felt a litcle esbarra^eed to see bis alqfee in the 
absence of 1/3. “owten then sing:eted ti t perhaps it sight be 3aorel discreet

-BOOT. . W-TWCI'



to send 1/3*s IG-yesr-cld son (»ho was staying with her ar- the tine) arc-=nd 
to enquire. 1/4 agreed that t-.L: weald be beat and indicated nha't she sr'.tld 
do so the next day, 1/4 also stated that she felt she cculf g&t in tc.ch 

core or le.-:s naturally with riaul/'cremc throe yh .3ergiG_ Vgldez to ^Letermixis 

what had happened durlr.r the trip to Chiapas. ■

4- . ■‘‘O’A’ton than asked 1/4 to revisit the llrl.-G offices the follokicg rzcming 

to study th? lay-out cf the each rccn (llr.1.,1/?’s office; and to use tb-a type­
writer again. 1/4 stated that she f-tall/ found cut that the typewriter Im 

the nain cfaite was a I’erman one tvr h?d not as yet seen able to; deterfeufe the 
exact nane. ..'he added that the one is the lexdcin/Ouban Cultural  uelaaians 
Office on Calle -lanburro v’s a £er.i.crtcn and not the sane as the one in tae 
LIEI1G office. Hcwtcn also asked 1/4 to pick up as many blank fcrus and letter- 
V. ?» _ 

1

1

5. 1/4 o: "n ted that she had beccre quite clos. to Catalina fLepero dur inn, the 
past month and could count on her iSb es a pretext for future visits to f. n 

office. 1/4 ad^cd that c=n the previous afternoon Catalina had told her that 
the salaries of Cubans de c-viacicn personnel bed been reduced and that car 
husband’s salary had been cut from dollars per rent’s to 310 and that the
LldluG office informed her that yssoline was bcin-u rationed for ail nisaiou 
personnel. Catalina also add her teat packages destined for Cuba were not 
being delivered by Cubans de Avis-cion and that the buckler •■as so fjrwat last 
two officials bad. .just arrived from Ha vara to attempt to resolve the srciijaa 
involved. Catalina also complained that she was°slck and. tired' of working 
in the office without pay and had tlicd to quit but .as told by LIR11C/? that 

she must continue to help since the workload was so great. 1/4 also told ^owton 
that Catalina had complained of money problems because of tee cut in her hus­
bands salary and. hinted that she could use any money 1/4 could loan her until 
next payday. Icvtcn surrested that 1/4 lend Catalina ICC or 2CO pesos in view 

of the usefulness Catalina right provide in 1/4’s continued access to the U- 
RI1G offices. 1/4 aided that Catalina had apparently beecam so attached ts her 
that she was -Ring 1/4 to rove into the apartment across t~e hall frou her 
which had bt-ecne vacant ( Cepero’s apartment is 204 at Calle;Juanacatlax. 159). 

i
6. 1/4 also reported that Catalina bac told hep that a new directive htd come 

out prohibiting all employees of the mission fren carrying back to Havana any 
packages of personal items ahatsoever. Catalina consented that for that reason 
Echonendia (Suarez de la . az) who left the previous week sould not; take an

***■ ’ - - - 1 - t’ I
ostraciser ibadk with him to her family. u,
------------------------------ ----------------------------------------------------------- ■

tallace B HowtoA



17 April,1$£S I

Subject: LIuHG/4 Report on Visit tc LIAI’.'G Offices.

1. -Rc-tcn -et with LTHIC/4 at the Mississippi Restaurant from about 2035 
until 2115 on 17/4/65 to oebrief her on her visit to the LlhlliG office earlier 
that day. LI^ILS/4 was obviously worried, and said so at one point; -bout 
LIRr.iG/3 in view of the total absence of any no.s or cornu ideation iron his.- - 
Howtos prehanded to be even sore ignorant of 1/3 *s current ./hereabouts than 

1/4 herself, and ashed anxiously whether she had learned anything froa -"a-fn- 
val or Jerri0 Valdez. L/4 replied that derrio had told her tr.at Haul 2:orenc__ 

while irivinr 1/3 and Lara to Chiapas had and an accident in the car that had 

proved very costly to hix,albbouph fortunately nc injuries resulted to anyone. 
Valdez cent faced that Haul had to apyeal to his fsther for nosey to cover the 
expenses involved in petting the car running again. Veldaz did not know what 
b,~-i w L/o sue x-arg. aster Kaul Lorenc left then (apparently enroute
to Chiapas) and could not provide any further inforraticn.

2. As to .Sandoval, 1/4 told teuton that rhe latter hac.agaaa telephoned .her 

to offer any help she right need but did not have any news f:cr- Lara or 1/3. 
1/4 gave noct on the bane e-dress of Praneinco Lara as care of Martha I. Lara 

de Bodriruez, 16 Avenida 20—74, Lena 12, Cuatenala,Guetcnala, tel: 46-17-17-

3. 1/4 then reported that she had visited UliILG/9*s office as requested by 
Rowten and naraged to get another look at the bock-case cabinet in the corner 
of the rocs. She cemented that on entering the premises she was surprised ' 
to find that the typewriter (3eman nnke) previously located in the middle 
office (that used by hirabal) had been roved into the back office of L/9 and 

that ta. the wife of Luna, was struggling with two fingers to type out 
something as she entered. 1/4 said that 1/9 yas quite cordial toi her and in­
vited her in for a cofiee and presenting her with five tickets to the ballet 
performance that evening, '..hen X/4 asked him whocer anything had; cone in re 
her re-entry permit, the latter immediately began opening rhe mail on his desk 
with the cement thai perhaps a reply had arrived that corning and he would 

cheek at once, .fter looking through the nail he replied in the negative but 
did not dieccurage 1/4 from hoping that the retly would be in soon-

4. 1/4 then stated to lowton that she noticed that the cabinet.in the corner 
of the rcon was bigger Zxxk and lower than she had recalled frua-jprevio-s visits 

and had legs about two inches high; She added taat tho cabinet suich was di— . 
vided into two sections, the one to the left coutaining a shelf on which there 
was nothing but cigars ;.nd cigar/ettes and the" right/feBiSiscing &£ a compart— 

sent with a door covered -with sack cloth (costal) and possibly lacked by key.
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She stated that the cabinet was placed catty-cornered, and that in the rather 
spaciousiy triangle behind it she cculc see many rolls of paper, which she 
assumed were discarded pesters apparently placed there at random.i 1/4 then 
made the attached sketch* on a napkin stressing the difficulty she had in pro­
viding -to/ton with exact neasurer.ants. 3ha added that there were two windows 
facing the street, one in the reception rocs and one in the middle room, hut 
the only ./indow in the back roon faced on the inside patio ond had a verrtcan 
blind anu u gauze curtain but no iraoe.

5. I/h then told -‘owton that she had learned f on Jorrin that he would be re­

turning PCS very soon since his replacasent had alraady arrived. He gave 1/4 
his home address as Velasquez ?4 Altos, e/Infanta 7 Cruz del Padre,Barrio 
Villa Ivueva. »«"<»«>, T/'! io k„.. wouxa rake advantage of
his return (possibly on 22/4/SB) to send another letter to Abreu asking for 
a definitive reply to her re-entry request. She added that she felt she could 
count on Jorrin for this service, she her relations with him had always been 
verv cordial.

I

6. L/4 also mentioned that she had seen and greeted Cepeda who had Just re­
turned from Havana (apparently wit..cut his wife}. 1/9 told 1/4 that he huutjel’ 
had been in Havana the preceding week cn a regular courier run.

7. 1/4 also turned over to Rowton several publications which she had reheivad 

from Catalina Oaper-o and the press office. She ccmm’.nted that the wife of Cru: : 
was working as secretary to the Chief LI2IHG in addition to her duties as res­
ponsible for confidential documents. ।

i - I
1. . * . .

' ' ' - i ' :t :
iallace B. Hcwton J

I !



April,1963

1 
Subject: LIr.ILG/4 .Report of Conversation with Sergio Valdez re

LIRIk'G/3 Alleged ‘..CiACT Affiliation.

4. LILIHG/4 met .’ith Ro..ton at the new safehouse room ?o..ton rented fcr 

security reasons under the alias Jean fercier at the Suites karne. Rowton 
had given L/4 a key and she entered the building and proceeded directly 

to the arnrtnent, arriving st about 17CO. Ro..-toa posed as a Trench businessman 
and introduced L/4 to the oWMer(and his sister) as his secretary.

2. LIEU;G/4 stated that s- e was glad to have some ti-e alone with ko«rton since 

she had received a disturbing report from bergio Valdez again revealing 
that reports of r.l?tgsd \ffllio.v^<jn *xcq ;<urAGi were circulating
in leftist circles. 3he explained that Sergio Valdez had talked with her at 
her apartment (Atoyac) kSfaiay evening ( 15 April,1968) far into the night 

about two reports he had received about LIRIhG/3. Jergio Valdez explained 
that about three weeks previously his father (who works on the staff of 
°Sienprei: told him that he should be careful in his dealings with LIklkG/3 
since the latter was a kOF'ACT agent. Sergio Valdez told 1/4 that he bacame 
indignant at this telling his father that he had known 1/3 for the past ten 
years and considered 1/3 as his nentor in revolutionary philosophy and had 
absolutely no reasons to distrust hin in his current activities. Sergio Val­
dez added that he threatened to break with his father unless the latter re­
vealed. to bin the source of his infemotion. Eis father finally confessed 
that he learned this iron Alberto lorini.uez. his boss ±1 lienpre, but he could 
not say from whom Doninguez had received the report. |

3. Sergio Valdez continued that in addition to tis report he had also been 
told sone tine ago by General Heriberto Jara (new deceased) that h& should 
be careful in his dealings with Lx.flf'G/3 since the latter was known to be 
a "traitor to tie revolution". Sergio Valdez added that General Jara did not 
spectfify any reason for his allegation or.give details. i

4. Sergio Valdez, according to 1/4, stated in reference to these allegations 
that be was quite naturally very disturbed and had hesitated to section‘them 

to 11KILG/3 before his departure in order not to upset hia. He stated that he 
had given the natter a great deal of thought and had cone to the conclusion 
that Crozco was the person passing out this scurrilous report and that he 
intended to get to the bottom of the whole business himself witaoutJ involving 
LIRlkG/3i.He explained that he was planning to organize a group of four or 
five araed aen to kidnap Orozco and interrogate hin until he confessed every­
thing. He adaed that if Crozco finally confessed that he had passed* this

CSCQPT I ■ !
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calumny to Alberto lor.in!._ucz they would aroassinato Orozco on rhe spot. If, 
however,it became clear that Orozco azs innocent they would, look for sone one 
else who alrut have been tne source. ।

5. LIilIhG/4 stated that this whole conversation had shaken her badly since 
it was again an indication that 1/3 was through no fault of his own accused 

cf betraying the revolution and she was well aware of the drastic action that 

the Guatemalan revolutionaries as well as the Cubans were willing to take 
again persons accused even or. slim evi.ence of being traitors, Lihe asked 
aovtoii under no circumstances to reveal this l_test report to LI.-;IaG/3 since 
she knew such reports might drive him to do something drastic.

i
6. LI.Ci.G/4 also reported that ir. the course of conversationiGergio ^aldes 
V .- ... . _ ... .. . ....................................................... > . I . .

*•- » -*X' W.* wuuuvV vlC** bXUU VUC awuVtt-

centijj.'.ed. report against j-/3. dhe-ezp .mined. that dergio Valdez said that 
he knew of I/3‘s business relations with karris in the past and that he himself 

hoped some day to be able to moat karris so that he right interest karris 
in his own commercial ventures. I/V told howten that she precei.ded act to 

have much direct dealing with Harris and alleged that as far as she knew he 
wee currently in Canada.

jail? e B lewton

I



22 April,1?&S
I 
I

Subject: Rolando ilendez Aguilar, Guater.alan Rebel Contact in

Kezico ^ity. । ■

1. coverage of the hone telephone of lI.-;i:.G/3 has. revealed
Subject to be a ccnaaot of --'rancisco _Lara of xAH and .-.oaolfo Sandoval 
of the Ion Sosa group of Sjatezalan rebels in xexieo City. '

2. Cn twe- occasions in early April,'t’JG?, Francisco Lara,:during a visit 

to LIHilG/3‘3 apartment, zade telephone calls to 4-5-6C-3O ( listed as 
Publicaciones e Izpresicnes -exicanas 3.A. - Liario Cvaciones, Oalle Lago 

onn ' "Lai f— S-. ceu^z, «Luxxur on extension 2?. It is 

apparent free, the context of conversation t.at Subject is a close friend 
and possible collaborator of • ra’s. li:<’.:G/3 re; erted the telephone call 

to no;ton, which be stated vna nade in his presence in an effort by Lara 
to locate Rodolfo landoval. According to L/3, hare asked the person whom 
he telephoned ( 1/3 could not identify this person since Lara did not use 
his name while talking) where ”t -.ebc fine friend® was. 1/3 continued that 
Lara did not nention dandoval’s none, apparently for security reasons, but 
he had previously told 1/3 that ae was calling to deternine the whereabout 
of Jandoval. 1/3 also reported that he heard Lara refer to a certain 
"LI Gato" and to “Bl Gordo". 1/3 told iisaten that fee could not identify. ■ 
the former, but it appeared that "£1 Gordo" referred to the ycung friend 
of Lara* s whose photograph 1/3 ’-ad previously given to Aowton for copy­
ing and who was nahed only "Hobarto" in conversations with Lara.

3. -he LIBIA? intercept reveals cast Francisco Lara told F.endas Aguilar 
that he had been with Sandoval early the preceding evening but that the 
latter had not shown up for the zecting arranged for teat; sase scraing. 
when pressed l.endez confessed that Sandoval had returned hose drunk and 
was probably sleeting off the effects of the previous evening. This would 

I 
indicate that Gandoval probably lived with hendez Aguilar, or at least 
aaintains close contact with hia. . i .

4. The Station is atza;ting to determine the hose aiiressiof Subject in 
the hope that further specific inforcaticn can be uncovered concerning 
his relationship with FAR. j ■;

Vallace B



24 April,1968

1. LIRING/4 informed Rowton 24 Airil,1968, that she received telegram 

from Mexican Consulate Guatemala City advising her ."Consulate inter­
vening in case her husband; will continue to keep informed". LIRING/4 
on her own initiative (before sh' able meet with Rowton) asked advice 
Sergio Valdez and Manuel Marcue j'ardinas (of defunct Political.
2. On recommendation Valdez, LI?.iNG/4 telephoned Mexican Consulate Guate­
mala City and spoke at some length with Consul Octavio Serrano. Latter 

assured her LIRING/3 well and thet he taking personal interest since he 
irxeau biiuxiv/j s lafcaeif. ne explained, toat initial hearing would 

take place next day and that judge would have eight days in which decide < 
disposition of the case. He gave LIRING/4 his hose telephone and promised 

■ to keep her informed.
3. No mention made either in conversation with Serrano or in Iccal press 
of simultaneous arrest of Francisco Lara,although arrest of Carlos Persabal 
Marcue mxKt reported^imultaweawa. Charge listed as "distributing communist 

propaganda".
4. LIRING/4 also reported that in her hurried meeting with Manuel Marcufi 
Pardinas latter at first took "it-served-them-right-approach" but.,confided 
that he had learned of arrest d«LjF Hlld ISLuGdlavSlj appealed vv
Carrillo Flores. According Marcue;, Flores sent telegram ii his presence tor 

I
Mexican Consulate instructing it to bring matter to diplomatic level if 
necessary. . :
5. LIRING/4 also showed Rowton note from LIRING/3 in pencil on brown paper 
apparently/^8?£Q?om paper bag which she stated she received that day in 

plain envelope with typed address।and apparently notional return address. 
She assumes this sent at request LIRING/3 by Octavio Serrano. Note reassure 
LIRING/4 that LIRING/3 in gfiod health and that he can handle matters on his 

‘ own. He states "Persabal is to blame" and instructs LIRING/4 to warn wife
of Francisco Lara not to talk to anyone. Also to urge mother, of Lara not 
to come Guatemala City in attempt help him. |

6. Rowton instructed LIRING/4 give maximum play this development to LIRINGs 
in hope that this might wipe out adverse reports circulating against loyalty 
LIRING/3. LIRING/4,who expects re-entry permit PBRUMEN Momentarily, will 
ask LIRINGs for extension in view developments. |



25 April,1?65 ;

"a «.wlv vO —.—--’.-I..U v— f 1Ci3• i

' 5 
1. lUjC/4 rup^rted to —Ciiicn at "iiGC- ca at the tot si saferoun
tuut the cai visitei the LI..ZI?3 es to oils.■-.•.•ent that torni'-g tc infcm every— 
cne of ths news concermiug rI-;.ET.C/3. ;lhe’stated that os' enter’.er friend 
(Llml^G/S'* s secretary! inferred ?.tr th_t her re-errry permit fa.-, x core i&t 

thro-fh ths pr-cediur evening. 1/4 c -:: inined at .xcs that unfort- mtely 
she -cculd not leave ca the next. fll~ht hetasue of .'. Z.lJG/3's arrest, fee 

then, despite the feet that his secretary tele her that LI.-HC/v via in 
a nasty cood, >-ent into the latte”'5 office and. tele hie uhat bed happened. 
H=I.‘<G/9 was very syrp-athetic, tellin- her- chat he uIso read tr.e article 
4” the .el 11- 11.. 1— L„. .u uvr uy wa
which contained the sentence "lersabal tiene la culpa", LIc.lZG/'j becese 
very agitated end exclaimed that he would ior.edicti-ly'make out » card0' 
(fichaj recc-rdi.g this treachery of .'crsutal. L/l e;reed that 1/4 could' 
not possibly leave for IB.ZZ.tn as planr.ee and felt in would rot te ui-flcult 
to ret an extension over the usual t-ei.fcy-jay Halt of the re-entry perrlt. 
2. Ui.lhG/4 continued that she then -eat to see LZA” G/2 and recounted the
whole story to r.ts, inclulir.g L/3*s involvement with ilJJ and the 13th of 
Kcvcnber novenent. fha noted that xhen she caxuaDy9 •-•-■■ rented that acdclfo 
Sandoval had tclu her that Yon Yosa had returned fret,. : um-LuK via lexica 
City about a month previously, IfllbC/l pretended net toj' be as i-v cf s-is, 
exclaiming, "luarine, they don't tall us those tni.-gs! ” illHIiC/? than'said 

th—.t He was xoavtng for a wcco — —jY in . -—.-.■ ...• .he next day ss». .>c*ux-« oo 

feappy to take eloni- ary letters 1/4 right wish to send tp their mutual
friends explaining why she cculd not leave for Zx* at that tire.
3. LI.~ti;.G/4 also reported that while she was in the offibo of 1I.-.I1.G/9 sbe 

set Leo dieven who runs a hotel ir. '.canulco -nd wbon she jreceabered. froa
occasional visits he» race to ths 1111.C offices .Lile she was working there 
She described Levon as an obvious homosexual, .ell -leased, and c-trcuiain& 
ia his sfiEAers. Ea told “her that he pleated’to travel to|P38'uhia "on xri- 

““'day’’ (ihether 2S April or 3 ?kiy was not specified, io see [his son who aas
Studying there. 1/4 commented tbit everyone at the ll.illi6 office appeared

to treat Deven with respect and' confidence.'. ■
4. Ke the layout of the office of LIi.I::G/9 (backrrca} LI2iIJ.G/4 j.\id she notcc 

the addition of the typewriter tsble (formerly, in the clcdle rcoa!against 
the left wall with a portable Clympia typewriter on io. ‘fhe Coraan typewrite:
was still SN the bir desk. Also behind the small.coffee tcjble Ln the corner 
she noted that the rolled up posters *cre gone and in th^ir places ere tvo

or three packacee of books. f.5. jPvwtcn



24 <^±1/1963 
r 
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Subject: LIr.Il.C/4 ^ecort of Telephone Conversation aith Yolanda Dias.

► 
f

1. LIAI1.G/4 reported to. ko^ton. on 22 April,*iSc3, that she received a 
telephone call free her negro doctor friend, Yolanda Diaz fren ?3H'Ji<£5, 
on the evening cf '13 .-.ovil,'l£ >2, aivisi:.z her that her re-entry cerxit 

i
had been approved. Yclanda azded cheerfully, according to LI^IYG/4, that 
she acrid be expecting her on the 22 April flight. i

2. LLujGA continued to f.o»tcn that she telephoned her friend, LI.-.ll.G/$,s 
secretary, early cn 22 April, to find cut whether the LIAIfIG.offine locally 
Lou. rcceivsi ca j approval, one ass tcld that r.o word had as yet been re­
ceived. 1111:.G/4 repeated the request fur confirnaticn that sans afternoon 
in the presence cf --c.ton but again received a negative reply.

j

Vallace 3. Ltnrton
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27 April,49€£

<Subject: LI.-.Ii;G/4 Report of Meeting with Manuel £arcu6 Fardfnas.

1. Rowton met with LIRI;:g/4 for lunch at the Punto Blando restaurant 
on Melchor Ccampo at 13CC on 27/4/68. Ro-ton had given up the safe- 

ro:a in the Eotel Suites Marne earlier that corning, since be felt it 

was not longer necessary. 1

2. URIRG/4 reported that Manuel MarcuS Radinas, the uncle of Carlos 

Rersabal Xarcue, had telephoned her the previo-s evening "frcut-e street" 
and arranged to see her privately at the Koala RestauT’nnt ?
EOteiJ later in the evening. According to LIRi:.'G/4, MarcuS told her that 

through his appeal to Carrillo Flores the case of LIRI;.G/3 and his nephew 
vas nothin diplomatic channels and he hoped that both prisoners would, be 

simply deported after a summary trial. He could not,however, guarantee any­
thing, especially the length of time involved, and asked: LIailG/4 to re­
frain fret: any activity that night prejudice ohe case. Specifically he 
instructed LI?.Il l/4 to break off all contact with the Guatemalan revolu­
tionaries in Mexico, the LIRIGG establishment, and all communication with 
the Mexican Consul in Guatemala City. Re EEzzafca stressed that any false 
move on LIHI.’G/d’s part sight cause Carrillo Flores to withdraw his inter­

vention. Earcufi promised to keep in touch with 1IRIFG/4 so that she would 

not feel completely helpless. He added that the mother of Carlos rersabal 
KarcuS ( supposedly Manuel KarcuS Bardinas* sister) would be traveling tc 

Guatemala City in the next few days so that she could visit her son and 
follow the case at first band. ’ i
3.1IRI’JG/4 also reported to Rowten that Rodolfo Sandoval jof the Ten Sosa

group had promised to visit her at her apartment the previous evening at 

22CO in tie company of Sergio Valdez to discuss natters further. H ad in-
------ forced her on the phone in making the date that KZ1 Gordo4* had returned 

fros Guatemala City - implying that the latter, had news doncemiag the
fate of Francisco Lara ( whose arrest was not reported in; the press, nor 
fey Gtavio Serrrano, the Mexican Consul, to LIHIbG/4). LIRIIiG/4 surmised
that Francisco Lara had escaped arrest and his involvement with lI.^IMG/3 
was not known. She therefore agreed with EarcuS that she Should not see 
Sandoval and the other Guatemalans in public, and especially notai her

apartaent.
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4. LI*I\G/4 also reported that Manuel KarcuS Pardinas had asked her 
not to call biz at his home again to ask for news, or as a natter of 
fact discuss in any way the case by telephone. He stated that he felt the 
phone of LIhZ. G/4 as well as his own phones were tapped and that possibly • 
LI.kli-G/4's apartment was being watched. lie did not specify by whoa or ;
for what purpose, but LIS.IhG/4 told Howton that she assumed it would be. 
either by the Mexican Government or the Mano Blanca of Guatemala or both. 
Rowtcn again encouraged LIRi:;G/4 to cove out of the Atoyes'. apartment end 

back into the less conspicuous calzada Tacubaya place, commenting that 
this would not only prevent future security risks but also convince the 

LIRIiGs that she was suffering financially because of LIaI2.G/3’s plight 
(she stated that she has already intimated this inccnversstions with the 
wife and secretary of the LlRlt.G Chief, as well as with LIRIi;G/2;. LIriIf.G/4 ■’ 

agreed out expressed regret that the lacubaya apartment did not have a 
phone and that she might miss important mail addressed to the Atcysc apart- 
cient and arriving after her departure. Bowton suggested one last letter 
to the Mexican Consul in Guatemala City simply advising him of the change 

of address.

5. LIRIi.G/4 also showed now•on the return address typed on the envelope 

in which the nets from LlBI'.:G/3 to her had been forwarded., '£he adsress, 
which Rowton surroses is notional, tlaced on the envelope by Qtavio Ser— 

^at t e suggestion of LJRI..G/3 ‘ ।
rano/for security reasons, is as follows: ।

i
Carlos Rodriguez 1 I

35 Avenida 20-67, Bona 5
Guatemala C.A. j

6. Rowton concluded with the comment that he felt LIRIhG/4 need hot take 
KarcuS’s instruction not to visit the LIRIKG offices too seriously, since 
it was a well known and easily ascertainable fact that Ui.fliG/4 had a lo­

gical reason for going there occasionally. Rowton did not wish LIRISG/4 
to break off relations at this critical time, expecially since LIiIhG/2 had 

commented to her on her last visit that she should feel free to cose in at 

any tiae she needed help or consolation during the crisis. [

Wallfce 3. Rowtont



29 April,19’38 ■

J i

S'JSCRCT; LI<il:.G/4 Report of Ccnrsct with Sandoval =nd Earcue.
1. Hawton net with LI IHG/4 for lata lunch at ths luntc Blanco 'restaurant 

on F.elchor Ccampo on 29/4/63. She had to bring her child along 'isinae the 

16-year-old son of llitIKG/3 wss not at bar apartment at the tire.

2. LIxIfG/4 reported that Oanc.oal of the 13th of Bovember Groups of Ton 

Sosa had again visited her and shorn great concern for her welfare. He 
again offer/ed her some money, such as he had, but LI.-J3G/4 refused in 

vie. of his simultaneous complaints of the financial crisis he himself 
was undergoing. He explained that since Francisco Lara left he had teen 
supporting Lara’s entire family consist!;*- n* ’r.--•«*«,- zzth'zz, —L 

their two young children. LIHIoG/4 said Sandcval reached a point in emotio­
nal frustration during the conversation that he exclaimed that he would 
have to resort to ronbery or a hold-up in order to get the necessary money 
not only to support Lara’s family but to send someone to Guatemala City 
to see LIKIL'G/3 and procure a goo-3 lawyer for bin. LIAILG/4 told “owtcn 
that this upset her so that she spent the rest of the evening pleading 
with Sandoval not to commit any criminal act. Sandoval then revealed that 
he and his friends had held up a policeman during the Humphrey visit and 
taken his gun, since they were short one weapon. '

3« UxING/4, commenting that Sandoval’s only income was from selling lan­
guage records for the Cortina Institute Linguistic©, told iiowton that she. 
promised to contact all her friends in an autenpt to help his sell the re­
cords and thus raise some nosey legally. L/4 explained to Howtos that San­
doval’s commission is abcut 350 pesos per set of records,which is actually 
the down payment made by the customer (the remainder being; paid in weekly 
or monthly instalments of about 1=5 pesos). L/4 asked newton's help in find­

ing customers among his business contacts to help candoval.

4. LIoIl.G/4 also reported that F.anuel Marcue Pardinas bed ^isited her at 

her apartment late the previous evening. He told her that Carlos Tersabal’a 
wife, Teresa Lozada, would be accompanying her nothcr-iu-lSw to Guatemala 
City. He also stated that be was optimistic since Carrillo ‘Flores had in­
structed the Lexicon Consul to appeal to the Guctenalan minister of Foreign 
Affairs. Harcufi commented that unfortunately the Mexican Consul couid not 
reach this official- himself since he was currently in hew ^ork. He hoped 

however that the Consul would sea the Minister’s secretaryitqarrange direct- 
Intervention. 1^/4 commented to Rowton that Marcufi seemed very curious about 



the U--.I1G office, but she fended off :i; questions by alleging that 
she bad little cr no contact with it. J/4 also consented!that Sergio 
Valdez, who was being particularly helpful to her at this tine, warned 
her sternly against accepting any noney from Msrcufi in light pl his re­
putation as an unscupulous Lothario. 1/4 ailed that EarcuS promised to 
see her again the following evening to keep her inferred; 1

5. “hen ~owton again suggested that LI?..:.G/4 rove freu the Atoyac -pirt— 

uent back to the Lacubaya place despite its dreariness and lack of tele­
phone, she presented no objection, consenting that with all the traffic 
in and out of her Atoaync apartment at all hours of the night her reputa- 
ti:n §.s prcfebly in jeopardy, especially with her inzeiiate neighbors and 

the cleaning women and raids. She promised -owten to cove out the following 
uoy x<« was uue enu o;. cue north ana a logical tine. She also promised
when revisiting the LIHI1G office the next morning to sake this known,stres­
sing her financial plight.

6. HuIiG/4 then appealed to Howtos to help her establish sore sort of 
contact with LibiaG/3, if for notching else than to find out how he was and 
whether he needed anything . L/4 felt that ^owton sight send soue business 
contact of his to visit J./3 on Ao---ton‘s behalf, giving a eno recognition 
signal to LIHIhG/3. hhen Howtcn pointed out the danger in this of possibly 
■asking things worse for 1/3, LIHll'G/4 consented that Sandoval had told her 
that visitors were not required to sign a register or give lengthy explana­
tions. L/4 added that she sight- find seneone, including Sergio Valdes cr 
En-51 Xoreno or one of their friends who sight make a short trip to Guatema­
la City to see U3I5G/3. In reply to Rowton's query,L/4 consented that she 
did not expect anything fron the wife or nether of Carlosj lersabal since 

they had not even bothered to telephone her since the arrest becana known.

7. Rowton premised to give the natter some thought and diiscuss' it farther 

with HSIliG/4 the following afternoon.

Wallace B. Bowtan



Gubjict: LIF.ILG/4 Heport of Contacts with LILIJ.G Office.
I

1. On 3 Iiay,1?S6, LIHT. G/4 reportsf to Howtos th^t she had revisited 
the LIHIh’G offices the preceding day end noticed test the; black tele­
phone was replaced in the riddle office ( where she herself used to 
work). She stated that she could net be certain that it was the sane 

instrument and tact it was replaced by cne of the LIL.ILG employees,but 

it appeared that way since she had not seen the instrument there on 
her visit on the previous Friday (26/4/oc) and LI=Z;.'G/o had consented 
that the telephone would be replaced -iiflc {

2. -ith regard to LI?.IhG/3’s current situation, LI.-.LHG/4 reported that 

she had. again talked to the Lezican Consul in Guatemala City by tele­
phone on 2 Layand was reassured that LInI’iC/3 was in good hcrlth. 
The -Consul informed her that he could visit 1/3 on Thursdays and Sundays, 
and would be clad, to pass any letters treat 1/4 nig t send to hiu for 1/3. 
The Consul also consented that the Mexican Relaoiomos Urteriores had in­
structed him to take up I/3’s case with the Guatemalan Ministry of Foreign 

Affairs. 5e added that he hoped with this pressure to persuade the Guate­
malan government to deport L/3 within the next ten days. i 

!
3. HHlEG/4 then reported what she described as a very disturbing con­
versation on 3 !<ay,1968, with Sergio Valdez. 3he related that Valdez had 
core to see her in the coming to apologize for not having taay. money to 
lend her to help her meet expenses. Ee explained that he had not been paid 
by the Eeviscaororoue? and was very short of funds ! V* continued

that she would have to appeal to all her friends and those <of 1/3 Tor sone 
J

coney to tide her over until L/3 returned. L-he then regretted that she 
had net been able to locate "Sr. Harris” but if and when ael came to Mexico 

again she would have to "'renew diplomatic relations*with hii. Sergio Val­

dez the^ acccr-iag to LInILG/4, laughed and said that tris Reminded hln of 
another nasty rumor that be had heard. He then revealed- that aafil Kcreno 

had recently told bin that a certain Gonzalez of the Gpartaco Club had told 
him (Eoreao) that LIkIi;G/4 had been fired fren the 1IBILG offices because 
she had been providing information to the ISizZHd Embassy add that ho had . 
learned this from the LIKII’G "service" officer. Sergio Valdez also men- 
tioed that a "girl who worked in the zoea rosa" who ..news Tetrose or Carmen 
Lozada had nentioned that fir. Harris had of farted Caraen Losada the sum
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of 54,CCO.CO for information on the situation in PB-tuY-Ui. UxIiG/4 
told iowtor. that she was badly shaken by these comments but attempted 
to assume as uon-cbalant an air as p.ssible and did not question Hergio 
Valdez to determine the exact source. The noted that iergio Valdez had 
mentioned xpwton severs! times to her,always apparently in passing, with 
the obvious-hope that LI?.Ii:G/4 wc -l'i reveal his presence in Eezico and 

arrange an introaucti :n to him for -ergio Valdez. LILli;G/4 agreed wita 

iiowton that Valdez was probably provoking her since at all tines her ap­
peared to be well oisposea toward Sr. Harris from what he knew of him from 
LIaILG/3. Howten c cur anted to L/4 that the last report concerning Camen 

Lozada appeared to have been fabricated either by Sergio Valdez or one of 
his friends, simply on the basis of the fact that 3r. Harris had been in 
tour/-’ «•*.■*->- n-"~" Itzida -111^ s»ue »as xn r.exico.

4. lIiti:.G/4 then stated that she felt she had to continue to impress Sergio 
Valdez with her desperate need for money and accordingly ttiejiisned-the 
LIxcIEG gatekeeper in his presence and asked for a loan, -.ben the gatekeeper 

responded favorably, she left Sergio 7alaez waiting in theiapartment and 
went tc the LIxILG Cffices at once tc collect the lean. The gatekeeper gave 
her 1CO pesos on the spot, fortunately in the presence of ilnIMG/13* 1/4 

told 3o.*ton that she promised to return the money in the next week, as soon 
as she received money promised to her by her father.

5. LIxIiiG/h added that as cho was leaving the LlnlfG office she ran into 
the leftist writer, Jaime Labastida, who expressed his sorrow at the arrest- 

of LIidEG/3. Labastida commented that someone had told him recently that 
a cartoon of some kind had appeared in a Tapacbula newspaper "against II- 
RIEG/3". »*hen 1/4 pressed him he gave a description of the '"someone" that 

definitely identified him as Sergi. Valisz. 1/4 continued that when she 
confronted Sergio Valdez with this upon her return to the ppartment, he 
hotly denied it, much to L/4’s mystification* (

6. LIkliG/4 also commented that Manuel EarcuS r'ardiuas continued to tele­
phone her at very lare hours of the light in the hope (she assumed) that 

she would invite him up.. She called bin a “viejo verde" andjadded that she 

had no intention of seeing him alone at her hoce at night.

Vallace 3. Ronton



Kay,1968 [

Subject: LIiiIl.G/4 Report Concerning Aenzenci:.g of L1R1HG/3.

1. LIj.IAC/4 reported, to iiowton at the Puzto Blanco r.-stauraht on Eelccor 
Ocazpo at 1300 on -3/5/68 that I.aauel EarcuS fardiaas had inferred her at 

0100 that saae day that he had .just learned that .Ir.l;.G/3 and his nepaew 
had been sentenced to prison, with a ci.ninun tern of six 200^0. liaicu^ 

added that his sister and. her daughivi’-in-lew w uld be returning to i'czico 
City by the er.h of the week and should be able to supply details of the 
trial and prospects for the iimc-diate future of having the prison tern re­
duced. LIBIAG/A explained to licutou that she had accepted a dinner izvi- 
tetion at Sanborns extended to her by Aguirre denies. s. I7/ H..M
'..'itb. _1__ d- uuu suuexea at the University of Havana, and arrived at the
hone of Gilberto and Blanca Anant (Blanca Pena de Arant),vkith xhes she was 
staying, rather late usd found banel f.arcuS vnitinr for her. After apo­
logizing profusingly for his previous rude conduct with.L/4, he reported 
the latest reus ccncerniir. L/3 to her.

8. Ll=;LG/4 agreed with -cwton that although t ;he prisen sesterce was pro­
bably definite, she should check it cut with the Mexican, Con ■«.! personally.

She stated that fortu ttely she razesbered a certain fesefina Hodri-ue« who 
worked in the larca distancia service of Telefozcs de M-Sxieo whcai- she had 

originally net as a ftiend of LIHIPG/S. 1/4 cemented that $rta Sodri-uez.
whoa she described as “ruy fea" vas ezaxored of LIxING/2■sone years ago but 
stopped seeing hita (to her knowledge) when she found out that he was carried. 
1/4 continued that 3rta nodriguez had already promised to put through lang 
distaste calls to Guatemala for 1/4 without charging the'calls,if they could 

be arranged during her shift at the switchboard.

3. LI2IBG/4 also re.orted that she had again visited the LIKING offices at 

1345 co 7/5/63 and again about 113C that cane norning. At, Rowton’s request 
she -gain checked the phone in the third office. Cn the first visit the of­

fice had already been closed but she ran into LIdIRG/13 a^ the gate and ac­
cepted a ride, hose ( she felt this fortunate since he dropped her at the 

Tacubaya apartwent at her request). Cn this occasion, duping a brief exchang 
Of consents with the_gatekeepor and 1/13, 1IXI--G/4 learned that LIaILG/2 
will return from uBHUKdii on 10/5/63. gj | t

4. On visiting the LIHIKG offices on the morning of 8/5/66, LIRIIJG/4 told 
*owtcn that fortunately only her ftiend Catalina and aosita (secretary ' 

of LIaING/9) were present, ^hen she went into the third office where Rosita 
was working she asked to use the phone and approached the llnstrusent. Che



14-00000

■ ■ ■ - — . i _ , ' ■ 'f *
2. 5 J

• I s
was able; io note that the name "Cki Electric,Tokyo,Japan" was narked, on 
the instrumc-nt. She also acted ,£he word "Gall” but could not tell whether 
it p^i-t cf the manufacturer’s utme or a Mexican or U.S, subsidiary. 
She also noted that below the receiver were fomr switches (likeithe ordinary 

push lirht switches) unmarked or unnunccred. -hen she excldtmed to r.csita: 
"How do you dial on this phone", Rosita raplied:"3ut it’s net a phone,it’s 
ah intercom". lll-HG/4 told -cwton that she then coamemed:’’3ut how corse, 
the intercom is in th’: first office.” Rosita the*/, according to l'/4, slated: 

"But that’s a special intercon." (L/4 explained that she was referring to the 
phene she had in her hand). ■ :

f

5. LIEI.’G/4 continued that when she piss ed through the second office, she 

noted that the phone which had been replaced in ~ of’Lrl-L^v^
-ou.-fe.vcux’e ana was the sane instrumont previously there when she worked in : 
that office. She asssutis that the IIRL'Gs replaced the phene thecselves.

6. 11x130/4 also told Ao-.’tcn that she had located an excellent apartment 
in the Edifice Ccndesa ( EatzatlSn and Veracruz) through her friend Blanca 

Pe£a who lives in the same development. LIxIfG/4 added that she had given j
the administrator 300 pesos to held the apartment for her until she could .*

arrange a fiador. She also st-tad that she could obtain a telephone eventual^ 
since the former tenant bad =; plied and received approval c'ust before he leffi 
LILILG/4 reassured ^-owton that she was telling everyone, particularly‘the i 
LIRIXGs, that she was living at the lacubaya apartment and temporarily stay- - 
ing as a house guest at the heme of Blanca Pena de Azant. She also reassured
Rowton that she bad informed the LIRI3C- gatekeeper when she r-turned the 100 .
peso lean that she had received money from her father in Eew fork. LIHIKG/4 
added that several friends, including the well-known writer r-evueltas, had 
off erred to find her some sort of work. She stated that if she. could find 

suitable employment in the mornings she w uld accept the offer', if only for 

appearances.
I 

;__________ ___ _ - i .•

tfallace 3. Rowton I

i 
i 
I 
j
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GUATEMALA CITY INFO DIRECSFft-

PBRUMEN LIRING-3 LIRIt.G-4

REF. MEXICO CITY 5375 k - ~

38M H 01 169

1. RETURN ADDRESS OF ENVELOPE IN WHICH NOTE FROM LIRING-3

SENT LIRING-4 IS

CARLOS RODRIGUEZ 

35 AVESIDA 20-67 ZONA 5

GUATEMALA C.A.

2. ALTHOUGH THIS MAY BE NOTIONAL ADDRESS WOULD APPRECIATEM

STATION CHECK.
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DSC -15440 
26 APR 68 
FBI CABLE 
P2

CIT 
OCC . 
MEXICAN PASSPORT ONE ZERO THREE THREE EIGHT 
EIGHT
ARRESTED BY GUATEMALAN SECURITY FORCES ON 
APRIL ONE THREE* O’»e NINE SIX EIGHT. WHEN 
ATTEMPTING TO INTRODUCE INTO GUATE- MALA 
COMMUNIST PROPAGANDA WHICH HAO BEEN 
CONCEALED IN THE SIDE PANELS OF THEIR 
AUTOMOBILE

It 680)270834
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Chief/UHD 
wo. COS/Guatemala City 
aaa

Chief of Station, Mexico City 
siaua ~

Review of Events Leading to LIRIXG-3*s. Arrest in Guatemala
«aaa«auaa-BHtEK3

Action Required: For Your Information
Sc 7

1. The purpose, of the present dispatch is tO'^usmarize the 
developments leading to the trip made by LIRING^3' to Guatemala in 
the company of FAR member, Francisco Alalberto «LARA Barrios, 
and Carlos Manuel ’’•PERSAVAL Marcue, Mexican national and nephew of Manuel Marcue Pardinas. pr-dirA^t^ ~-r 
Politica. This trip, as the Guatemala City Station has advised, 
resulted in the arrest of all three persons in Guatemala just 
over the Mexican border on the weekend 13-14 April, and their 
current imprisonment in Guatemala City in the custody of the 
Guatemalan army.

continued
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2. According to reports subnitted to Wallace B. ROSTON [by 
LIRING-3, the latter set Carlos Manuel Persaval Warcue originally 
through the latter’s sister-in-law, Carneu'-Lozada de Ramirez,’ 
who had been carrying on an extra-marital affair with LIRING-f3 
since early November 13c7. On the evening of 3 March 1968, ’ 
Persaval approached LIRING-3 in connection with the difficulties 
that a young Guatemalan woman living in Mexico City was havinig 
in obtaining false documentation - to enable her to travel to F 
Guatemala to recontact her husband, whom Persaval described as 
"an important guerrilla leader". Persaval revealed to LIRINd-3 
that he had been assisting the FAR in propaganda work in Mexico 
for some time and gave LIRING-3 several copies of a pamphlet ! 
entitled "Violencia en Guatemala” which Persaval said had beefo 
published on one of his uncle's presses and was being sold at the 
nominal price of three Mexican pesos to help raise money for the 
FAR.

i j

3. When LIRING-3. under ROWTON’s direction, responded 
favorably to this initial appro? ;h, Persaval pursued the natter 
and finally, on S April, reveal*, that he was in touch with two 

ueeueu neip m returning  
clandestinely to Guatemala. Persaval asked LIRING-3 to arrange 
to guide these persons across the Guatemalan border south of 
Chiapas, an area LIRING-3 had previously told Persaval he was very 
faniliar with from his previous residence in San Cristobal. 
Persaval made no further reference to the "young Guatemalan wife 
of the FAR leader”. LIRING-3 surmised to ROWTON that this person 
might actually have been the wife of Francisco Lara Barrios, but 
that plans for her return were discarded in favor of the trip 
by Lara himself.

1

4. At ROWTON’s urging, LIRING-3 insisted on meeting the two 
1 Guatemalans involved and in talking to them before undertaking

such a mission. Persaval finally introduced LIRING-3 to Francisco. 
Lara Barrios on 17 March 1968, and the latter presented LIRING-3

> to a certain "Rodolfo", who LIRING-3 ascertained subsequently was
a member of the 13th of November group headed by Yon Sosa by the 
name ofySandoval. Francisco Lara Barrios confided to LIRING-3 
that he had in his possession a false Guatemalan passport in the 
name of Jose MariaxOliva Carranza and that he had obtained legal 
residence in Mexico with his wife and children through the efforts 
of ex-Mexican President Lazaro Cardenas. He also named a certain 

yEskenazi and LIREBEL-1 as persons who assisted Guatemalan exiles 
in Mexico. Station believes Eskenazi may be identical withi Luis David^Eskenassy Cruz, a former agent of the Guatemala City
Station. ’

! . \
5. With the approval of ROWTON, LIRING-3 agreed to! help

■. the above-mentioned persons to cross the Mexican/Guatemalan border
) and to accompany then to Guatemala City. This latter extension of

the original trip was made by Lara at the suggestion of LIRING-3 
so that the latter could meet with the FAR woman responsible for 
logistics. LIRING-3 reported to ROWTON subsequently that just 
before their departure, Lara also offered to arrange for LIRING-3 
to travel clandestinely to the Sierra de las Minas to meet directly 
with FAR and 13th of November leaders to discuss further|support, . that LIRING-3 might be able to provide through his coiseixial > 
contacts in Chiapas and northern Mexico. 1 !

. 6. LIRING-3 fabricated a false Mexican identity document I 
(Secretaria de Education) for Francisco Lara Barrios in the name of JaeintoXRangel Cervantes with Lara slightly disguised so 
that the latter could move about more unobtrusively on the Mexican

J side of the border just prior to crossing. On 3 April 1968,
just prior to their scheduled departure date, Francisco Lara

CLAS&W:c*r*a£T - |

;-E-erR-STf’f ■ LX5S-.--e«=> ’ | 2
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informed LIRING-3 that their mutual friend Rodolfo Sandoval 
would not be accompanying them since he was too veil known and 
his mission was not important enough to justify the risk and the 
expense involved.

t
7. LIRING-3 did not depart as he had hoped on 5 April 1968, 

because Lara unfortunately accidentally shot himself in the ankle 
on the norning of that day while cleaning his gun and had to be , 
given medical attention before he could make the trip. LIRING-4 
told ROHTON that LIRING-3, Francisco Lara and Raul/5loreno, a 
friend of LIRING-3, finally left Mexico City in the personal 
car of Raul Moreno on 10 April 1968. but that Moreno had returned 
to Mexico City two days later as a result of an accident that , 
disabled the car somewhere in Chiapas. LIRING-4 did not report 
anything concerning the subsequent involvement of Carlos Persaval 
Marcue, stating that she had not received any ccxnunication from 
LIRING-3 after his telegram of 12 April, in which he reported 
the return of Raul Moreno. ROXTON surmises that when Raul 
Moreno had to return to Mexico City. LIRING-3 and Lara asked 
Carlos Persaval Marcue to join then and drive them to the border 
fn hi? tt. ■»"•* *h»t Persaval continued on witb them toward 
Guatemala City.

8. Guatemala City Station advised on 22 April 1968, that 
the story of the arrest of Lara, Persaval and LI2ING-3 had reached 
the local press and that they would be turned over to the appro­
priate courts for trial. This indicates that LIRING-3 may

i eventually b^ released and hence be available to ROWTON for ,
complete debriefing.

9. The only significant name that had surfaced as a result 
; of LIRING-3*s involvement with the Guatemalan rebels in Mexico

City is that of Rolando/Mendez Aguilar, whom Francisco Lara 
Barrios contacted on 45-60-30 extension 27, in early April from 
the home telephone of LIRING-3. (This number corresponds to the- 
"Publicaciones e Impresiones Mexicanas. S.A. - Diario Ovacior.es, 
Calle Lago Sirahuen 297, Mexico City). From the LIFEAT coverage 
on LIRING-3 it is apparent that Mencez is a close contact of 
both and Sandoval and nay be providing or have provided 
employment for them in Mexico. The Station is attempting to 

J determine the home address of Mendez in the hope that further
j details of his possible collaboration may be uncovered. j
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SECRET 252105Z APR 68 CITE MEXICO CITY 5375

DIRECTOR ,GUATEMALA-ITY 
J

PERUKES LIRr£G-3').IRING-4 25 AzsE3 a S 8 3 8 4
REFs GU. .LA CHY 89

I. LZEZEC-? RECEIVED FRCY wryrrAH CO’JF’taTE GUATEMLA.

CITY 24 APRIL STATING CONSULATE INTERVENING OK BEHALF LIRING-3.

LIRING-4 PHONED CONSULATE , WAS TOLD BY

CONSUL OCTAVIO SERRANO THAT LATTER CLOSE FRIEND LIRING-3 FATHER.
SERRANO SAID LIRING-3 "ALL RIGHT," WOULD HAVE INITIAL COURT HEARING.

25 APRIL AFTER WHICH JUDGE WOULD HAVE EIGHT DAYS DECIDE DISPOSITION

OF CASE. CHARGE IS DISTRIBUTION COMMUNIST PROPAGANDA. NO MENTION 

MADE BY SERRANO OR PRESS OF FACT FRANCISCO (LARA) BARRIOS ARRESTED

X’JA MTVT5AHe *
V&4 n »u.a Avn»«w*

2. LATE 24 APRIL LIRIaG-4 RECEIVED LETTER FROM LIRING-3 

HASTILY SCRIBBLED ON BROWN PAPER, AND PROBABLY HAILED TO HER BY 

SERRANO. LETTER IN DOUBLE TALK SAYS LARA "ALL RIGHT” AND WARNS

AGAINST HAVING HIS WIFE TALK TO THE rRESS OR HIS MOTHER COME; 
K I

GUATEMALA TO T/Y HELP HIM. GOES ON TO SAY 'THINGS MAY TAKE A *

WHILE" AND BLAKE PERSAVAL FOR ARRESTS. |

................  3. LIRISG-4 CONTACTED MANUEL (MARCUE) PARDINAS AFTER RECEIVING

- . * ’ - i

.... . ?

- ; • ’* SECRET i •• • \
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CABLE. MARCUS SAID XIS BEPHEV PERSAVAL "ALWAYS IN TROUBLE ABD 

DESERVED BE LOCKED UP" BUT ADMITTED CALLISS ON MEXICAN FOREIGN
I 

MINISTER ANTONIO (CARRILLO) ELORES ON BEHALF PERSAVAL WITH RESULT 

THAT MIHISIER SEJiT MEXICAN CONSUL GUATEMALA CITY INSTRUCTIOBS TO 
INTERVENE. !

4. PER STATION BRIEF173 LIRIRS-4 TAXING LIRING-3 LETTER TO 

LIRINS 25 APRIL VITE VIEW ASX AID LIRINS-2 AMD LIRIKG-S AND USE 

LIR ING-3 ARREST 70 TRY CORRECT ADVERSE REPORTS CIRCULATING RE HIS 

LOYS’TY. LP’T^G-s orncrtnm o-jnii /»*t i cow* /»rn» rTorw »- --•» 

CAPITAL ID APRIL SAYIK3 LIRIXS-1 WHO ASKED GIRL TO CALL HAD 

SUCCEEDED OBTAINING PERCHES ENTRY VISA FOR LIRING-4. IF r.EWS 
VISA GRANTED ALREADY AtCiRISG, LIRING-4 TO STATE SHE DOES EOT

** T
VAST LEAVE UNTIL LIRIEG-3 FREED OR HIS FAE CLEARLY SETTLED. 

STATION KATJRALLY HCPISG ARREST CF LIRIRG-3 IN GUATEMALA WILL HELP 

LIRISG-4 POSITION DLRIDG VISIT PERUSES. IB REPORT ASSOUVCIHG 

LIRING-3 ARREST IN GUATEMALA PASSED STATION 23 APRIL LITEMPOS 

BRANDED LIRING-3 AS "COMXOTIST." '

SECRET "...



SEeftET

23 April;1968^

MEMORANDUM >
i

SUBJECT: LIRING-3 Visit To Guatemala With Guerrillas i 
FRANCISCO ADALBERT© LARRA BARRIOS and CARLOS 
MANUEL PERSAVAL MARCUE

1. On 5 March 1968, LIRING-3 had dinner with CARLOS i 
PERSAVAL MARCUE, nephew of MANUEL MARCUE PARDINES, director 
of the now defunct magazine "POLITICA’’, a Communist bi­
monthly publication. During the dinner PERSAVAL queried 
LIRING-3 if be could obtain a false passport for the wife 
of an important Guatemalan guerilla leader so that she: 
could co uxaccu-ta. jumxAG-3 replied
that be would do his utmost to assist.

2. On 8 March 1968 PERSAVAL told LIRING-3 that two(2) 
Guatemalan revolutionaries had need to travel to Guatemala 
by mid-March. LIRING-3 commented that there was limited 
possibility of obtaining false documents, but that he could ■ 
brief the Guatemalans so as to facilitate their illegal 
crossing of the Mexican/Guatemalan border, or if they desired, 
he would guide them.

j
3. On 9 March 1968, PERSAVAL again discussed the matter 

with LIRING-3, saying that one of the two travellers possessed 
-legal travel documents. Since the other person has no such 
legal documents, they should enter Guatemala illegally. ■ 
/“HEXI-479027 !

4. LIRING-3 reported on 27 March 1968, that one of the 
traveller to Guatemala is FRANCISCO ADALBERTO LARA BARRIOS. 
The group is of the opinion that LIRING-3 should also go to 
Guatemala in order to meet an unidentified woman, described 
as the FAR logistics officer, to discuss FAR support from 
Mexico. i
/r~MEXI-5000~7 |

5. Departure was delayed because LARA sustained a self- 
inflicted gun shot wound while cleaning a weapon. On 10 April 
LIRING-3, LARA, and another person—described as a member of 
the YON SOSA Faction—departed en route to Guatemala. > 
LIRING-3 was informed that the FAR and the YON SOSA group are now working together, but that a certain amount of ‘ 
compartmentation exists. 
/~HEXI-520527

SECRET
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6. During the 14-15 April week-end, Guatemalan ! 
authorities arrested three individuals near the Mexican 
border. They were brought to Guatemala City where they.are 
being held for interrogation.
The- persons arrested are:

a. FRANCISCO ADALBERTO LARA BARRIOS (Guatemalan)
b. CARLOS JURADO DEL MAR (Mexican)
c. CARLOS MANUEL PERSAVAL MARCUE (Mexican)

When arrested LARA admitted that he is a Communist, and that 
he is returning to Guatemala to renounce his affiliation.
/“GUAT-8880_7

7. The G-2 of the Guatemalan military was not success­ful in its interrogation r>f ________ I attempted
it but wa.- compelled to conduct its interrogation in the 
presence of G-2 officials who continually interrupted.

was attempting additional interrogation under more 
favorable circumstances. Meanwhile G-2 is considering turning 
over the Subjects to the "Army Special Unit" for further 
interrogation.
AGUAT-88907

SECRET



SECRET 222145Z APR 68 CITE MEXICO CITY 53C8 |

|WQ01BtcTQB 2Zta£8B95857 ,
,tf.|

1. ALL INFO IN MEXICO CITY-530rMAY 5E PASSED LIAISON. ‘

2. WUULu ArrtitCifti c. Curl ur McwSrArEn haiICLE un ?En*.AEAL ■ 

AND JURADO.

SECRET

BT
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__________________ F'. ;____
SECRET 221758Z APR 68 CITeP ^8S06 i

MEXICO CITY INFO DIRECTOR 22 S3 9 5 7 0 I
REF A | 18880 (.J

B. MEXICO CITY 5501

I. P22CS 07 21 ArRIL ISCo AEruAIEu InAi rtrtZAoAL. AND JURADO

HAD BEEN CONSIGNED TO THE GUATEMALAN COURTS. LARA STILL BEING

HELD BY THE GUATEMALAN ARMY. CONSIGNMENT MEANS TIT END TO INTERROGATION 

AND HAS, IN THE PAST, RESULTED IN A SPEEDY TRIAL AND LIGHT SENTENCING', 

IF AT ALL. OFFICIAL MEXICAN GOVERNMENT INTEREST HAS HOT YET SURFACED.

SOURCES In ATTEMPT OBTAIN ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

WILL ADVISE

2. PLS ADVISE WHAT PORTIONS REF B CAN BE PASSED LIAISON

S £ C R E T

BI

SECRET



I

P9
1S

SECRET 221620Z APR 5S CITE MEXICO CITY 5301

PRIORITY GUATEMALA CITY INFO DIRECTOR 2 Z Ci ■ £-5 3 2 6
REF GUATEMALA CITY 8887 (z/iZ 7264^7 - ? &

1. TELEPHONE HUMBER 48-44-97 IS REGISTERED TO ELGA SOBERON, 

fiui ntK if* LA«( ur MAnUll MAhCUL PAKUInAS. LAi ILK LXVtS IN HUME 

WHICH LOCATED AVENIDA DE LAS FUENTES 616, COLONIA JARDIHES DEL

PEDREGAL. THIS TELEPHONE HAS BEEN TAPPED BY MEXICAN FEDERAL

SECURITY FOR SEVERAL YEARS,

2. TELEPHONE NUMBER 32-02-18 (UNLISTED) REGISTERED TO

FHU GARZA, CALLE SUR 71 NUMBER 427, COLONIA 3ANDIJAL. STATION

CANNOT IDENTIFY THIS PERSON,

SECRET

SECRET
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E T 1SI625Z APR S8 CITE MEXICO CITY 5223

IMMEDIATE GUATEMALA CITY INFO DIRECTOR , TEGUCIGALPA

ANDZOR INITIALS • SEEN BT
6

2 7

3 8

4 9

S 10

LIRINS

REF: MEXICO CITY 5221
IS AraES K S197 9

i«0 CunnECiluhS ii- nef cnan^c. ; nutmHrn 1«U: WAttUiM PiAKCUE

PARDINAS IS A COMMUNIST NOT AfLEFTIST
La «a ' ---- -

POLITICA" NOT "PERIODICA'

SECRET
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SECRET 172146Z APR 68 CITE GUATEMALA CITY 8S50

MEXICO CITY INFO DIRECTOR

REF: GUATEMALA CITY-8887 3D4>'
I7A?sE3«S3O83

ACCORDING TO G-2, BECAUSE OF LACK OF AELE

IBTERKUG'I lOd Uf’HCLKb HH3 Dt£.n UWOct. UDitiiu Ml IL7C.

OF VALUE FRO1 TWO MEXICAN PRISONERS FORCED INTERROGATE

(LARA) BARRICS IN PRESENCE TWO G-2 REPRESENTATIVES WHO CONTINUALLY

INTERRUPTED EFFORT. PRIMARY INTERROGATION LARA ADMITTEDLY NOT

COMPLETE. ESMICA WILL TRY ARRANGE FURTHER INTERROGATION IN MORE

FAVORABLE SURROUNDINGS.

2. BECAUSE G-2 HAS BEEN UNSUCCESSFUL IS ITS INTERROGATION OF

SEXICANS, THEY ARE CONSIDERING TURNING BOTH OVER TO "ARMY SPECIAL

CHIT" FOR INTERROGATION

3. WILL ADVISE DETAILS AS AVAILABLE

E C R E TS

BT

i 
i.

SECRET
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s- NAALTll ■ e*T< PMCtSSCD >0- DI SSUt *t> rw |« I- 06TC

COC’XWT ClS*OS'TIO«*

JURADO DELMAR. CARLOS 
201—798301 
SEX M DOB ?

MEXICO

035-004-017 
GUAT-08880 
16 APR 68

. CIT 
OCC 
MEXICAN CARRYING PP M). 103388. 
CAPTURED 8V GUATEMALAN AUTHORITIES NEAP HEXI

. CAN BORDER OVER PAST WEEKEND. ITEMS TAKEN 
FROM PRISONERS WAS MESSAGE FROM /OR TO 
NESTOR VAILE /FAR PSEU30 OF NERY DE LEON 
LICARDIE, FAS LEADER/, GUERRILLA TRAINING 
MATERIAL ANO THREE SMALL STONE BELLS

. ww It 6805160769 '

FILE IN ?ni. '?6/

PILE THIS F0<M IN FILE NO.
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LIRIKG

REF A MEXICO CITY 5235

B GUATEMALA CITY Z832{j»J ‘fl'136 )
S Eta Fs K» o • . _

1. DESPITE DESIRE HELP LIRING-3 WHO DEPARTED FOR GUATEMALA AS

PART STATION EFFORTS AGAINST GUAT REBELS, MEXICO CITY DOES SGI WANT 

MADE WITTING LIRING-5 WAS STATION CONTACT. LIRi«2-3

HANDLED BY ROWTON UNDER FALSE FLAG AND NEVER MADE WITTING ROWTON

CONNECTION WITH WO FIRM-. BELIEVE DISCLOSURE LIRING-3 CONNECTED

WITH WOFIRM AT THIS TIME WOULD CREATE SERIOUS DIFFICULTIES FOR

STATION WITH MEXICAN GOVT WHICH COMPLETELY UNWITTING STATICS ACTIVITIES

IN MEXICO DIRECTED AT GUAT REBELS. IT WOULD CREATE SIMILAR

DIFFICULTIES FOR LIRISG-5 IS EYES CUBANS AND MEXICAN LEFTISTS NOT TO 

KENT IOS LIRING-4 WHO CURRENTLY AWAITING CUBAN VISA.

2. CARLOS MANUEL PERSAVAL MARCUE IS NEPHEW OF F.ANUEL FAEC’Jc 

PARDINAS, IMPORTANT MEXICAN LEFTIST AND EX DIRECTOR MEXICAN PERIOD­

ICAL WHICH RECENTLY DISCONTINUED PUBLICATION ALLEGEDLY, AMCKG OTHER 

REASONS, AS RESULT WITHDRAWAL CUBAN SUBSIDY. PERSAVAL WHG MARRIED TO 

SISTER LIKING MISTRESS ORIGINALLY INTRODUCED LIRINS-3 TO GUAT, REBEL
• .M ■ ■
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EXILE GROUP MEXICO CITY. ALTHOUGH ROWION LACKS LATEST DETAILS, IT 

PROBABLE PERSAVAL WAS PERSUADED ACCOMPANY LIRING-3 AND LARA AT LAST 

MINUTE SINCE HE HAD CAR AND LARA GUN WOUND MADE BUS TRAVEL , 

Im jooidlc. ou'jucSI GUATEMALA CilY INFORM MARCUE WELL KJiCWB

MEXICAN LEFTIST RELATED TO EX DIRECTOR PERIODICA AND LARA GJ AT 

LEFTIST EXILE BUT INDICATE IT HAS KO TRACES LIRIft’G-3. , -

3. WOULD AIPRECIATE DETAILS LIRINC-3/LARA/PERSAVAL ARRESTS AND

SUBSEQUENT INTERROGATION AS BECOME AVAILABLE. IS THERE CHANCE ARRESTS

LIRING-3/PAHSAVAL MAY LEAK TO PRESS OR LOCAL MEXICAN AUTHORITIES?

PLEASE ADVISE.
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BT

SECRET



cxrx>«"

C LASS** rgp MCS^GC

SECRET /WW4WW
•*y txmAcS«SCO* gr ■

e
3$U«O o

UV4D- CLA&Strr TO FOE HO.£

1M1S.
c ___filtUTX. 

SECRET 152357Z APR 68 CITE GUATEMALA CITY 8883

IMMEDIATE MEXICO CITY INFO IMMEDIATE DIRECTOR, ROUTINE TEGUCIGALPA 

LIRIKG 
r . . _ 2k 1

REFS: A. MEXICO CITY 5235 ak‘Ttr) ; ■

B. SCGUATEMALA CITY 521 (NOT SENT TEGUCIGALPA) ;

C. GUATEMALA CITY 8822 (NOT SENT TEGUCIGALPA)^/^

1. OX AFTERNOON 15 APRI^ 68 P REPORTED THAT FRANCISCO, j 

ADALBERTO (LARU) BARRIOS, GUATEMALAN COMMUNIST WHO CARRIED 

MEXICAN IDENTITY DOCUMENTS IN NAME JACINTO (RANGEL) CERVANTES;;

CARLOS (JURADO) DELMAR, MEXICAN CARRYING PASSPORT 80. 103388; ;, 

AND CARLOS MANUEL (PERSAVAL) MARCUE, MEXICAN CARRYING PASSPORT; 

K). 33171, WERE CAPTURED BY GUATEMALAN AUTHORITIES NEAR MEXICAN 

BORDER OVER PAST WEEKEND (EXACT DATE NOT AVAILABLE)A, ALL THREE 

WERE BROUGHT TO GUATEMALA CITY AND ARE BEING HELD FOR INTERROGATION.

2. AMONG ITEMS TAKEN FROM PRISONERS WAS MESSAGE FROM (OR TQi 

"NESTOR VAlLE" (FAR PSEUDO OF NERY DE LEON LICARDIE, FAR LEADER), 

GUERRILLA TRAINING MATERIAL, AND THREE SMALL "STONE" BELLS. WHEN 

ASKED ABOUT BELLS (EACH OF PRISONERS CARRIED A BELL) INTERROGATORS 
: i

GOT THREE DIFFERENT STORIES. DURING INITIAL INTERROGATION BY ARMY, ;
i . i 

LARA ADMITTED KE COMMUNIST, BUT CLAIMED HE RETURNING TO GUATEMALA ‘

* o
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TO RESOURCE HIS AFFILIATION.

3. STATIOS FOR TRACES ON THREE PRISONERS.

ADVISE ISFORMATION MEXICO CITY WISHES PASS LIAISON. 

SECRET
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____ ^Operations Against PBRUMEN___ gets l!rreT*ving LIRING-3, LIRING-4 
«roi«8wnso.is==«aas and Their Contacts - January to 31 March 1968 :

Action Required: FYI
References : A. HMW-16222

B. HMMA-33842

1. The development, handling, and exploitation of any 
asset under false pretenses by someone operating under false *1 -ill + ~ — — +-V>£»'
case of LIRING-3/LIRING-4 the situation is further complicated 
by the fact that PBRUMEN nationals at home and in LIRING (the 
main target against whom the two have been directed) have ■ 
long suspected their motives for maintaining contact and 
wanting to cooperate with them. The ups and dovus of the 
LIRING-3/LIRING-4 marital relations have from time to time 
further complicated the conduct of operations involving them. 
The Station can understand that Headquarters has some reser­
vations on the conduct oi these operations. They have been 
COSnllCBt9(l ti—G cnncnmi ngond hSYS blOWH hot COld 
depending on the state of mind of the PBRUMENers at the time 
and the difficulties between LIRING-3 and LIRING-4. Because 
of incomplete control, an almost inescapable feature of this 
type of operation, a considerable effort was made to check 
the reliability oi LIRING—3 and LIRING—4. This involved ; 
LIFEAT coverage, audio monitoring (LIROSIN), and occasional

Continued

Attachments:
Reports (15), u/s/c
Identity Sheet, u/s/c

Distribution: J
Orig & 2 - C/WHD (w/atts - 1 copy att A; 3 copies

att B)
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surveillance by the LIEMBRACEs. The results, at least in the 
PBRUMEN phase of this operation, have been unspectacular so- 
far. The main usefulness of LIRING-3 and LIRING-4 has been • 
a) as access agents to LIRING, (although this has been - 
largely reduced to the LIRING Consulate), and b) to introduce 
Wallace B. ROWTON to visiting PBRUMEN officials and members I 
of the local leftist community with access to PBRUMEN and ) 
LIRING. A major effort was started recently to take this ! 
operation up one more notch and, taking advantage of a recent 
crisis in the relations between LIRING-3 and LIRING-4, send 
the latter to PBRUMEN on a mission to assess and hopefully ; 
recruit new sources of information. The exploitation of 
LIRING-3's contacts with representatives of the Guatemalan 
FAR rebel movement was the object of separate correspondence. 
LIRING-3's renewed contacts with these representatives do 
not at this time involve PBRUMEN, although the latter clearly 
supports at least some of their activities.

2. Forwarded under separate cover are fifteen reports 
prepared by Wallace B. ROWTCN on the activities of LIRING-3, 
tvptx’g—4. and cn—o nf their contacts from late -Tanuarv to 
31 March 1968. The Station has noted Headquaiiers' desire 
for more frequent progress reports per reference A. It felt, 
however, that in this case partial reporting of LIRING-4's 
difficulties in obtaining a PBRUMEN visa (by far the most 
important aspect of this.- operation during the period under 
review) could have been misleading, as the situation changed 
several times and LIRING-4 did not really know what to expect 
from LIRING from one meeting with its representatives to the 
i-ext, not to again mention the ups and downs of the LIRING-3/ 
LIRING-4 relationship, which hit a new low during this period. 
The Station would like to point out in passing that, in 
addition to cable reporting and dispatches transmitting; 
ROWTON's contact reports, the operations in which LIRING-3 
and LIRING-4 are involved in are reviewed in sone detail in 
the over-all monthly report submitted by the PBRUMEN Section 
of this Station. '

3. The last time LIRING-4 accompanied LIRING-3 to PBRUMEN, 
she obtained an entry visa in a few days. LIRING-4 thus felt 
that as an ex-enployee of LIRING with good connections in 
PBRUMEN and LIRING she would obtain a new PBRUMEN entry; visa 
fairly easily. Entry visas are now quite a bit more difficult 
to obtain, however, for PBRUMEN nonofficial citizens abroad. 
It also appears that the LIRING staff did not really know 
what to make of LIRING-4's stated desire to return to PBRUMEN 
for an extended period of time, as this was obviously based 
on a domestic quarrel. LIRING-3 and LIRING-4 have had other 
quarrels, and the LIRING staff may have thought that this last 
one would subside and that LIRING-4 would postpone or c'ancel 
her plans for going to PBRUMEN. It was to convince the’ LIRING 
staff that the difficulties with his wife were serious {that 
LIRING-3.first went to LIRING. In a maneuver to further 
convince the LIRING employees, particularly LIRING-2 arid 
LIRING-9, that LIRING-4 seriously wanted to go to PBRUMEN as 
a result of domestic problems, ROWTON decided to have LIRING-3 
openly question LIRING-4*s right to take- their child with 
her. It must be remembered that, in Mexico, a wife cannot 
leave the country, and especially take a child with heri, without the express and official, consent of the husband* This 
little scenario appears to have been well played. On the 
other hand, it did not help LIRING-4 obtain a visa any {faster. 
LIRING-2 appeared to be waiting, among other things, for 
LIRING-3 to arrive at a decision regarding their child{accept­
able to his wife. LIRING-3 finally "agreed" to let LIRING-4 
take the child at his 26 February meeting at LIRING. “pro 
days before, LIRING-4 had been told by LIRING-2 that the
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"consejo superior" of LIRING, of which he said he was a member, 
had not yet taken up her case. This was indirectly confirmed 
by LIRING-16, who told LIRING-4 the same day that nothing ' 
about her visa case had yet been sent to PBRUMEN as he would 
otkc-ifcisc k>;ow it, circa he handled all vis-1 correspondence.

4. There is naturally the possibility that LIRING-4 s 
visa request was handled by LURING via classified correspondence 
not seen by LIRING-16. This channel may have been used because 
LIRING-4 s visa request brought out the old problem of 
LIRING-3's reliability in the eyes of the PBRL'MENers. Although 
LIRING-2, LIRING-9, and Identity appeared sympathetic toward 
LIRING—4 and her projected visit to PBRUMEN (to the point 
where they advised her on more than one occasion not to come 
back to Mexico), they, at the same time, sought to clarify 
two things. They first made another attempt to throw some 
light on the sources through which LIRING-3 had obtained 
information of particular interest to LIRING. Secondly they 
brought up the question of "the Greek” (ROWTON) and tried to 
obtain answers to pertinent questions. LIRING, as mentioned 
by Doth lulKlAu-k and identity, uvu used tv* 
sensitive information without at the same time obtaining good 
source description. Specifically, how did LIRING-3 hear of 
the arrest of the LIRING member involved in a subversive case 
.’.n 1966, how did he learn of its proposed publication in the 
press of a Central American country, how did he obtain the 
report on Rico GALAN which he passed to LIRING, and how could 
he have learned of certain of the activities of Moises OROZCO 
Leal? To all these questions LIRING-3 replied by saying that 
he had good sources in Mexico and Central America and that he 
was not about to divulge them to the PBRUHENers. Both LIRING-2 
and Identity in their conversations with LIRING-3 and LIRING-4 
took pains to say that LIRING-3's conduct in his dealings 
with LIRING and PBRUMEN was "above reproach." They wanted to t 
be sure, however, that he "had not fallen victim to unscrupulous 
elements constantly surrounding the revolution." To quote the 
old cliche, LIRING-3 "got their message."

1

1

5. ROWTON’s introduction to LIRING-2 and other LIRING 
members by Rodolfo REYES Cortes and his subsequent meetings 
with LIRING-2 were bound to make the latter somewhat curious 
about this wealthy Greek businessman and proclaimed friend of 
"the revolution" who seems to travel extensively and appears 
to have well-informed and influential friends in many parts 
of the world. LIRING-2 was apparently ruffled by ROWTON’s 
criticism of the LIRING efficiency (see ROWTON’s report dated 
1 January sent as an attachment to reference B) since he 
finally phoned ROWTON’s "office" after the incident described 
in ROWTON’s 1 January report. For some reason LIRING-2 made 
the call on a legal holiday when offices are usually closed, 
and the operator of ROWTON’s answering service answered 
"Mr. ROWTON’s (in alias) office." This apparently made 
LIRING-2 even more inquisitive. During a one hour meeting 
at LIRING on 15 February LIRING-2 asked LIRING-4 about her 
relationship with "the Greek." LIRING-2 wanted to know where 
and for whom he worked, et cetera. ROWTON’s report qf 17 February covers this conversation in detail. LIR^NG-2: 
appeared to suspect ROWTON may have been one of the sources 
of the information passed LIRING by LIRING-3 and warned 
LIRING-4 "to go easy with the Greek,” if not for herisake, at 
least for LIRING-3, who "has not always treaded on firm ground." 
LIRING-4 provided some "information" on her Greek acquaintance 
on 24 February. ROWTON, who had briefed her in derail on what

FORM
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she should tell LIRING-2, felt, after listening to LIRING-4's ! 
report, that the latter had at least partly succeeded in I lessening LIRING-2’s suspicions. These suspicions may have j 
been further reduced after LIRING-3’s discussion with LIRING-^ 
on 26 February. ROWTON did expect LIRING-2's questions and 
felt in the end that he had "passed the test."

6. The Station does not know at this point whether 
LIRING-4 will get a PBRUMEN entry visa but is still optimistic 
that she wi'l. The PBRUMENers appear convinced that there is 
serious trouble between her and LIRING-3, and LIRING-1, to | 
whom LIRING-4 wrote for help recently, asked her to be patient,, 
pointing out that red tape in PBRUMEN takes time. The I
possibility that the PBRUMENers may allow LIRING-4 in their j 
country to interrogate her about the activities of her husband 
and some of her friends has occurred to ROWTON and the Station. 
Such a possibility is, however, most unlikely as the object 
of the PBRUMEN suspicions is LIRING-3 and net LIRING-4, who 
has several times told them that she knows little of what 
LIRING-3 does. The most important consideration, however, is 
that LIRING-4 is married to a Mexican citiz'. n, and as 
suspicious as they may be of the latter’s doings, the 
this Mexican has done anything against their regime. On the 
contrary, LIRING-3 has time and again warned them of impending 
difficulties or problems. The fact that LIRING-4 is married 
to a Mexican and that she enjoys the status of immigrant in 
Mexico is also the best assurance that she would be allowed 
to return to Mexico, as the PBRUMENers want no trouble with 
the Mexicans. The SGSWIRL examination recently given LIRING-4 
has cleared the air at least on two points. First, that 
LIRING-4 is not an enemy penetration, and, second, that ^he 

not Tsvsalsd th© natur© 3nd extent of bsi* contacts with 
ROWTON to anyone else than LIRING-3. The Station agrees with 
ROWTON that LIRING-4 would, if given a chance, prove herself 
to be a good asset. As for the question of being left with 
continuing obligations in this operation, both LIRING-3 and 
LIRING-4 know that thore is lixtl© ROWTON could do beyond 
providing legal-type advice to bring LIRING-4 back to Mexico ' 
if the PBRUMENers refused to allow her to return to her husband, 
an unlikely possibility as mentioned above in view of current 
Mexican/PBRUMEN relations. The letter of understanding signed 
by LIRING-4 specifies the extent of ROWTON's commitment and 
leaves no doubt as to the extent of his obligations. The 
Station hopes that LIRING-4's relationship with LIRING-3 will 
not improve with time to the point where she will lose the 
proper motivation and cover to undertake the mission to PBRUMEN 
for which she has been trained and briefed.

7. The attempt made tc exploit Carnen LOZADA's trip to 
PBRUMEN to obtain assessments and vulnerability information 
on a number of persons she knows who have operational potential 
turned out to be a complete failure. LOZADA ran into such 
difficult family problems in PBRUMEN that she had no timq (or, 
as it turned out, desire) to obtain the information requested^ 
of her. The strain of her personal problems was such, that 
she nearly had a nervous breakdown after returning to Mexico 
City on 16 February. Not even LIRING-3 could get anything out 
of her. The victim of a type of family blackmail by her pro-: 
AKTHUG husband, LOZADA returned to PBRUMEN on 15 March. 
ROWTON did not fare much better with Rodolfo REYES CorteS, 
who returned to Mexico City in early March. REYES, who is >preparing to go to Chile to put on a ballet performance,[has.! 
been extremely busy since his return with private and I 
professional matters. ROWTON nevertheless managed to debrief
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him at least partially on his contacts in PBRUMEN. The only 
concrete result of REYES' ti ’ 
which he made with Sukendah**HANAFI, --  —_________  —Indonesia in Havana. According to REYES. HANAFI expressed 
interest in meeting ROSTOV to "work something out” to the 
mutual advantage of both the Greek and Indonesian revolutions!. 
After a couple of phone calls, it turned out, however, that 
HANAFI would probably be unable to obtain a Mexican entry visla. 
The Station believes, anyway, that little would be gained by 
a meeting. From the information at hand, HANAFI is a convince 
leftist who does not lack for money and seems to have an > 
enjoyable life in PBRUMEN^ The Station is finally not I 
interested in the Indonesian "revolution" or in what HANAFI 
could do to help the Greek leftists.

rip to PBRL'MEN so far is the contact 
n*HANAFI, the ex-Ambassador of

ed

8. If she does not go to PBRUMEN an effort will be made 
to further exploit the antagonism LIRING-4 has developed for 
the personnel of LIRING in the course of her attempts to. 
obtain a PBRUMEN visa to obtain additional operational 
information on LIRING and its employees. LIRING-4 has been 
so humiliated and angered that she is willing to do literally 
a time bomb in the building if he asked her to do so. LIRING-4 
has already been used unwittingly for MECREDO purposes. It 
may be possible if she stays in Mexico City to use her in 
connection with an audio operation against the "safe room" of 
the LIRING Consulate.

for Willard C. CURTIS
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— 31 J^arch,1?68

Subject: SGSJ1RL Zxaninaticu of LIRI1G/4. ai* S-uABLE »4

1. LIP.IRCi/4 was given an oGSTIHL examination from about 1C3O until 
13GC cn 31/3/-S nt room 6C2 of the hotel del Bosque on Calle i-.elchor 
Ocampo. Howton rented the suite in the name hicolas Spyrcpoulos and no 
security problems were enccunted in using tais site. 1

2. nowton first proposed the examination to LIRI1.3/4., after discussing 

it briefly with LIR11.G/3, at "1600 on 30/3/68 in tee coffee shop of the 

Hotel nosque in the presence of the examiner. L/4*s initial reaction was 
almost identical th that of LIRL..G/3 - one of shock, indignation, and out­
right refusal on the ground that it was "servil” and beneath her dignity 

at any price. She made it clear that she felt she had been and was taking 
all the risks and couriered it completely unfair that she should have to 

hcrctlf to ruoh. a 1..sue cau uone nothing
wrong and in fact knew nothing about Heaton. At one point she commented 
that this whole thing made her think teat Rowtcn was an agent of WC?ACT. 
She did hot dwell on this point, however, or return to it subsequently.

; 3. In view of this unfavorably turn at the initial session -Hawton agreed
vrith the examiner that the latter should gracefully bow out and give xowten 

; a cnance to soften 1/4 up by a more thorough explanation,especially since 
1/4 refused flatly to accompany Rowton and the examiner to the safehouse

• room upstairs. Rowton then spent the next two hours explaining the test 
enphasing that it would not include any indiscriminate frivolous questions

{ and that L/4 would know beforehand what the precise questions were. Rowton 
cade it clear that he was interested mainly in determining whether L/4 had 
betrayed him to her LIRIHG contacts and had any sort of secret agreement 
with PrRUJ-Zi; to work against him. L/4 finally agreed to take the examination 
the following corning since as she stated her conscience was clear.

\ 4. The responses appeared favorably on pertinent questions and the control
’ question on any theft of money («uggested by ^owton on trie basis of the
? report given to him in confidence by liring/3 that 1/4 had taken 2,000
’• pesos from the LIKIRG safe which she. almost immediately replaced on his - 

insistence) proved to be excellent. 1/4 did not reveal tike specific theft
;• but she was evidently thoroughly convinced after the tes| that the SGU-IRL 

is reliable and cannot be beaten Rowton and the examiner J felt it unwiSe to 

break her on this control question since it ifould prove counterproductive 
and would probably expose 

1 as an excellent deterrent
•i 1/4 and evaluation of her

L/3 as the source. i'he test will proably serve 
and adciti nal control for future assessment of 
re?crKapflrt ’ 

w GUri ballace B.jRowton
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“ 24 ;.arcb,<?6, ' i I
Subject: LIRli.G/4 Report of Status of Request for Re-entry Permit.

1. Houten met with LIRIDG/A at her request at 1630 on 23/3/66 at tkie 
Denny’s Restaurant (Refcrca ... Diana) to discuss the status of her visa 

(re-entry) request. 3he stated that she had ^ust received a letterrfrom 
her friend Doctor Yolanda Diaz, transmitted through Jorrln and riven to her 

by the latter that sane morning. The translation of the text of the letter 

is as follows:
"Ano del Guerrillero Heroico” 
La Habana.Pebrero 9/68

Sra. " •
Mexico,D.?. ■

forirr Dear • T to you xast night when ve spoke
(cn the telephone) the processing of your entry is being held up 

because of a number of things that have to be done which in Xte 
view of the priorities you known exist result in itfi not being done 
as rapidly as one would wish.
I don’t thirik you should be discouraged and rest assured that as 
soon as it comes through, we’ll advise you, especially since Abreu 
is going to follow it through. Hisses to your child and regards 

to Carlos.
/s/ Yolanda

2. The letter, a copy of which was made by nowton, also contains a P.3, from 
Abreu, a translation of which follows:

I’m taking an interest in your matter. As Yolanda explains 
red tape takes time. I received your cable and letter.

Fondly,
/s/ Abreu

3. LIRIDG/4- called to Rowton’s attention the length of time ( almost six 
weeks) for she letter to reach her dispite the fact that Abreu himself most 
probably forwarded it through the pouch. 1/4 commented that when she re­
marked this to her friend Catalina Cepero, the latter stated that she had 
received a Itter in the pouch the same day but it was dated- in December,1967, 
and another from Yolanda dated February 9,1966. I j

4. LikL.G/4 also reported that she had finally managed to talk with her 
father on the telephone, and,although he appeared uneasy and somewhat abrupt 
(seco), she was reassured thut he was in reasonably good health. !3be finally 
assured •mwton that she no longer suspected him of any foul play and agreed 
that her father was apparently acting.on the advice of his lawyer in con­
nection with the visa reuqest of her brother (to emigrate to the U.S.);that 
was being processed in iiew York.

a a aowton

I
r
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Subject: L1H1--2-/4 Report of Hews Concerning her father in , f.ew ifork.

t

1. At 1 SCO on 22/3/33 Rowton visited LIRZHG/4 at her residence to 'discuss 
with her a report she bad received from a mutual friend concerning her fa­
ther. Larlier in the day LIRZ>G/3 had inforned aowvon that LI£IEG/4 had re­

ceived a disturbing piece of news to the effect that someone Had. approached 
her father in Lew fork ^ity and told him to break off all contact with LI- 

•tIKG/4 in order to avoid jeopardising his residence in the U.S. According 
to LZR1LG/3, T.IHTG j/4 was convinced as a result of this report that Rowton, 
and possibly with the knowledge of LIRI2.G/3 himself, had arranged this ap­
proach to preclude any cssccntact L/4 night have had with her father that 
sight jeopardise her mission to Havana. Rowton assured LLRIKG/3 that he had 
take no such talk tc IGRUG/’r her <u.ao sxnce
according to LIhHG/3 she was very upset and. her confidence in both Rowton 
and LHH.G/3 hipself shaken.

2. Sowton reassured L~RI:<C-/4 when he saw her but, of course, could not- fur­
nish proof of any kind that he had not intervened. He asked several tin® the 
identit/y of the source, out HRlLG/4 seatfastir refused to divulge it, say­

ing only that a lawyer friend of her father had written to her stating that 
the reason her father had not communicated with her over kkak the past three 
months and had net answered her letters and telephone calls was that "they" 
had told him not to maintain ary contact with his daughter at the risk' of 

losing his residence ir. the U.S. Rowton asked whether the lawyer's name was . . 
rortuondo (a lead furnished by URIUC/3) but I./4 would not confirm or deny ». 

this, syaing simply that she would look into the matter herself. She said 
that she suspected ^owton since he was the only person to whom' she had given 

her father’s address in Lew Tork and she c:uld not imagine why: any other 

person would have a motive to contact her father in that way. She added that 
if her father had just given her some sort of explanation she could under­
stand, Hut acting the way he did indicated that someone had terrorized him 

into sonplete silence. Rowt^n again insisted that he did.not in any way-------- ----
contact her father, and would never have done so without first! consulting 

her. Ee surmised that possibly her father’s lawyer had counseled him to 
break off contact in connection with the application her' father was' making ft 

for a Visa for LISTLG/4*s brother on the ground that the American authorities 

night deny the visa if they knew of LIRIHG/4'a previous employment in the 
lIRIliG offices.- • ■ j !

tfallace 3. Rowton



12 March,1988

1. Rodolfo Reyes Cortes informed -o-'tcn 8/3/68 that while in Havana 
he discussed with his friend Sukendah Hanafi, ex—Ir.dcr.esian Ambassador 
to^Cuba, possibility of collaboration with his Greek leftist businessman 

friend both in international commercial deals and politically. According 
Reyes, Hanafi expressed immediate interest, accepting Reyes' word that he 
could place full trust in Howton. Hanafi stated that he felt something 
could be worked out to their mutual advantage of both the Greek and the 
Indonesian revolution, since he had contact himself with the liberation 

army of Indonesian.

nerferablv in "
return to Mexico vity, ikxizaxxxxxxxxxxkzxxExldxxraiEz Hexict vity where 
Reyes could make the introduction personally, cut indicating that he might 
run into difficulty in obtaining a visa. He added bat if Eexico ^ity not 
possible he would travel to Paris where he has never had visa trouble.

I
3. Reyes reported to Rowton on 11/3/68 that he had t?lked to Hanafi on 
telephone xhx asking him arrange trip soonest to i.exicc vity, but Hanafi 
had replied that his initial check had revealed Mexicans would insist on 
clearance with Indonesian Hsbassy Eexico City prior to issuance of visa. 
Hanafi added, however, that he taking matter up with Raul Roa and night 
be able arrange sens sort of official travel to facilitate issuance of visa 
He promised advise Reyes soonest since he aware that Reyes must leave for' 
Chile by end Earch (as scon as his wife, Tatiana, obtains Chilean visa).

' ' RBRowton . | .

I ;
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UrtI’JG/4- reported also that L/2 told her that
Raniro Abreu’s home address is |

CalleHerreria 4-1 
esquina Lacret

Santo Suarez
La Sabana



9 Karch,1963

Subject: LIRIHG/4 Report of Contact with LIRlhG/2 and LIRILG/9.

1. At 0930 on 9/3/63 L1H-1.G/4 reported to Ro.rton that she had again on 3/3 

Visited~the LIRIlHG^establishheht-to check on the status of her re-entry 
permit. She stated, that LIRIAG/2 was cordial but politicly passed the 

buck cn her re-entry permit to LIRI2.G/9, stating that it was a natter for 
L/9's office and that in any case he hisself was so busy looking for a 
house for the Chief that he could not do anything else at the moment. He 
said in passing that he had to go to Acapulco that evening and would be 
there until Sunday night ( 10/3/6-3). He jokingly invited L/4- along for 

the ride. He also commented that be himself would be back in Havana about 
June and why didn’t L/4 wait tv go back with him. He added that in any case 

he hoped to see her there.

2. LIS1KG/4 also reported that Scheuendia ( Ismail Suarez de la Paz),who 

happened to be present when she was talking tc L/2, commented that his wife 
would be leaving on the 11 i-arch flight and that he himself expected to be 
returning in about two weeks. L/4 then commented sarcastically that at the 
rate things were going with L/2 she would probably be still waiting for her 

entry permit when he left and in that case he could personally expedite it. 
1/2 then by way of apology stated that the mother-in-law of the Swiss Am­

bassador had been waiting for over three weeks for her entry visa and there 
was nothing he could do to speed things up from this end. L/4 replied that 
this was after all little consolation for her, although she felt .very sorry 
for the Swiss mother-in-law. . J

3. LIRIKG/4 continued to Rowton that she then spoke briefly with LIRILG/9 
who greeted her cordially and asked her to take a coffee with him in his 
private office. Cn entering this office L/4 noted that the plaster had falle: 
from the ceiling just above the desk and L/9 commented that kaxpi it had 

just happened the day before and that he hoped to have it repaired soon. He 
added that he would also be getting better furniture and some pictures to 
decorate the bare walls. L/4 noted that the phone was still attached to the' 
wall and no lamp of any kind was in the room. |

4. According to L/4, LIRI.G/9 is still waiting for a reply from Havana re 
her re-entry permit, and hoped to have some reply by 11/3/68.) His secre­

tary privately assured L/4 that she would let her know at onefe if anything 
came in. LIKILG/4 also reported to F.cwton that she talked to her fitendc$ copi r
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2- i ,

Yolanda Diaz on the telephone as a follow-up on her telegran to ask 

Raniro Abreu to expedite her request for the re-entry persit.'LA told 
jfowtca that Yolar.ua expiairec teat she had been unable to contqct Abreu 

at first but finally got to bin on 8/3/68 and he pronised to do what he 
could soonest, although he cemented that it would beiiapossible to do 
anything over the week-end. 1
5. LI21-<G/4 also reported to Rowtcn that she had talked briefly with srta 

Espercn of L/2’s office and was surprised to hear her complain of the "in­
supportable" conditions under woich she had to work. Srta Espercn said 

that she had been exployed in the LIRIL'G offices for the past’38 years and 
prior to the revolution had. been relatively happy. Lately, however, every­
thing was full of nystery, all doors and cabrnets locked up, and nobody 
uiuovxxiA a -yone. one connoea an JL/a- tnat she had had enough (“harta") and 
was afraid that she would have to leave, abandoning any hope ihe still had 
of getting her pension after so nany years.

«3.XXa.C6 3« ROwtOXi
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,, C 1 March,1953 ! - j.

Subject: Miscellaneous Information Furnished by LIRIi.:G/4.

1. At his meeting with LI..II<G/4,on tee nornin; of 1 March, 1968, Rowton 
asked L/4 for various miscellaneous informauicn that might be ofuse to
the—Station.__ L/4 recalled_that when she worked in the Consulatejoffice,
the combination of the safe was as follows:

4 times to right.stopping at 10, 
3 tines to left, stepping at 65, 
2 times to right, stoppingat 75» •
then turn to left until one can feel tumbler drop in place.

2. L/4 also furnished newton with information for the attached sketch of 
the consular office where she fnr^.erlv *he l<w*tinn of
the safe (in the corner concealed behind a wooden door locked by key). Like­
wise 1/4 gave details of the office f Abelardo Curbelo wnich she stated he 

sheared with his new secretary,Conchita - the wife of the Olympic Attache.
i

3. 1/4 also told Rowton that she learned recently from Jorrin that all 

confidential papers are now handled arid processed by one person. 1/4 added 
that she learned from conversation with MercededMartinez Moreno de Gonzalez 
that she is in fact the person handling the confidential documents. She r
stated to L/4 that she has to process the confidential papers of all the 
offices, specifically Curbelo, Cicard, Luna, as well as her husband’s,(Crux) 

and Martinez*. L/4 explained to Sortonthat previously each*office handled 
its own confidential documents, and filed then in their respective safes.
4. L/4 also gave Rowton the form given her by the Consulate to be filled in 

for the "Registro de Ciudadano- Cubanos". L/4 explained that' she alleged 
that she had lost the original form give n to her and thus obtained another 
so that she could provide Rowton with a sample of the form( attached here­
with). ■ | .
5. 1/4 also reported that,as Rowton had requested,she typed out a letter to 

her father (gi/en to the Station) at 1330 on 1 March, 1953, oh the consulate 

typewriter. She regretted not having been able to obtain the name of the 

typewriter since it was not visible on the case, .then she asked Adia £. 
Lopez de Valdes the name the latter surprised her be saying that L/4 was 

the second person to ask for such information that day. In view of that 
comment, 1/4 felt she could not press for the information desired.

1 . . .

* •• ’ ■ ?
• ’ ' j
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• ■ ' 27 February,1968

Subject: LIHII.G/3 Heport of Conversation with LIi<li;G/2. ;

1. At 0930 on 27/2/68 LIH1HG/3 reported* to .-towton that he had spoken 
briefly to Schemendia (j.snail Suarez de la Faz) on 24/2/68 and to LIHILG/2 

at sore lengtn cn 26/2/6S- in the LIkZLG offices. L/3 expralned to aowton
that Hchemendia had passed a message to him through L/4 that he wante-u. to
talk to him and that he would telephone himto arrange a meeting. L/3 con­
tinued that xchenendia finally con acted him by phone at about noon on

24/2/63 and asked him to come to the LJxlLG office that .afternoon. L/3 
told Howton that when he finally saw Lchemendia the latter was: very vague 

ana general in h_s statements and that all he could gather from his state­
ments was that Lchemendia was apologetic for the "...isunderstandir.g" that 

had arisen as a result of L/^'s request for a re-entry permit., Hchemendia 
stated that "we" are concerned that L/3, whom they considered honest and 
above reproach in his dealings with PBHUiL2.:j might have fallen victtn to 
unscupluous elements who constantly surround the revolution. L/3 confeosed 
to iiowtn that this vague and almost incoherent line of Hchemendia annoyed 

him to such an extent that he felt it useless to continue his conversation
with him and as a result terminated it at the first opportunity.
2. UKlliG/3 continued thathe net with LIaILG/2 on 26/2/63 at the latter's 
office with much more fuitfjjl results. According to L/3, 1/2 began by 
stating that "they" appreciated the information L/3 had passed to them at
various times in the past, specifically the repent of Julian Lopez' arrest, 
the proposed publication of the a.rest in the Guatemalan press, the report 
concerning the letter of Hico Galan and the Orozco afair, >but they were 
frankly perflexed with regard to the so.rce of such sensitive information. 

1/3 told Aowton that he explained to 1/2 that he had excellent Central Ame­
rican contacts,as well as Mexican sources in good positions, who could fur­
nish such nnformation wit out naming anyone. He tcld L/2 that he had no in­
tention of jeopardising his business contacts by revealinq their identity, 
and he felt that whet he had done was in the interest of and the
revolution, and that 1/2 and his friends should dot lock algift.horse in the 

mouth and see spies behind every blade of grass, just becasue they 
themselves had no capability to check out his reports.

3. 1/3 then told Aowton that 1/2 asked directly aboot "el 
relationship to L/3. L/3 stated that he feigned surprise 
Grdek", aiding that he knew several Greeks in Guatemala, '

. Griego" and his 

> and askedfihat 
5 enezuela and Me­

xico. L/2 clarified by stating that he meant the Greek introduced to him

cs con;
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by Rodolfo Reyes. L/3 then exclaimed: "Ch, you ~ean se.'ior HarrisJ" to 
which L/2 replied ii cue afairmative. L/3 then explained that he felt that 
sr. Earris was a high-minded revolutionary with high level contacts through­
out the world developed unrough gis easiness kxxxxczk relationships who baa 
helped bin a greau deal over uhe past too years both financially and morally 
n~ then asked L/2 . aau . -...jo.-. in.. -uicnel business, co rich L/2
repiled that he knew practically nothing, L/3 told ■“•owten that he then 
closed in with a senewhat elaborate explanation of how inrernacicmal bus±^ 

nessmen acquire valubable bits of inteeligence with trying as a result of 
the sensitive relationship they deielcp with political personalities in 
various governments. L/3 stated to *owton that he felt L/2 was impressed 

--------favorably_with his explanation,_since he finally stated that in reality' 
"they" (meaning iiiiaself, Sergio Martinez, Ismail Suarez de la Laz and 
Cepeda), the Consejo Superior de la Snbajado" had nothing against sr. Harris 

but simply that they did not know enough about him. L/2 then stated that 

1/3 must realize that the revolution was surrounded by provocateurs and 
that when they have the least suspicions that they must pur on "the amber 
light" of caution. L/3 then stated test his dealings with sr. Harris were 
sensitive high-level business negotiations for the procurement of sulphur 
and that he could produce documents ro prove this. L/2 replied thatthis 
was not at all necessary and that it was simply just a question of knowing 
a little more about the sources available to L/3 and abou: the "Greek". L/3 
conluded with a statement that L/2 must in the last analysis weigh the en­
tire affair in terms of whether L/3 in fact had ever done anything against 
the revolution. 1/2 replied without hesitation that everyone felt that L/3 
had always acted in good faith and h-d the best of intentions. It was simpl; 
that they felt that L/3 might have become a victim of a provocateur without 

realizing it. i
4. L/2 then stated that he had no objection to giving L/4 an entry permit 
but he hoped that L/3 was not just trying to solve a domestic problem by 

sending her back to her mother. L/3 replied that there was in fact a serious 

domestic problem and confessed th t he had had an affdir with another woman 
which 1/4 had discevered but he felt this was a very personal problem about 

which 1/2 should not be concerned. L/2 replied that he agreed with this and *
was concerned simply about the child whc88 he felt L/H- should be^permitted 

1
to take with her. L/3 tcld Rowton that he finally conceded to L/2 that per­
haps he was right and that he should be more considerate of L/4 and permit 
her to take the child to Havana. L/3 told Rowton that the meeting with L/2 

ended on a rather cordial note and that he had the impression that 1/2 would 
grant 1/4 the re-entry permit without further delay. j



25 February,1963 ; 
r

Subject: LIHILG/4 Report of Conversation with LIRZhG/2. f

— — 'J* I
1. LIMFG/4 reported to Rowton at 1G45 on 24 February,1963,■ that she 
had again spoken to iZ3Z'..G/2 about her entry remit to return to! Havana. 
She appeared depressed and began the conversation staring that she was 
“fed up” (hatta) with the LIkIZ.G office, explaining that she felt that 
she had been treated very unfairly and shabbily, particularly by* LIS1NG/2. 
She sta:ed that she had waited for several hours to see LZxtIl>G/2 on the 

croning of 23 February inside the premises of the LIRIKG offices but had 
finally to leave after only a few ./ords of conversation with bin. She 
related -that-LI.-2CG/2- and_UkIFG/.9_<ere_.occupied in conversation with 
2ugenia Clguln(who had recently returned fron a three-nunths stay in 

Havana with he sister Marcela) and she did not feel it proper to inter­
rupt to ask about her permit to return to Cuba, -hen she finally button­
holed LIRILG/2, he said that he would rather talk to her the following 
morning - about 1000, since it was Saturxday, explaining that he was very 
busy with a number of difficult cases.

2. LIXIM-/4 continued that when she returned to his office:about 1015 the 
following norming ( 24 February) she again had to wait about 15 minutes 

before finding LIHI1.G/2 alone, ‘i’o her annoyance he again brushed Her off, 
stating that he still did not h^ve a final answer since the natter hud not 
as yet been taken ur by the "consejo superior" of the establishment. L/2 
continued that he hoped to have sone sort cf decision by Monday and asked 
1/4 to see aim again. L/4 stated to Rowton that she could not contain her- 

feelings any longer and exploded in a burst of invective again the LIRING 
office, accusing then among other things of giving visas to all sorts of 
hippies and delinquents and making her wait on pins and needles when she 
had a right to return. L/4 then stated that just as she was leaving, she 
turned to L/2 and said:"Ch, I forget to tell you, but I sapaged to see the 

’Greek*’” L/4 told lowton that at this L/2 came suddenly back to life and 
invited her into his office again, closing the door and ushering her to 
a chair. She then stated that she had telephoned-“the Creek" (Rowton) on 

the pretext that she wanted him to buy some jewelry for her on Lis next 
trip to Switzerland and succeeded in having coffee with hijn at Sanborns. 
She continued that in the course of conversation she learned that bis tele­
phone is actually an answering se vice and hence operates ;24 hours -er day,

that he is interested in buying sulphur -n Mexico and (that his principal 
client -is the Greek shipowner, Marches. She then showed lj/2 a matchbox on 

which the Greek had written the naae Marches in both Greek and English



script, since she pretended to be curious about the spelling of the name. 
According to 1/4, 1/2 snatched up the natch-box with expressions of appre­
ciation, and continued to listen with interest. 1/4 continued that ths 
Greek explained to her the difficulties and complexities of working with ( 
the Mexicans in procuring sulphur and other critical produces, but;she 
confessed to 1/2 that she anew nothin:; about such matters and felt very 
confused, one commented, however, that the Greek appeared quite relaxed and 

willing to answer her questions. She added that shen she turned thej conver­
sation on Cuba, the Greek replied chat he was interested naturally as a 

good revolutionary, but frankly was very disappointed ("decepcionado") at 
the treatment received by the LLklxIG officials he had net, including 1/2. 

I
1/4-continued -that the-Greek -bad—commented- that-he-had-many-dealings with 

foreign officials in his noru:l business operations but had never encountered 
the discourtesv shown by "i ~r- o...u0 ulo tele­

phone calls. L/4 conluced wirh a statedent that she felt the Greek' was no 

longer interested in Cuba and assumed that he had obtained whatever’ infor­
mation he needed from other sources.

3. LI&IHG/4 then asked L/2 whether he needed any more information since she 

night be seeing the Greek once more before he left for Europe again. 1/2 
replied thet he appreciated what she had already obtained and added that he 
felt it wise in these cases to get to know the person "more and sore” before 
asking a judgement. L/4 told lowton that at this point she could not refrain 
from the outburst:“ 3ut you have known me for several years, and you still 
can’t sake up year mind, now meh tine du you need to figure things out". 
She told Howton that L/2 just smiled at this and again asked to be given 
until bionfay for the final answer re the permission to return. ;

4- . LIxIhG/4 then told Eowton that as she was leaving the premises,she stoppec 

briefly to chat with Jorrxn. The latter appeared genuinely surprised that 
HaIKG/4 had not as yet been granted her permit. When she commented that 
probably L/2 had to wait for a reply from Havana, Jorrin exclaimed:" Ko, 

that's not probable, since he did not send any cable on you; otherwise I 
would know". He added as an afterthought that possibly he could, have sent 

a dispatch which he would not know about, but he doubted that ^n viey of 
the time element involved. JcrrSn then commented that "everything "had changed 
since X/4 had left her job, explaining that now all confidential papers, 

not only from 1/2's oofice but also from L/9, theCearnerical Lection, and 
from "Luna's office" were handled by one person rather than asipreviously 
by each office, (L/4 commented to iiowton that she had never heard of' a per- ■ 

son by the name of Luna) and that things in generals had been'tightened up 
froi a security standpoint. r



I

<7

20 February,1963

Subject: Carren Lozada Statxents to LIHILG/3 re trip.

1. LIRILG/3 re.orted to ^ovten at 2130 on 19/2/68 that Carmen Lozada 
had telephoned him about 0'30 that morning and that he had seen Her 
again at her request. On thia occasion he found her relatively ^composed 

and quite coherent as compared to their first meeting since her return.

2. L/3 reported that she stated that the situation in Havana was ;
______ "chaotic^ --econc ically-a cisaster wdth no riceonthe-market,—gasciine---------------  

rationing ( 8 gallons per north for ordinary cars and 20 for larger) 
strictlv enforced and oolice control ■hrnftai’. thtt at;' th;
Havana airport everything is searched even of Mexicans as herself and 
what can be taken for personal reasons is removed on the pretext of 
having it "checked".

3. Garren Lozada stated specifically to L/3 that she had heard strong 
rumors in Havana that Fidel Castro would be replaced by lorticos mainly 
because of the failure of Fidel's economic policies. It was also rumored 
that sugar productions would fell far below last year's figure, possibly 
exceeding 4,0CC,C00 tons by only a fraction. 3ad fertilizer zzdxxxxaxEx 
SKXt is blamed but the genaral feeling is that it is rather bae management 
and Fidel's advisers are takinn the blame.

4. Carmen also reported that she had heard "confirmed" reports that Cesar 
Montes is no lonrer leader cf the Guatemalan revolucion, although, she 
could not say who had replaced him. i

! I ' ’’

! i ‘
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19 February,1£6c

Subject: LIRIHG/4 Report of Conversation with Hchenendia ( jsnail
Suarez de la Haz). .

1. Lll_L<G/4 reported to io-rton at 1000 on 19/2/68 at the Luca d’iste 
caf6 that she had met with achemencla for about one hoar on 17 Feb­

ruary at a small coffee shop off calls lachuca in Colonia Oondesa. She 
explained that see had telephoned nchemendaa frostae hone of her friend 
Blanca Pena de Anand and arranged to meet him about 1730 at 3 nearby corner.

2. —xl?dSG/4—stated“tbat^cbemendfa~was cordiai^as usual ”erd_tcld_ier that 

he hoped - locked forward- t. seeing her again whenever she felt she could

Havana and she informed hinthat she bored to leave on the 23 February 
flight. Bchemendia asked if she thought she night have difficulty re­
turning to Mexico, to which L/4 replied in the negative, commenting that 
in the past neither the Mexicans nor the Cubans had given her ar~ trouble.

I i i
3. According to 1/4, Bchenendia then queried bar in sone entail about how 
LLRI1G/3 was doing, his business in Chiapas, where they were living, and 

what his plans were. She replied in as matter-a-fact way as possible,al­
leging that 1/3 was selling his paintings and doing well in business.

4. Scheaendia then commented that the LZHZ2.G office locally had. commented 

re 1/3 that although they appreciated the information he had passed to then 

they did not have ths sources and details and hence had to view them with 
suspicion. Echemendia apologized to LIrfE”/4 for having to say this 
(ne da nucha pena) .but he felt obliged to pass it along to iher. He added 

that both Havana and LlnlliG are accustomed to get sources along with the 
reports turned in to then and always are uneasy when these iare lacking.

He agreed with 1/4 that 1/3 had acted in good faith, but also defended the 
position of the LIHIl.G office which he said was surrounded by prcvactions 
and infiltrations. . ..------------------------------------- - --------- -------------------------

I

5. 1/4 told Ro-tun that she did not tell 1/3 about this rerdevous with 
Echenendia ( whose a tenticns to 1/4 in the past have zade 1/3 particularly 
Jealous and annoyed) since she did not want to disturb hiaj LHIi.G/3» 

however, reported to nowton at about 2100 the previous evening (1c/2/63) 
in an obviously irritated tone that by pure chance he had seen Hcheniendia 

and iiaZRG/4 together at a coffee shop-about 1800 on 17/2/qS* when How ton . 
explained that he had known of and approved of the neetips beforehand, 
llail.G/3 calmed down and shrugged it off. •



4 February,1?iS8

I

1. HHII>G/4 signed contract with Rowton (alias) effective 1J> February 

through 30 April,1?68, providing payment for information and. services. 
No obligations specified other than financial(octal i75C.GC' for period 
specified). LIr.ZLG/4 also signed acknowledgement of alias “Maria larra- 

gan" which was used in contract and receipts for funds. !

2. L/% departure wnich original 1~ scheduled for 16 February,1c&c, will 
be delayed until following Friday to permit intensive co—oj and security 

training, and strengthen backstop for objective of trip. €mi12 February 
LIR1KG/2 told 1/4 that he would issue permit to return and.,?in expression 

apparently genuine sympathy, urced her take t”ip >■’-•'her? rhe
belonged". Cn morning 13 February fchemandia ( Ismail luarez de la Faz) 

who net L/4 by chance inside LlRIhg compound remarked. he nappy to learn 
she going back heme for a trip and then added "go back and stay*. Ee then 
invited her to lunch or dinner but L/4 felt it wise to turn him. dewn first 
time, whey had lunch inxxxK HU G dining room. On Eo.'ton suggestion she 
will, h owever, accept for outside lunch so sound him out further on his 
reaction to her return. I

3. Simultaneously in order build up conviction in minds LZxIEG officials 
that 1/4 returning becasue of marital problem with LIEE5G/3 X'<hich she 

herself stated to Howtcn that she hesitated tc reveal to am/une), Llu..G/3 
talked with LISI.G/2 in his office 13 February (at moment L/4 elsewhere 
in LINING offices) and pretended to have just learned of I/4*s reguest for 
permission to return. L/3 in angry tone alleged that he could not under­
stand why 1/4 would want to return, that he had treated her as well as he 

could, and that in any case he would not permit her to take -their daughter. 
IJRTNG/2 although obviously sccewhat embarassed took 1/4's p'art and urged 
1/3 to reconsider and give permission to L/4 tc take daughter along since 
she would be reluctant to leave as a "good mother". L/2 went so far as 
to state that if L/3 insisted it would be tantamount to "blackmail*’ against 
LIEILG/4. 1/2 continued that he felt obliged aS a LIRIi.G official;to grant 

LIRING/4 permission to return but he did not want to oblige her to depart 
without her child. LIRILG/3 told nowton that he did not give’ in and left 
LIRING/2 with the impression that his mind was made up regarding the
child. ft C0P1 !

4. LIRNG/4, who was not witting of the above action of HalsG/3, 'accepted
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agreed that child could not be properly taken care of at mother’s 
hone in Santiago becasue of short supply of essential food with n
parent p: 
correspondence with 
I.exico (to convince 
she established.

hat he:
L/3 etext for

frebuent

ove child, to Havana with her once

5. For hdqtrs
S/4 fee

RI13/3 wants 
c has become •ibl.

whereas ilEILG/4 still hoping against hope that their domestic difficulties 
can be patched up and that when she returns they can resume rorzal marital 

relations. She insisted to Rorton that she would remain loyal to him and 
co nothing to increase bis antipathy for her. (Rcwton feels this is t-ro— 
bably best control that can be hoped for in her operational work}!

6. Following lengthy meetings with L/4, Rowton has evelnved following
operational plan with her approval: ! ,

(a) LIRI1G/4 on arrival will re-establish contact with, and assess 
the following contacts: -; ; .

(1) Ramiro Abreu
(2) Arnol and Ruby (wife) Rodriquez
(3) Carmel Guj.lfr.ido i
(4) Cap-t Luis Carballo and wife i '
(5) Lelo de la -orriente t

\ (6) Hercedes Xcrales lereverent.
These persons will be referred to in 5/.-.; messages by number 
only for security reasons. 1/4 knows that numbers three and five 
have already expressed strong anti-revolutionary sentiments and 
will attempt discreetly to determine present attitude and access.

(b) Discreet efforts will be made learn of efficiency and nodus 
©peranoi of B33. UHI1G/4 insisted cn this for her! own. pro- 
tection since Horten alleged that he could not provide her with 
necessary briefing. She feels confident that she can get at 
least sone basic data from Ramiro Abreu. L/4 connected that she 
almost certain the 13£ de nanipluated by a "foreign service'  
since she certain that Cubans themselves incapble of efficient 
and. secure operations. i

1

(c) Aten L/4 feels she has reached point with any of a^ove that she 
can nake sone sort of "deal" (for instance assistance to! then 
from outside in exchange for help to her in finding "interesting 
ocsiticn" during her forced stay there) she wall notify Horton 
by 3/A and proceed further or withdraw as per instructions.

(d) In event.L/4 meets other persons who night prove rdcruitable 
she will mention their names xxx address and position in text 
of open letter tc 1IRIHG/3 a-ding that they send their regards 
and need, something no available in Cuba, uhe persods thus men­
tioned will be referrdd to in 3// by next consecutive number in 
subsequent messa-e. xorton has stressed that he interested only 
in persons in excellent positi.,ns and conceivably ^ecruitable. 
the list should therefore not be exhaustive. 1 !
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(e) LInIUG/4 will have two channels for 3/*. First to "Lie. 
Antonio Fence " wit's false reesm a dress and sent through 
open nail, and second to 1IF.F.' 1-/3 sent by hand through' Rhmiro 
Abreu to *L?.I:-'G office and ^e'ivered by band by Jorrln to 
Tacubaya apartment, or given by L/4 to sene friend traveling 
to Mexico. In first case all letters nailed, except;the frist, 
will contain 3/> message; in second case all letters with en­
velope bearing "Colonia Concesa" after address will'be for F.ow- 
ton and have 3/v. premises sent several letters) tc 1/3 
without messages as scon as she arrives to test channel.)

(f) Only channel for incoming masse res for L/4 will be letters from 
HHlhG/3 oz'daining uords" Chiapas’ and "arte" and either’ hand 
carried, sent through pouch, or through open mail, f

1

(G-) The following signals have been agreed cn for purpose specified:

0) Langer signal will be absence of name Zinzuni in open 
text to L/3. In nil ctner letters L/4 will mention name. 
In event hostile control child will be referred to by 
nickname, or euaeariLE .-j.llcsjxuu ^uu by

(2) "All my B-h* complex vitamins are gene” indicates need 
for new carbon. "1 have no more cologne that everyone 
liked so much" indicates used for developer.

(3) I ’®’ carbon sent to UHZXG/3 will be recognized by simple 
urawinr attributed to daughter and sent as
expression of sentiment by LIHIiG/3. 'i

I !
7. In reply her query re best course of action in event she has reports 
S3E planning arrest, F.owton advised LISl.iG/4 destroy S/w supplies, and 
take refuge in Mexican Embassy in hope that sice would be able communicate 
with LIxlLG/3 ( she did not ask nor did newton volunteer how she could 
notify bin since she assumes Howton would remain in continuing contact 
LI3I1.G/3). | -

8. 1IHI5G/4 encouraged by attitude and sympathy shown by LIH.lLG/2 and 
Echemandia re her remaining in Cuba, but she made it clear to Howton that 
she would not do anything Jeopardize her residence permit in Mexico or 
forfeit the time accumulated,unless ^owton could arrange have Mexican 
Ambassador in Havana renew her axxxxxx visa and assure her. She added that 
best approach would be return after tine up to attempt brings child back 
and at that time make new contract with Howton providing fori guarantees, 
aowton agreed stating that be not in position for many reasons,including 
security, to make such commitments at this time. 1/4 made it! clear to 
Mowton also that she realizes that he probably operating in an alias and 
is affiliated with sone sort of service or organization (this came out 
during discussion of contract and acknowledgement of pseudonym which she 
did not want) ,but she stated bluntly that she did not want to know any 
□ore about aowton than the little she already knew since "it would be 
easier to face an interrogation without betraying him completely".
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17 February,1963

Subject: LIRHG/4 Report of Questioning by LIRING/2 re Rowtdn

("The Greek"). ! '

1. at 1030 on 17 February,1963, LIKILG/4 informed kowton that she had 
dropped into the LIMING offices at about 1230 on 15 February and again 
on the norning of the following day to check with LIRING/2 concerning 
her entry permit for travel to Havana. Cn the first occasion LIRI-.G/2 
asked her casually whether she had seen anything of the "greek friend" 
lately. LIRII.G/4 told Rowton that she replied that she and LIRIRG/3 heard 
from him from time to time, mainly by telephone, and that he had invited 
her out occasionally, but she,LIRfiG/4, had turned him down.

O ~ — z* A ** - z-<. v- »- «— •*-V, rs ”1 «***»i^ •-» — VoSymI OT*'?• W —I • — ~~ ** —■ -» . • ~ - — z- - w ‘ J

LIRING/2 saw L/4 again on the premises and asked to not to leave until 
she lad seen him, since he wanted to discuss something with her. When she 
fihally saw him in his office some 30 minutes later, he again asked whether 
she had seen the "Greek", not mentioning Rowton by his alias (Harris). 
Since L/2 had mentioned L/4’s Greek friend whom he had met through Rodolfo 
Reyes on a previously occasion, LIHIL.G/4 felt she could not pretend wot to 
know about whom he was talking. She therefore replied again that occasional­
ly she heard from him when he was on a trip to Mexico. LIKIliG/2 asked 
what L/4 thought of him (the Greek), to which she replied that she found 
him pleasant and very generous ( bondadoso). L/2 replied, "Yes, but what 
does that generosity come from?" He then added that he had 'many question- 

marks concerning that person. He gave as an example the fact that when he 
telephoned his number on a holiday, 31 December or 1 January, his "secre­
tary" replied. It seemed very strange, continued L/2, that the Greek's 
telephone was manned at all times, night and day, and even jon holidays.

He then further expressed doubts about where this person lived and how 

he earned his money, and why he was so interested in Cuba. ■

3. LIRING/4 stated to Rcwton that she was st first quite taken aback by 
this direct "interrogation", even though it was made in a friendly tone, 
and replied as best she could by ear. Sne stated that she Assumed the 
Creek was carrying on lucrative business and lived in Europe although she 
could not supply any specific answers. She was aware that he had brought 
some of LIKIKG/3's paintings at an excellent price and tool): hisgenerosity 
for granted since she enjoyed living from the good businesi LIRING/3 gained 
through him. LIHING/4 then asked L/2 why he himself didn't[do some checking 

of his own, since she assumed the that USING office was capable of such 
1
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activity when the occasion aaVed for it. LLkl’.3/2 replied ■ that he had 
too many other things to do, and anyway, when something smelled bad 

("apesta") he keeps away from it. HRILG/4, continuing to jtake the of­
fensive, stated that on several occasions inthe past the Greek had invited 
her out but she had not accepted, but that she easily could accept cn the 
next occasion- and possibly even obtain a photo of sone, kind for LI4ILG/2. 

L/2 replied that a photo would not be of any use, all he could do with 

it being to send it to Havana. He added that he bad many suspicions,parti­
cularly as a result of the telephone, but had nothing concrete "in his 
hands", and that what be needed was "datos". \

4. LIRIiiG/2 then asked L/4 whether she knew when Rodolfo Reyes was return- - 
ing and where he would be living? -She told newton that she replied in the 
negative, commenting simply that she bad heard that he, would be moving 
to Chile to work in the national ballet there. 1/2 returning again to the 

Greek wondered why he was so generous with gifts and entertainment. L/4 
stated that she never looked a gift herse in the mouth, to which LIRIHG/2 . 
replied that she must be careful, if not for her own sake at least for the 
sake of LIRI1G/3 who, he felt, was nor treading on firm ground( "terreno 
firme"). L/4 admitted that she was often worried about L/3’s activities, 
©bovt which be "Cold, her alnos^- T./g ■then Hmmon-frad nZnvesiti^3,te
the Greek and you'll feel better." (Averigua lo del Griego). He then added 

that that supposed letter from Rico Galan was not considered authentic, 
and also the case of Orozco definitely involved the police.■ LIRIi1/4,since 
she was aware that L/3 had discussed both these cases with L/2, except 

that L/3 had not to her knowledge mentioned the arrest of Crozec, stated 
that she felt 1/3 had acted in completely good faith, even though he might 
have been somewhat inp’llsive ("precipitado").

5. LLRInG/2, continuing the conversation, which according to L/4 lasted 
over one hour,stated that both she and 1/3 nust be careful of their con­

tacts. He commented that he could not even go out on a date with a girl 
without thinking of the consequences. He could go out jonce maybe, but 
he felt it wiser to drop the contact for securitv reasonsL/4 told Rowton 

that she concluded the conversation with a premise to elicit as much data 
from the Greek as possible as soon as she could get in touch with him.

• 6. Rowton then tele 1/4 that he felt relieved in fact that 1/2 had brought 

this whole matter up, since it was better to face suchj an.interrogation 
here in Mexico rather than in Havana without the benefit of Rowtou's advice

I * '
- and briefing. He then stated that he felt it essential: that;, L/4 provide 

1/2 with much-heeded answers to his quetions. To avoik the' impression of

i
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collusion, Rowton suggested that L/4 see L/2 again and ask for iiowtcn’s 
telephone number, which she could, alleged she could not find at hcue-and 
which she preferred uui Lu ask L/3 for, in order not to arouse hio sus­
picions. Once she obtained the number she could allege .’that| she t-.lephoned 

Rowton on sone pretext ( provided if possible by L1R1HC-/2 himself) and 

managed to see him at lunch a few days later. She could than report to 
L/2 that Rowtcn had told her that his telephone was actually an answering 

service and hence only messages were taken around the clock. He had no 
need cf an office since he traveled in and out so often and his business 
did not require an office with the accompanying headaches. L/4 would con­
tinue that Rowton confided that he was working on sensitive deals to pur­
chase Mexican sulphur ( an expensive and difficult item to procure anywhere 
in the world at this tine ) and that his principal business connect!.n was 

with Stavros Kiarcos,the wealthy shipowner. His interest in Cuba stemmed 
from Niarcos’ desire to study the shipping possibilities there in the event 
the Lorthanericar. embargo was lifeted. ।

i

6. Rowton instructed L/4 to commented to L/2 that when she spoke of the 

LIRHiG office, Rowton appeared very irritated and remarked that he was I 
"decepcionado" with the tre tment he had received from both L/2 and the 
commerical office. If x>/2 appeared surprised and curious about tills, L/4 
could continue that Rowton commented to her that he could not understand the 
cavalier manner in which the LIR-lRGs did business. He cited the example of 
at least three telephone calls he had made some weeks previously to ioth 
L/2 and the commercial office, leavinf his name and telephone, and that 
no one had had the courtesy to reply. L/4 could then added that as a result 

Rowton was annoyed andhad decided to go directly to Havana to get the info- 

mation he needed on prospective business on behalf of hiarcos.

I 

Wallace B. Rowton
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• ■ 10 February,19&S

Subject: Briefiing in Communications and Security of LIRIKG/4.

1. Durinn the past four days Rowton has had daily meetings with LIRIKG/4 
to give her initial training in S/W and discuss channel's of । communication 

that night be used securely and logically by L1RI1 G/4 and Rowton. ^"con­
tract" to serve as a letter of understanding for both Rowton and. LIRILG/4 
was drafted as a basis for present and future colaboration. Ko reference 
to uGFAGT was made or implied, but Renton made it clear that he had "fireadj 

and colleagues” who were interested in intelligence coverage of RBRUkuL .. 
and who would carry on his collaboration with LlRIi:G/4 in the event of 

Rowton’s death or unavailability.

2. The first item discussed was a simnle oner- code to rnot.n ..a-nenn. 

of interest either as targets or possible hostile elements, so that 1/4 
could mention these persons in the text of her 3/W correspondence without 
compromising herself. A list of the persons concerned with She code nenes 
is attached herewith. LIxiiEG/4 understands that these code names will not 
be used in open letters to LIRIKG/3 under any circumstances.

3. As far as letter drops are concerned, Rowton instructed HRlRG/4 to 
send her S/'i messages with innocent text cover to the following address:

Lie. Antonio Ponce Cortes, 
I-lultifamiliar Miguel Aleman 2-326 
Mexico 12, D.F. :

using a national return address that could not be easily traced, and drop­
ping the letter in a public mailbox in the center of town. Rowton dia not 
give 11BI1G/4 an indicator for the cover text since it was understood that 

all messages, except the' first, would contain an S/w message. LIRIRG/4 pro­
mised to nail an innocent text letter as soon after arrival as possible so 
that Rcwt.n would have a g_od idea of the lenth of tine involved in his 
receiving future letters.

4. LIRING/4 was advised that she would receive S/~’ messages from Rowton 
on;the paper backing of seriographic designs ( Aztee seals) being produced 
by LIRH.G/3. The designs, prepared in the fern of greasing cards, would 

be addressed to a third party and contain a brief message of greeting in 

the handwriting of LIRIHG/3 and would be sent as an attachment to a rou­
tine letter from LIRING/3 sent by hand or through the LURING pouch. Both 
LIRING/4 and dewton agreed that open mail, since it woujld have to bear her 
true name and address, would be both too r3sxy and too jslow. In the un­
likely event of discovery,L/4 would have some way out, jalleging that she

f
i r : ' ‘
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had nothing to dm with the message tnd placing the blame bn LlRIld/3.

5. At subsequent meetings.however, LIRIl'G/b accepted the probable long 
delays in re.*, siring ue_s_rcs, both to and from her, involved in the 
open mail and agreed that it would be necessary to take the risk in- 
voided in sending at least some C the messages under cover of; ncmal 
correspondence to LIRIMC-/3. She also agreed with Rowton that sending 
S/w on the back of seriegraphic designs would constitute a pattern and 

might extract undue attention. j

6. It was therefore agreed that LIRI..G/4 would also -write S/w in letters 

to LIRIl<G/3 that would be hand-carried to Mexico by a friend or seat in 
the pouch and delivered by Jorrin to her Tacubaya address, ilowten strutted 

LIRING/4 to inserfColonia Ccndesa" in the address on the envelope if 
the letter contained S/w, otherwise leave out this addition. Since Rowton 
would have a key tc the Calzada Tacubaya apartment he cculd check regularly 
for any letters that Jorrin ai^hv eave slipped under the door during periods 
when LIR11.G/3 might be absent from Mexico City.

7. At his meeting with LIRING/4 on 14/2/68 the following additional signals 
were agreed on:

(a) Danger Signal : Omisicn of name Zinzuni from open text. The 
child would always be referred to in reguxar 
correspondence with LIRING/3 by name. In efent 
of hostile control, LIRli.G/4 would refer to 
child as "hijita" or by some ether.endearing 
name, but refrain from using her tirst name.

(b) New Carbon Needed: tc be indicated by the phrase "I need 
more vitamin B-12" or "I have run out of my 
B-12 complex vitamins".

(c) New Developer Needed: "*I have run out of that nice cologne 
I brought with me”.

8. As far as incasing Sfa was concerned, Rowton stated that if a cover 
letter from LIRHG/3 contained the words "Chiapas" and’arte" it would in­
dicate that an S/.« message was being forwarded in that letter.
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1> February,l963

Subject: LLil-3/3 Reporz of Heeting with Carsen Lozada.

1. At 2100 on lc/2/63 LIr.L.C/3 reported to xc.tcn that he had 
Carmen Lozada at about 1130 cn 17/2/63, at the square in Coyr.< 
explained that cn 15/2/68 their mutual friend, Ganen Edina, hhd con­

i’ 
tacted Carmen Lozada by telephone and bad learned that the latter planned 
to ret-rn to i-.exico the follo-inr day ( Friday, 16/2/6c). Carmen Lozada 
had told her cn the phone tc .rive her regards to her friend ( LIn.212-/3) 
but to ask his not to meet her at the airzport since she would be accom­
panied by her daughter and would be net by her parents cn arrival in Ke - • 
xico. LIdi-G/3 therefore contacted, her through Carmen holina on rhe 

morning of 17/2/63 and made the date to meet her near her parents heme.

2. L/3 uo-il^-td as soon as ue saw uarnen Lozada he knew at once that 
something unpleasant had happened during her visit tc Havana. He told Ho'rftci 
that she had apparently lest five or six pounds, was dressed in a slovenly 
manner and gave of appearance of a distraught person, almost cn the verge 
of insanity, .-.er me nr er and su.sequent conversation, often incoherent and 
half hysterical, confirmed in 1/3's mind that she was suffering from severe 
strain and depression. 1/3 told Rowton that he understood from her remarks 
that she had foazd the Havana airport, Havana, Cuba and the Cubans in 
general "detestable". She exclaimed at one point: "Cdio a esa isle naldital* 
She added that she was on the point of becoming an enemy of Cuba "(volverse 
gusana). In the next breath, however, she stated that she had to return 
"en pocos dias" as soon as treatment had been arranged for her daughter 

(suffering from asthma). 1/3, pretending to think that she had patched 
up things with her husband,Soricue, asked whether she had .been reconciled 
and found that she really loved her husband after all. She e&laimed, accor­

ding tc L/3, in a calf hysterical voice that she hated her husband and 
everything her represented. !

3. L/3 continued that despite his repressed questions Carmen Lozada re­
fused to give him details of what actually bad happened to her. She re— 
peatedly stated that she was under "intense, horrible pressure" that she 
could not explain, laen L/3 commented that L/4 was preparing to return to 

Havana, Carmen Lozada burst out again with '\ue horrible!“I but again did . 
not explain. In vie-, of Carmen Lozada's obvious state 
and physical disintegration,LIU..G/3 told nowton that 
terminate the meeting at the first opportunity (about 
gracefully as he could. He added-that when he left be 
her standing in a daze for a full five minutes before

of psychological 1
he felt it best to 
1630|) and leave as 

locked back to see 
walking off.v\2J

1
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Subject: LH1LG/4 Hepert of letter frer. .Maceiro, Vice Minister **

of .Education. ,

- 1. At 1CCO on 30 January,196-5, LIRIZG/4 reported to Eowton that 
she had seen Jorrin the previous afternoon and that he.had tlold her 

that he had been to her apartment the previous evening tut.had failed 
to find her or 1IRZLG/3 in. He explained that Lt. Karixelo,who was 
visiting Mexico City, had asked him to deliver to LIE.I212-/4 ax letter 
fron their autual friend, Dr. Maceira. Jorrln then gave ZIRI^G/4 the 

letter.

2. LXr-lkG/4 stated to Rowton that the letter was sienlv a request for* 
snoes for Haceira's child which could not be obtained in Cuba. 1S2IZG/4 

consented that this was ®nly another of a series of such requests that 
Kaceira and Figueroa cf the Ministry of Education had been making to 
her since their last visit to Mexico. She had in rhe past ignored the 
requests since she felt she had acne enough and could see no useful 
purpose in running around. town as a purchasing agent, particularly when 
there was no guarantee that they would reinburse her.

3. Rowton suggested that on this occasion, however, it night prove worth­
while, in view of Earinelo’s apparently important position in Havana and 
LIRIKG/4's forthcoming trip. Ee suggested that LIRlhG/tt purchase the shoo£ 
(about 50 pesos) and attempt to deliver then personally to karinelo; Ehe 

could then invite bin to lunch or dinner in the hope of assessing his 
present feelings toward the regime. LI2U;G/4 recalled that Harinelo had 

been Rector of the University of Havana and was a menber of the old guard 
coosunist party. She added that Jcrrin had mentioned that Xarinelo held 
Ambassadorial rank and was serving at the present tine jin sone sort of 

International delegation. '
i

4. ttrt?;g/4 also reported that she bad run into an old Cuban friend, 
Aralia Arizaendi, on the street, end that the latter tad given her her 
hone phone as ?3~79~95» UR1KG/4 explained that Ariznendi had; carried 
a Mexican psychiatrist and left Cuba sone years back. a!s far as she knew 

Ariznendi was sympathetic with the Castro regime and on sore or less 
friendly terns with LIRI^G. Cn this occasion Ariznendi Jjoked with L/4 
about the inefficiency of the 1IRIMG offcials, saying that the only per­
son she felt was doing a decent Job was Cepeda. !

b m i ;
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5. HRIUG/4- also r^porxea chat she hai written a snore letter to 
her negro nedical student friend, Yolanda, and droppped the letter, 
as requested by Rowton, in the open nail ( to ascertain the tire' taken 
to deliverrthe letter to Havana. LIRIlIG/ft gave Yolanda’s full Dane and 
address as: J

Yolanda Diaz 
lorvenir 112 - Depto 12, . 
entre Aguilera y Souza '
Lawton

Tel:

Vallace 3. Rowton

ts con



Separate Cover Attachment B to 
EMMA-34484

Identity: Ismael SUAB.EZ de la Paz



Reference: HHMA-31821, dtd 3 April 1967.
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Chief of Station. Bexico City
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5SL££T ____ ; _ J
A©JATIC/tIRIN^3^- UR03IN Reactivation of Audio Installation.

tcnoc Kau&ii - asrutsca —______ s
Actios Required: Hone

1. On 15 April 1968, circa 1410 hours, the audio installation 
described in reference was deactivated. The SPT-2A vas recovered 
by Valter V. CORNEURY and returned to Station stock. The LP equip- 
nent, an 8PR-2A and UHER 4000 L, will also be returned to Station 
stock.

2. Inas&uch as LIRING-3 and LIRINQ-4 were terainating their 
"lease" on the target apartment, it vas felt the SPT-2A carrier 
current transmitter would have to be reserved because of its shallow 
concealment. To continue the assessment of target personalities, 
however, we wanted to wait until alncst the last ninute. The week 
of 15 April 1968 vas selected as an appropriate tine by gallace B. 
ROTTON, who is in contact with the targets.

3. At about 1300 hours, 15 April 1968, Walter W. CORNBWRY and 
diver D. ClmuCn entered the LP and were greeted by UsGSirn who knew 
we were caning but did not know why. A check of the audio device 
revealed that LI RING-4 and a young (teen-age) male relative were in 
the target. This was as expected. At 1330 hours, LIRIHO-4 left., 
the apartment, alone, for a luncheon date with ROTTON. She returned 
a few ainutes later and made the male relative accompany her. (This 
was obviously at the insistence of 30WTOT.) The telephone nunber of 
the target apartment was tried a few minutes after their departure 
and vas not answered, again as expected. At 1400 hours a telephone 
call was received in the LP from the Station as a relay frea ECSfTOT 
that the targets were safely ensconsed for at least the next hour. 
(It vas known that URING*3 was out of the city.) Another ■ telephone 
call to target with no answer, and CORNBUEY entered the target



CONTINUATION Of 
DISPATCH SECRET BOTA'34491 ,

The vail plate was removed 
the 3PT-2A

1, the wall plate refastened, and the target apartsent 
Total tine about two ninutes. CORKBT7RY and Cl&XS left 

isaediately. There were no security prob’ass noted at any

■ apartsent using keys provided by ROTTQR.
- the AC lines to the SPT-2A clipped off close to the plug 

easily resoved 
vacated. 
the area 
time.

4. 
to stock

The LP equipment vill be removed by LIROSih and returned 
on 17 April 1968.

report
Pleas® note that no ATP sheet has been submitted with this

for/Willard C. COTTIS

i
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SECRET 151515Z APR 63 CITE MEXICO CITY 5225 ‘ S 9 I 29 B~

GUATEMALA CITY INFO DIRECTOR, TEGUCIGALPA ''"'“J”

REFS: A. MEXICO CITY 5111 y < / 6 /J |

B. MEXICO CITY 5141 '
__ ______ _ ____ _ _ y/ _ i L

1. wa'wA. u.xuAa a Awa. waaw.A. rnvr. X1UU, anU-KUt O. KUIHUh VAS ‘

GIVEN SEALED LETTER FROM LIRING-3 BY LIRIKG-4. LETTER INDICATED

A. LIRING-3 DEPARTURE FOR GUATEMALA AND HONDURAS DELAYED 

WHEN FRANCISCO LARA ACCIDENTALLY SHOT SELF IK ANKLE WHILE CLEANING 

GUN. LARA ANXIOUS NEWS OF ACCIDENT MOT REACH EARS OF FAR AS FAR 

MEMBERS FORBIDDEN CARRY .EA FOX’S IK MEXICO.

B. LIRING-3 DEPARTED IB APRIL WITH LARA AND OTHER GUAT 

WHO KEISER YON SOSA FACTION. LIRING-3 STATED IN LETTER THIS GUAT 

INSISTENT HE TALK DIRECTLY WITH YON SOSA.

C. LIRING-3 AND LARA WILL PROBABLY VISIT SAN SALVADOR IN 

ADDITION GUATEMALA AND HONDURAS. j

2. PER LIRING-4 OTHER GUAT VKl INTRODUCED TO LIRING-3 BY LARA 

AND IS PROBABLY RODOLFO SANDOVAL CALLED AT HER APARTMENT 9 APRIL 

LOOKING FOR LIRIKG-3 WHO OUT. SANDOVAL STATED HE HAD TO TJU.K TO 

LIRING-3 IN PRIVATE AS DID NOT WANT LARA LISTEN TO CONVERSATION.i 
SANDOVAL IDENTIFIED SELF AS MEMBER SOSA FACTION. EXPLAINED THAT;

SECRET
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ALTHOUGH SOSA GRC'JP A1O FAR NOW GENERALLY WORKING TOGETHER THERE

WERE STILL Ma NY THINGS “KEPT ON A COMPARTMENTED BASIS." ALTHOUGH

■ i.i.iiNG-4 uii) KOI »£r£R TO SANDOVAL IN HIS LETTER TO ROWTON, HE

MENTIONED THAT HE HAD ’LONG TALK” BEFORE LEAVING

3. LIRING-3 WILL KEEP ^OWTON ABREAST OF FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS

VIA ACCOMMODATION ADDRESS IN MEXICO CHY. WILL ADVISEj

SECRET
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SECRET 2600321 APR 6g CITE MEXICO CITY 5141 JJta»sB62S3
GUATEMALA CITY INFO DIRECTOR, TEGUCIGALPA

REF! MEXICO CITY 5111

1. ON 5 APRIL 68 STATION RECEIVED PHOTOGRAPHIC COPIES OF

GUATEMALAN PASSPORT WHICH LIRING-3 SAID FRANCISCO LARA WOULD USE

TO ENTER HONDURAS FROM GUATEMALA. COPIES INDICATE THERE WAS DIS-

CREPESCY IN NAME ORIGINALLY REPORTED IN REF AND NAME OS PASSPORT. 

CORRECT NAME IS JOSE MARIA OLIVA CARRANZA, ORDINARY GUATEMALAN 
PASSPORT NUMBER 134825 SERIE^D REGISTRY NUMBER £2743 ISSUED 27 MAY 

1963 IS GUATEMALA CITY. OLIVA BORN SAN FELIPE, RETALHULEU GN 

9 FEB 1935.

2. OTHER DOCUMENTS PHOTOGRAPHED INCLUDE MILITARY INSCRIPTION 

IN GUATEMALAN ARMY, CARD NUMBER 4S059, BIRTH CERTIFICATE NUMBER 

2825671, CEDULA DE VECINDAD 287165 AND ELECTIRON CARD 107817.

3. THESE DOCUMENTS PHOTOGRAPHED BY LIRING-3 WHEN THEY PASSED 

TO HIM BY FRANCISCO LARA TO USE IN MAKING FALSE MEXICAN DOCUMENTA­

TION. POUCHING COPIES OF DOCUMENTS TO ADDRESSEES, !

SECRET t '

SECRET
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eeoasssG actsoh

HJUKO KtJOtUHS

Chief of Statics, Guateraala City r\Q& 
7h£ef7~-W&steFn WalBp&erolHvlaioa 
Chief of Statioa, Tegucigalpa HHT

Chief ef Statics, Bexicc City 
aaS j n ? i 'I)

•cnoa nomuo-tsfsetcs

Actioa Esquired: Boa®; FYI

1. Attached

mo Bgzws cQ^aro 

C«T KJUff® OGK 
UM AMEUMXBG

tsaant

Mexico City-5111, dated 4 April IBM

for the Addressees’ lafcreation asd retention 
are copies of the doeweatattoa cited ia the r^f^reece above.

*-. ■ the.aliases of ^PraacisccAgLa.ra^'’ gi^ Cagtaaoda 
aBd^Jacinto'^'BASGEl. Cervaates, accordiag to LiKXli(>57

A.* Hext co for/MUlard C. C0B7ZB
Ccn:'p,

re' (tccunxr-TvJti

4ft? 1

As stated la Paragraph 1
Lfit/l

-" C ■' I c

x

X

es copy mstnootioo:
COS, Goateoala City v/att 
C/VX9 v/att
COB, Te'gocigalpa v/att

MMKM mm wo MUa

4 April 1MB
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MtCVOOCaBLI SECPfTaWtAT OtSSEMtMUnOB*

RET AFk 68 LITE MEXICO CITY 5111

UCL4SO '»■ wri—T<

( When in/ * •• -
RtPff-eevCTlOH OF This COPY PWOrfBH'ED *-

r»O€X lu YES D NO r

9Y
t fi

: 2 . > :
- 3 :

-» 4 ' ? !
L±i________J

GUATEMALA CITY INFO DIRECTOR, TEGUCIGALPA
REF: GUATEMALA CITY-8822 (NOT SENT TEGUCIGALPA) 6 4 &

I. AFTERNOON 3 APRIL 68, LIRING-3 REPORTED HE FLAGS DEPART

— •»* • t tv aamqm'v fM<«rrwi*i »n *'Y*t?cu cr>a®r*tc**n
• M> wwn * art*»r* v * • • « * n w -w •* o*- • -

LARA CIRCA 4 APRIL 68. ALTHOUGH LIRING-3 HAS VALID MEXICAN DGCU8EN-

TATIOH AND LARA HAS FALSE MEXICAN MINISTRY OF EDUCAT 10Ji DOCUMENTATION,

THEY WILL ATTEMPT ESTER GUATEMALA ILLEGALLY.
1 

2. IN GUATEMALA CITY, LARA PLANS INTRODUCE LIRISG-3 TO WOMAN

WHO LOGISTICAL OFFICER FOR FAR IS GUATEMALA CITY. TRIP WILL THEN

EE ARRANGED FOR LIRING-3 TO VISIT FAR SIERRA DE LAS MINAS HEADQUARTERS 

TO DISCUSS FUTURE SUPPORT OF FAR FROM MEXICO CITY.

3. AFTER APPROXIMATELY TEN DAYS IN GUATEMALA, LARA AND LIRING-3 

WILL TRAVEL TEGUCIGALPA TO INVESTIGATE POSSIBILITIES OF SETTING UP 

PRINTING PRESS UNDER LIRING-3*S TRUE NAME.

4. LARA'S FALSE MEXICAN DOCUMENTATION IS IDENTITY CARD FROM.

L SECRETARIA DE EDUCACION PUBLICA UNDER NAME JACINTO RANGELjCERVANTES. 

FOR IDENTITY CARD PHOTOGRAPH, LARA WORE GLASSES, HAIR DYED GREY AND 

J------ so MUSTACHE. LARA TOLD LIRING-3 THAT FOR TRAVEL TO TEGUCIGALPA’
; . ■ i r

i FROM GUATEMALA CITY, HE WILL USE GUATEMALAN PASSPORT UNDER BABE;
i

SECRET
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3 J •
■ AOWAMCC CO*** [ | asoco ( ] UXTTgO

•V----------------- -T:--------------------------------------2

OrtMM »*•—. _____ - — ma ______ • -

REPWOOUCTKX of THIS COPY PWCmiBjTEO
x :• 9

INOCt. uJ YES □ NO si 1O

CLASSIFY TO FILE NO _______ ___

X-REF TO FiuX no _

HLtfcO Lj «T TO M*AO^ D8STXOV

’ 1 1 CC*F*
INFO. p - - -

•«.«. VR. | .

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------—p-
PAGE 2 MEXICO CITY 5111 SECRET ‘ j

i
MIGUEL ANGEL OLIVA CASTANEDA. LIRIHG-3 WILL PROBABLY USE VALID

MEXICAN DOCUMENTAT 105. POUCHING COPIES OF LARA AND LIRING-3

DOClTiEtiTATION. t i

5. FOR TEGUCIGALPA: LIRING-3 (IDEN) IS STATION PEMETRATIOSj

OF GUATEMALAN GUERRILLA GROUP IN MEXICO CITY. FRANCISCO LARA IS

FRANCISCO ADALBERT0 LARA BARRIOS, GUATEMALAN REVOLUTIONARY WHO HAS

RESIDED IN MEXICO FOR PAST YEAR AND WHO CLAWS TO BE FAR REPRESEN­

TATIVE IB MEXICO

6, ALTHOUGH LIP.ISG-3 HAS TELEPHONE NUMBER AND POST OFFICE

BOX IN

rt ABLE

KEXICO CITY FOR STATION CONTACT, DO NOT BELIEVE STATION HILL

SUPPLY ADDRESSEES WITH INFO ON HIS TRIP TO GUATEMALA AMD

HONDIKAS UNTIL KE IS THOROUGHLY DEBRIEFED AFTER HIS RETURN TO

MEXICO CITY. WILL ADVISE

SECRET
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JURADC DELMAR, CARLOS
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RE DOCUMENTATION RECEIVED ON subj.

HGGHHT R 6804180322
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PRIORITY MEXICO CITY INFO PRIORITY DIRECTOR
REF: MEXICO CITY 5032^/4/ 2 3 fez S 3 0 3 I^S

1. RE PARA 4 REF: DUE 28 MARCH CHANGES WITH IS GUATEMALAN ARMY*

ICCLUSI-2 oZMCVhL Z7 oxalSTEn vF DEFENSE amzhEl. van.“iAtxA> xivSWuE* 

STATUS OF "OPERATION AZTECA” UNCERTAIN. COSSEQUESTLY STATICS CABBOT ! •

GUARANTEE ANY TYPE PROTECTION FOR LIRING-3 IS CASE HE CAPTURED. , ALSO 

NOTE THAT MEXICAN BORDER AREA BEING HEAVILY PATROLLED.

2. ESMOOSE-1 REPORTED THAT ON EARLY MORNING 28 MARCH ESSARVEL-1 

ALERTED SPECIAL COfwABDO UNIT OF GUAT ARBY CSCUGAJ TO BE PREPARED 

FOR IMPORTANT OPERATION. KE SAID INFORMATION HAD BEEN RECEIVED 

qTHAT GROUP OF THIRTY CASTRO CUBANS PLANNED ENTER GUATEMALA FROM 

MEXICO AND THEIR ARRIVAL TIED IN WITH WAVE OF TERRORISM AK3 

SABOTAGE WHICH REPORTEDLY TO TAKE PLACE 31 MARCH. £2?ARVEL-1
I 

DID NOT INDICATE/ SOURCE OF ABOVE INFO. HE SAID THAT REISFORCED 

SCUGA TEAMS WOULD BE SENT TO THE DEPARTMENTS OF SAS NARCOS AND 

HUEHUETENANGO ON MEXICAN BORDER* WITH A BACK-UP TEAM IN DEPARTMENT 

OF QUEZALTENANGO. SCUGA UNIT WAS IN PROCESS OF PREPARING VEHICLES < 
MD EQUIPMENT WHEN WORD RECEIVED OF REMOVAL OF ARRIAGA. | ESMOOSE-1 ■ 

SAID AS RESULT OPERATION CANCELLED. POSSIBLE HOWEVER T^AT SAME

SECRET Uh
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PAGE 2 GUATEMALA CITY 8822 SECRET
IRFO HAS BEEN PASSED TO MILITARY UNITS AT BORDER WHICH |..' 

- MIGHT MAKE LIRING-3’S CROSSING INTO GUATEMALAN EVER MORE > [

:.j DANGEROUS. ; ' ‘

-' 3. 703 7ARA 2 2370 LAS SUE- - • •

LACK OF CONFIRMATION AND SCARCITY OF DETAILS.' h

SECRET ■ . . ■■■-:
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PRIORITY GUATEMALA CITY ISFu DIRECTOR J
! i

1 J
REFS: A. MEXICO CITY 4828^/^ g7)

riistcmji a ctt* f55! £l Ioo$>\ '

C. MEXICO CITY 4486 (/jf5&3/2.)

1. OS 27 MARCH 63 LIRISG-3 REPORTED THAT GUAT FAR MEMBER

WHO PREVIOUSLY IDENTIFIED HIMSELF AS MIGUEL ASGEL OLIVA CASTASEDA 

IS ACTUALLY FRANCISCO LARA, 'PROBABLY IDENTICAL WITH FRANCISCO 

ADALBERTO LARA BARRIOS- AKA CARLOS LARA (REFS B AMD C). LARA 

INADVERTENTLY GAVE HIS TRUE SAME WHILE DISCUSSING WITH LIRING-3

THE PLANNED TRIP TO GUATEMALA, I

j 2. AT PRESENT, LIRING-3 MAKING FALSE DOCUMENTS FOR PERSONS

| HE TO LEAD INTO GUATEMALA. THEY PLAN TRAVEL SOMETIME BEFORE

I 31 MARCH. LIRING-3 TO ESTER GUATEMALA WITH GROUP IN ORDER MEET

UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN WHO IS FAR LOGISTICAL OFFICER. GROUP BELIEVES 
LIRING-2 SHOULD TALK TO HER IO DETERMINE WHAT SUPPLIES KE CAN Ma£|(, 

AVAILABLE TO FAR (COULD UNIDENTIFIED WOMAN BE DIAN ADELA JIMENEZ 
t . !

(H BRESY HOSEL CUENCA?) -------- H----------- j------ -

3. LIRING -3 IS NOU ATTEMPTING DETERMINE TRUE NAMES OF OTHER
PERSONS KE TO TAKE TO BORDER ARD EXACT DEPARTURE DATeJ STATION

SECRET
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PAGE TWO MEXICO CITY 5002 S E C R E T

Dt$UW «v_ . -- ___ • __ FILE «O l2 «ET to SftAMOtO D0T«ORrC SIG.
ACTON

-
( | »D coev

i 
3

'v*. -

I

WAS ABLE TAKE PHOTO OF PERSON LIRING-3 IB CONTAJwi

AND LIRING-3 IMMEDIATELY IDENTIFIED THIS PERSON AS FRANCISCO

STATIC” 2JAC ALSO 7ALZA rnDI-jS vr hmdke.55 ont/tt &UATS 

BELIEVED BE STAYING AND FILM BEING DEVELOPED. WILL PRIORITY 

POUCH PHOTOS AND LIRING-3 REPORTS.

4. LIRIBG-3 WILLING ENTER GUATEMALA WITH FAR MEMBERS BUT 

WOULD LIKE KNOW IF OPERATION AZTECA STILL IB FORCE. IF HOT, 

COULD STATION GUATEMALA ARnABGE ARY TYPE OF PROTECTION FOR HIM 
IN CASE HE IS CAPTURED BY MILITARY of POLICE? |
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Chief ef Station, Mexico City BXKffEJi i

SUMO _ . . _ - . _ i
LXRI^-3 Reports I

PR IO a I TT

Action Beqnired: Hone; FTI

Reference Besieo City-5000 zi:T

Attached are the LIHIEG-3 reports on the Beatings ho has

held with the Guatesalaa FAR neabers as reported in the refer-
i/' ‘ Marcue

trace above. Also attached are photos of Carlcs**Percab&l: and

®Percabal, a blows up copy of the

doctnsentatioa LIRDJG-3 is falsifying, aod several shots of
■^^pranaiseo^Lara vho is probably identical trith'Frascisco Adal< 

y ' \ i
terto *LASA Barrios, also known-as Carlog *Lara.

for/Willard C. CORTIS
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Reports 
Photos
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27 March 1968

Subjects LIRING/3 Identification of FAR Memeber.

at last he had 
through Carlos

obtained 
Persaval

1. At 1130 on 27/3/68 L/3 told Rowton that 
the tnie name of the FAR member he had met 
and who had previously identified himself to L/3 under the alias 
Miguel Angel^Oliva Castaneda. LI5IKG/3 said he learned that theinxm 

tjrue name of this person is Fancisco Lara and that he and some 14 
other Guatemalans are here in Mexico ^ity legally as exiles. L/3 
added that he met "Rodolfo", the older and apparently more important ■ 
FAR member, yestereday ( 26/3/68) but as yet has not been able to 
learn his true last name.

2. LIRIHG/3 also immediately idenditied the surveillance photo (clipped, 
portion sH ^.returned herewith) as that of. Francisco Lara.

■ Fa« t»*fw.<vu?JcbK7e.

Wallace B. Rowton

.. 3. The oth^r-surveillance photos, as follows
r b /7’rL-vuU— . 

he identified as of Carlos Personal and his wife

Teresa Lozada de Fersaval respectively

APRS BBS

yttuu>^a

t$ ton
2ol-Tft 301
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22 Hatch,1563 i

Subjects Lltifi.G/3 Report/*of Contact with Gu^ter.elans in Mexico City.

------ --------- --- I. At a brief meetinr with. Rowton at 1700 pnk2/3/53 at Jbhe.Jiona Restaurant 

LIRILG/3 reported that he was working on rhe fabric-ticn of identity docu­
ments for the two FAR representatives ( Eiguel Angel Oliva Castaneda and 

Rodolfo) through his seriographic process and that he hoped to have the 
pictures of the pe'sons concerned the following day. He asked suowton to 

bring along his copying kit so that he cculd quickly copy the pictures 
just before LIRIRG/3 put then on the identity cards. Howto.. proa sed to 

bring the kit to the Atoyac apartment at doOC1 on 23/3/63.

2. LIl<Il.C-/3 also reported that he hau learned from the Guatemalans that 
a certain<3squenasi or^Lskenazi, a Guatemalan who has resided for usny years 

in Mexico and who owns or operates a factory called "Cronos de KSxico", has 

been very helpful to the FAR nenebe-s in Mexico. Likewise a doctor by the 
name of Jorge^Flesch has been of Service when needed. j

3. In reply to Aowton’s query LILI. G/3 stated that all the seven Guatemalans 
he uad recently net ( four of whom live at >4 Rio ^erna) appeared to be FAR 

\ en' 
adherents, except one, who he had learned in passing was a follower of Can 
Sosa. 1/3 also stated that he had learned that the one who worked in the 
photo shop on San Juin Latran street was an nec-o -ntant rather, than a photo­

grapher.

. ’ i :

1 t - 1
: I
• ; 1 ■

■tallace 2. Rowton
•. I

, ■ . _____ . i
r

. ___________________ _____ ______________ _ _ I

.... . .. p .......... ...
■ J •
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2fl March,1"68.

Subject: LTdIbj/3 Contact.? J th ?:'»P G'»cte_e.la c ; exicc ^ity.

1. LI1.11.G/3 reported to Ro. ter at 1601 cn 20/3/58 that he h!ad again met 

with Miguel Angel vliva Castaneda, this ziae-at-alo-t 1y30in- fi-cr.z of the' 
Chapultepec novic and went with bin to the CafS -iterario ch Calle Lieja. 

L/3 told Lewton t..at Gliva confided tc bin that bo bad gust' learned from 
four Gu&teien c.trades who lived too-th.- in an aon.-tnent cn Calle Lerna 

that their residence was oein_ survelllod by -hot they felt was the lano 
Blanca, be ex. leiaed that they had noted several fairly well-dressed men 
hanging around the apartment hoase and bad tried to folio, one of thes but 
he had run off. This all mdiceved tc then that the surveillance res not be­
ing - -t vy th; Moricmn L_ll.^, L-1 priviis group, .liva the:
stated that they knew that the deputy chief of the bano Blanca cr o...tzatioQ 
Oliverio^astaneda, was currently in Mexico City, and assuaed that he' had 

organized the surveillance. Oliva then mentioned that one of the. four living 
at Calle Lerna was the well-known Guerrilla leader who bed recently sought 
sanctuary in the Mexican Bsbassy in Guatemala City and was granted asylun 
to Mexico t'.roug^he hterventicn and influence of Lazado Cardenas.

2. In oncer tc determine the exact location of the Lerma apartment, i.IiliiG/ 
told r.owtcn that he offended to help identify the surveillance by condnctins 
a countersurveillance himself the following evening, lie also deferred the 8St 

of his Tacubsya studio, reconmending that in any case the four snould dis­
perse at least temorarily.
3. L/3 also reported to Kcwton that he again net with Cliva at 1015 that s&^- 
morning and that the latter had taken him to a printing ;shop on Calzada Hal 
pan near Calle JosS T. Cuellar, naned "Regia",as L/3 recalled. (Ibe Mexico 
City telephone directory lists "Xesca-Inpresos y Kayadqs, Calle J.I. CuSllc 

57,tel: 73—Cp-©1). Oliva told L/3 that this shop produced various IB papers 
for them in the past but unfortunately was not abale to fabricute a good 
Mexican IB card because of the unavailability of the specia^type used. L/3 

said that he was confident that he could make the reproduction through nil 
seriographic process. In the coarse of conversation Cliva confided to 1/3 
that the Guatemalan lawyer/Capuano, had provided blank; Guatemalan. IB card: 

in the past and in general had been very helpful, -e aided that Capuano had 
succeeded is.getting all the Guatemalans rel^sed from prisonjafter their ar­

rest in the Julian 16pez case. | . >,
4. Gliva also stated that he felt it possible and a_dvisable I th.-t L/3 travel



2

with him to the PAH headquarters in the -ierra Kina on his forthcoming 

trip so that L/3 could ret first-hand requirements from the ?AR supply 
responsible ( whom Oliva referred to as a woman). Oliva also mentioned 

that FAR was hoping to obtain a lathe to permit the tnanufact ire of weapons 
locally (in-the no.'utains). --------- p ------ - -

5. Oliva also stated that the principle purpose of the visit of his comrade 
jf"iodolfo" was to obtain funds and to return to Mexico. Cliva added tb-.t in

the event L/3 cculd make the trip he cculd also return with Rodolfo to 
Mexico. In reply to 1/3’s query, Oliva stated that the funds-Rodolfo would 

be given in Guatemala were from various retteries carried out by F£r for 
the purpose of raising its own funds. Cliva commented that they could net 
count ofl the Cubans or the CFG for financial support when it was needed. He 
added that the sale of the booklet "ierrer in Guatemala" (of uh-ch L/3 had 
obtained a copy from Carlos Persoval) had helped to supply some of the money 

to be used for the trip. Cliva indicated that he himself planned to retain 
■in Guatemala with the FAR forces in the mountains.

i 
hallace 3. Rc.rton 
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19 larch,-1968 : |

Subjects LIkIi;G/3 Report of Contact with Hemebers of FAR,Guatemala.
■ ■? I 
: I

1. At C?45 on 19/3/63 at the Robbins Restaurant,Calle Leibnits and Lelchor 
Gcampo, LIHI'iG/3 reported to Rowton that he bad again set the FAR neater

_-whose-sketch-he-had given Rowton-the previous day ard-wboa;he had’Bef thru”* 

Carlos Fersaval oz Re explained that Fersaval had; finally con­
tacted him by phone late Sunday afternoon (-17/3/63) and introduced him to 

one of the two Guatemalans who wasted to return clanaesti.’.ely to their 
.Guatemalan

country. L/3 described t S 22G.I-i who later showed hin/aueutaiicntitn papers 

in the name of Liguel Angel Oliva, aged 33, as short,stocky, with black hair 
triased short and rather thick grotiinent eyebroJs. L/3 estimated his age as 

35 and said there was no doubt in his mind that he was a native-born Guate- 
rnl—. Lt 1' 1 vhlo yei-sou nore a tnin moustache. L/3 then drew Rowtea
a sketch of the person concerned which Rowtcn passed in to.the Station the 

ease day.

2. HAIL 3/3 continued that he conversed with the Guatemalan, Oliva, in the 
presence of Carlos Lersaval and his wife Teresa Lozada de Larsaval at the 
Hiss restaurant on Reforna for about 45 ninutes, taking the line that he was 
willing to help the cause as he had done in t.e past, but he wanted io be 
certain of the exact affiliations ani bona files of the persons with ..boa he 
was dealing, then this apparently surprised ond somewhat shocked Carlos Fer- 
saval and Teresa, L/3 explained that he had had sone unpldasant experience* 

with such persons as Orozco and was aware that many FAR cesertors were cir­
culating around Mexico these days. The Guatemalan,Oliva, however reacted 
fawor-bly saying that he understood L/3’s position add cid (not blame aim.He 
added that he would furnish proof of his FA?, affiliations add indicated that 

there were two other comrades, one each more important than himself, tho 
also needed help in returning. L/3 told Boston that he stressed to all preo> 
sent the risks involved in providing false documentation and acting as a 

guide fcr them to cross the border illegally and his original cosaitnent to 

help only two persons. In reply to L/3's query, the Guatemalan Oliva stated 
that their destination would be Guatemala City itself and tjhey hoped that 

1/3 would be able to accompny them there since they were nolt familiar with 
the countryside betweenthe border in the C ;nit£n area and Guatemala City.

3. According to LIRIRG/3 the latter insisted that he meet t£ie other,more im­
portant Guatemalan, and be given- an opportunity to make carfeful plans be­
fore attempting the journey to Chiapas and Guatemala City. | Oliva.then aade 

a date with iersaval and L/3 for the naxt evening at 2300 a^ the corner of

..i 
. ij



2, iF
San Juan Latrfin and Madero at which tine he would try to arrange a meeting 

with his comrade. '?
4. Lli.IhG/3, at- his meeting with ac„-t0E the following morning;9/3/58) re­

ported that when he arrived at the place designated he .found.;the Guateiaalan 
Oliva waiting with neither of them.saw Eersaval. Cliva,-after a wait of-a--------
bout 45 minutes, suggested that they give up and go to a cafeteria, Copa de 
Leche, on -an Juan *.arran. L/3 stated to sort on that while they were wairin 

they were joined by another Guatemalan, a young nan of about 22 years of ag 
and rather stout, who accompanied them to the Cafeteria. The older Guatenal . 
then showed L/3 a Guatemalan passport in the name of Miruel Anrel Cliva Cas­
tenada which he said was false but which enabled him to travel in Mexico.
The younger nan dated that he had legal documents but did not volunteer his 

, j.
nsoe to T./^» t.w«» ~ eof’orsr.-U v—e uxuer uuat< •
salan, Oliva, formerly worked in the advertising business in Guatemala City 
and that the younger nan was familiar with electronic equipment and radio 
connunications problems. The older Guatemalan apologized to L/3' for not hav­
ing been able to briar along the other comrade, to who:; be r-f erred. as 
ifiodolfo" and again premised to introduce him t . L/3 the .'ollowing evening. 
He promised to telephone L/3 at ItCO the next day tc confinn the meeting.

5. LIiILG/3 then told F.o .ton that the two Guatemalans then escorted him to 
the Hotel del Valle cn Calle Independencia ( 1-owton recalls that Br. Busta- 
nante resided there during his stay in 1 lexica City several norths ago).. 1/3 
told iowton that he cut, two other Guatemalans there in the lobty and connent : 
that they talked r. then freely in front of bin, discussing at cne point even 
the illegal acquisition of a revolver needed by one f then. In the course o ’ 
conversation L/3 stated that he learned that Cesar F.ontes is now back in 
Guatemala and that the ?.-.H is planning an A?ril offensive. All the Guateaa' 

Ians expressed concern over the increase i_ the power of the "Kano Blanca" 
and biased it for the kidnapping of the Guatemalan Archbishop. They also con -

aented that the military-in Guatemala were disenchanted।with the “puppet pre 
sident",Montenegro, and c_uld be expected tc increase the terrbrisa from 

the right in order to place Montenegro in an impossible position and eventual 
ly justify his removal. ;

• 6. 1/3 commented to Houton that he noted that at no tine did any of the Gusto 
Balans mention Cuban aid.or assitance. In fact one of Vnea at one point s-id 
that he had tried unsuccessfully to obtain a visa for 
thirty days previously.

taliace
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Subject: L1RI-.G/3 Report of Meeting with Carlos lersaval.

l.LIsIi.G/3 reported to Rowton at 1115on16/3/68 at the restaurant 

Hiss cn itefcrna and Calle Mssissipi that ur.fortunately his meeting with 
the two Suate.-iala.as scheduled for the previous evening at 2230-^03 in 

Danny’s restaurant (Reforms at liana Circle) did not ccne off. He stated, 
that he arrived at the restaurant at 2230 and waited until about; 2315 with­
out seein.3 either Persaval or being approached by any Guatemalan. He con- 

. tinned that Just as he was about to leave, he heard a tan on the window 
jr-

behind big and turned and saw Teresa Lozada de Rersaval on.the street. Jp 
vnet oft «"«» mini vo a car where Carlos rerssval was waiting.
De was then driven to uanbom's Angel and remained there with Carlos and 
Teresa for sone thirty ninutes.

2. Acccrding to LIRT..G/3,Carles rersaval explained that he had been stood 

up by the Guatemalans and had been unable to get in tcucu with them to in­
troduce them to L/3 as he had hoped. ?.e added that one of the persons sax 
had been in Cuernavaca two or three days previously ami perhaps had not 
been able to return in tine for the meeting, rersaval,whs appeared to 1/3 

to be quite nervous in Sanborn’s, suggested that they go elsewhere to con­
tinue their discussion and LlRL\G/3 invited him and Teresa to his lacubaya 

studio.

3. They then proceeded there to continue the discussion. Teresa excused her­
self on arrival saying that she was very tired, and promptly fell asleep in 
one of the bedrooms. Carlos xersaval then continued talking with 1/3 until 

about C30C. He mentioned that one of the Guatemalans he hoped to intro­
duce to 1/3 was well-known and important in FAR,while the other(who had 

documents) was relatively unimportant and could probably get by the pclice 

checks without as such risk. In reply to L/3’s queries, Tersaval stated that, 
both sen wanted to travel to Guatemala City and that one C-h‘e important one) 

would probably be returning to Mexico after a short stay, rersaval; revealed 
that as far as be knew the purpose of their trip was to obtain nuch-neeced 

funds to continue their work in Mexico. ‘

4. L1RI.G/3 told Rowton that he again promised to guide the Guatemalans ac­
ross the border south of Gan wpistfibal but insisted on meeting them in 

Mexico City prior to escorting them over the border. Persaval then'asked L/2



whether he was in a position to t/ tain a radio transmitter: for the 7A2 
friends, stating t at he *as certain that they had the financial means 
necessary to pay for such equipment. L/3 stated that he felt he had. a 

gone source*in his brother and various other contacts up north, including 

Ardhi who wormed forthe radio staiionand had access to technical equip­
ment. ।

5. At the cinclusi.r. of th?-meeting ?e saval premised to telephone L/3 
again at 2200 the following night ( fG/3/63; in the hope of being able to 

set up a meeting that night or the following. 1/3, however, reported to 

Rowtcn by teleph.ne that as of 23CO on 16/3/6S no one had telephoned hia 
to set up the neeting’. '

t'allace 3. Howton
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u. LIBIHG-3: Proa recent activity it espears : 
that the Guatemalan FAB nay have renewed its interest 
in LIBING-3. In late January, an emissary of FAB 
representatives is the capital traveled to
Mexico and contacted the person who had carried to 
PBBVKEi the letter sent by LIRING-3 in the suaner 
of 1967 denouncing Moises OROZCO Leal. The enissary - 
brought the word that the FAB had such appreciated 
LIKING—3'h letter ea OROZCO and warned that the FAB : 
organization in Mexico City was infiltrated by a 
BOFIHM operator. Try as be might, however, LIRING-3 
failed, at least by the end of this period, to 
»eet with the FAB aaa.



€D MESSAGE

ADVANCE CO*T

Total Copies
I

OSLC SECRET AJ*UT DtSS£M»NAT

ACTIO*

MEXICO CITYT 141942Z MAR 68S E C R E

CITYGUATEMALA Hlk
REFS A

B

DIRECTOR ISFO JMWAVE

MEXICO CITY 47S3^ < 
GUATEMALA CITY S733 C*'

SECRET i 
t Wfcer Fuitd M

. ANO/CP MfflALS • SEEN.BT
1 ft

2

3 ®i

4 9

s 101

1. FOLLOWING CABLED IN ANSWER QUESTIONS RAISED PARA 5 REF B:

A. FAR KNOWS LIRING-3 HAS CAPABILITY OBTAIN FALSE

DOCUMENTATION. LIRING-3 FOR EXAMPLE OBTAINED FALSE BIRTH CERTIFICATE

AND MILITARY REGISTRATION CARD FOR JAC030 PADILLA

B. LEFTIST CONTACTS LIRING-3 INCLUDING GUATS KNOW HE

FAMILIAR WITH GUAT BORDER AREA IN CHIAPAS. L1RI5G-3 WORKED FOR

NUMBER OF YEARS 15 CHIAPAS FOR MEXICAN EQUIVALENT INDIAN AFFAIRS

BUREAU. IT ALSO sELL

LOCATED IN BORDER AREA IN ST CRISTOBAL DE LAS CASAS SINCE THIS

BUSINESS WAS TO BE USED AS COVER FOR ARMS SUPPLY TO GUAT REBELS

C. AS GUAT CITY STATION WILL RENEN3ER LIKING-3 wAS TAKEN

BY FAR TO HIDEOUT IN GUAT WHERE HELD TALKS WITH FAR MEMBERS^

. LIRING-3 EVEN SUPPLIED FAR SOME MEDICINE AND COGKAC FOR WHICH

INCIDENTALLY HE NEVER PAID

D. IN LIRING-3 OPINION, FACT FAR REPS IN CUBA RECENTLY

EXPRESSED THANKS FOR HIS DENUNCIATION MOISES (OROZCO) LEAL IN F.
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SUMNER 67 AND SENT WARNING THAT FAR "PENETRATED 3Y WOFI0! AGENT" & 

(SEE MEXICO CITY 4314) CONSTITUTES INDICATION HE STILL IS.GOOD GRACES 

OF AT LEAST SO-'IE OF FAR RANK AND FILE. ‘ 1

E. RESUEST LIRISG-3 HELP FAR REPS OVER GUAT BORDER !

L CAME FROM CARLOS (PERSAVAL) MARCUE, NEPHEW OF MANUEL CMARGUE)

PARDINES, VIA CARMEN (LOZADA) DE RAMIREZ, PERSAVAL SISTER IS LAW

(ANF4S! 3, Sf-rO343 1045-, & 3> AS FAR AS STATION KNOWS PERSAVAL, I 
tie 

MARCS# OR LOZADA HAVE NO DIRECT CONNECTION WITH ERNESTO (CAPUANO) 

DEL VECCHIO AND OTHER GUAT LEFTISTS WITH WHOM HIRING -3 PREVIOUSLY 

LN CONTACT. ' '

2. LIFEAT ON LIRING-3 CONFIRMED PERSAVAL SCHEDULED PHONE 1

LIRING-3 14 MARCH TO SET UP 15 MARCH MEETING WITH TWO MALE AND ONE 

FEMALE GUAT REBELS LIRING-3 AGREED GUIDE OVER GUAT BORDER.5 . FROM 
; i

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE, STATION KNOWS GUATS MAY PHONE LIRING-3 AND -------
ASX FOR IMMEDIATE MEETING. TO FACE SUCH POSSIBILITY LIEMB^ACES “1 

STARTED SURVEILLANCE LIRING-3 MORNING 14 MARCH, WILL TRY OBSERVE 

MEETING 1UTH GUATS, TAKE PHOTOS OF THEM AND DETERMINE THEIR ACTUAL 

RESIDENCE THROUGH TAILING EXERCISING UTMOST CAUTION.

3. WILL CABLE FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS THIS CASE.

S E C R E SeilVlCEl>_ 9*
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MEXICO CITY INFO DIRECTOR

REF MEXICO CITY 4790

M Tuniiru ooerm •

!2Ks 5806895 1

t uu <« u |WB<..uiAN y"

WHO TO RETURN GUATEMALA COULD BE CLEMENCIA (PAIZ) CARCAMO (AKA

TUISA"), SISTER OF MIRRA (PAIZ) CARCAMO WHO RECENTLY RELEASED.

FROM JAIL IB MEXICO. ACCORDING TO FEMALE INFORMANT OF GUAT

ARMY, CLEMENCIA IS WIFE OF JULIO CESAR (MACIAS) MAYORA (AKA

"CESAR MONTES’). ALSO REPORTED THAT CLEMENCIA WAS Tv TRAVEL TO 
I

MEXICO IN MtD-DECEMBER 1967 TO ARRANGE FOR SHIPMENT OF ARMS TO 

FAR, AND WAS POSSIBLY TO BE ACCOMPANIED BY DI5SDELA (JIMENEZ) 

MUNOZ AND HILDA (SOSA) ALDANA. THERE HAS BEEN NO CONFIRMATION 
THAT ANY OF THE ABOVE WOMEN TRAVELLED, BUT PRESENT Wl^EABOUTS 

IBIKNOWN. ! i

2. .STATION DOES NOT HAVE BIO DATA OR PHOTOGRAPHS CLEMENCIA, 
!

AND ESLA1R TEAM HAS NOT BEEN ABLE LOCATE ENTRY FOR HER IN FILES

OF CIVIL REGISTRY. ATTEMPTING OBTAIN FROM ESMICAS, AND WILL SEND

TO MEXICO CITY IF SUCCESSFUL. j -------r

- 3. WOULD APPRECIATE MEXICO CITY COMMENTS ON WHY LlR^NG/3 APPROACHED

.JO OBTAIN FALSE DOCUMENTS FOR RETURNEES AND WHY HE MIGHT BE SELECTED

SECRET

. i.
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t

TO SERVE AS GUIDE. ALTHOUGH POSSIBLE THAT MEMBERS OF PST |

SUPPORT NET IN MEXICO—SUCH AS ERNESTO (CAPUANO) DEL ! 
u

VECCHIO. MAY BE UNWILLING ASSIST FtR mempfpc utcu orornor

PGT/FAR RELATIONS, WOULD SEEM THAT FAR WOULD BE RELUCTANT

TO ENTRUST DELICATE MISSION OF THIS NATURE TO LIRISG/3 ,WHO ! 
Tt

HELKtWEL't UNKNOWN 6UAS3TY. ■- !
; - ■ ! . I
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• 4* Me* ted',
1. OS 5 ,: ;RCK 68, L1FISG-S RtPORIED HE HAD -IK^tn , -------- : "j

X
HIM CARlOS. rtRSAVAL KARCDt, KtPHttf OF FIANUtL MARC-t PABDI^tS,

DIRECTOR OF THE NOW DEFUNCT SAGAZ ISt •POLITIC**, COF.KJN 1ST 31-

•WXTK.Y PJsiICAl IOS. Pt R3 AV AL ASKtZi LIKING-5 IF hz G-GUlD OolAIX 
re'.'^v’-i^rf^k-r u.-.rH

A rALSt PAtSrORI FOR NlFt OF IRFvRTAST GUATEMALAN G JtP.ri ILLA LtAOiR

IS fltXlCj WHO RUST TRAVtL GUAltTALA. LIRING-5 SAID Ht EOJLD D3

_ rfHAT *t COuLD IO OBIAI* XCUrttrtS. 
■ i

2. C* 8 r-SCM, PERSAVAt SAID 1*0 IMPORTAal GLAIfiALAA REVOuU-

TIOMR1ES HAD IC TRAVEL TO GUAltHALA FROM MEXICO BT MU MARCH ASD 

ASKED IF LI.RI&-3 STILL tfILLI.% 15 HtLP. LIRUG-5 Asijfctr.tii Iti THt 
’ ' i!<' AFFIRMATIVE BuT SAID THtRt SAS Li’.lTcD CHAS Ct OoTAlJilKS , FALSt DOJU- 
! !■
r Mt XT AT IOS. HE COULD, HOvtVcR, BRItF THESE SEVOLJI ICJ»AX|tS OH
i !
t CUAT/MEXI SOROtR IN ORDER MAKt ILttGAL CROSSING tASltR. IF THEY

DESIRED, KE COULD PERSOftALLY GUlDt THEM ACROSS. BCRDtR. ,

' ----------- 5e os J «ahch, PERSAVA4. OU NT ISOLD DISCUSSIONS WITH LIRiBG-S

t ON GUATERALAS REVOLUTIONARIES WHO MAD TO TRAVEL GUATcfiALA URGENTLY.

— HE SAID ONE OF THEN HAS LEGAL DO CUX. NT AT IOS BUT OTHER DOES NOT. Hs.
* |ASru,’|3? I "• ,
? > |uw// i

r psTRAcrY
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TK£A£FOR£ DlCIDtD 30TH SHOULD EUTLR GUATEMALA UltMLlY. T^-y i
CAN 801 ESTER THRU IAPACHULA, HOWEVER, SIMOE THeY VtLL

K80WN THERE. LIRISG-3 SUGGESTED SAN CRISTOBCL AREA WHICH EOT 

“ SUBJECT TO MEXICAN OR GUATEMALA* SURVEILLANCE. THE PtRSON WITHOUT 
11 
w DOCUMENTS IE WOMAN 2B YEARS OLD. FERSAVAL NOT WILLING GIVE LIRING-3

MMES OF REVOLUTIONARIES BUT FRCMISED ARRANGE FOR CONTACT BETWtES 

THEM EVENING 15 MARCH.
I 

4. STATION HAS NO INFO ON IDENTITIES OF MAN AND WOPSAS KHO

MUST RETURN GUATEMALA iiiD nARCH. V0U.0 APPRECIATE ANY COMMENTS.

T WILL ADVISi DEVELOPMENTS. a ’
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(ddo end fine filed)

MEXICO CITY
INFO:

71 ’ 7 cr-r 
GUATEMALA CITY JMWAVE

KAPOK PBRUMEN
REF MEXICO CITY 4314 (IN 40487)*

KO OBJECTION TO ENCOURAGIN' LIRING TO RENEW CONTACTS IN GUAT
FAR CIRCLES. HOWEVER, SINCE THERE SOME DOUBT WHETHER LIRING-3 IN
FACT ABOVE SUSPICION OF FAR.SUGGEST HIS ACTIVITIES BE CLOSELY MONITORED
DURING NEXT FEW MONTHS. IF HE UNABLE SHOW TANGIBLE EVIDENCE DURING
THIS PERIOD THAT HE IN FAR GOOD GRACES SUGGEST CONTACT SITS L

BE PHASED OUT,
END OF MESSAGE

WH COMMENT: ^Request Addressees consents on continued use of. LIRING-3 as contact of FAR in Mexico. 1
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9. HMMA-33842 (NOT SENT GUATEMALA CITY)

1 MAR 8 12£i8 /

1. ON 31 JULY 1967 LIRING-3, PER REF A, OBTAINED CONFESSION 9

FROM GUATEMALAN LEFTIST MOISES (OROZCO) LEAL THAT LATTER TRIED 

STRAY FAR GUERRILLAS. LIRING-3 SUBSEQUENTLY DENOUNCED OROZCO AS 

FAR TRAITOR TO LIRING-2 (WHO SUPPOSEDLY RELAYED DENUNCIATION TO 

CUBAN AUTHORITIES) AND PER REF C TO ERNESTO (CAPUANO) DEL VECCHIO, 

CLOSE CONTACT OF FAR IN MEXICO. HE ALSO SENT LETTER DENOUNCING 

CROZCO TO ARNOL (RODRIGUEZ) CAMPS IN HAVANA FOR PASSAGE TO FAR j 

REPS THERE. LETTER, SEALED, WAS GIVEN ALBERTO (DOMINGO) OF MAGAZINE

SIEMIRE WHO THEN TRAVELING CUBA BY SERGIO (VALDEZ), LEFTIST FRIEND 

" OF LIRING-3. LIRING-3 NEVER HEARD CUBAN OFFICIAL REACTION. PER

zg. w
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PAGE 2 MEXICO CITY 4314 SECRET '

REF D CAPUANO DECIDED LIRING-3 WAS WOFIRM PROVOCATION, DISCUSSED 

WITH LIREBEL-2 INVESTIGATION OF OROZCO AND ORDERED FAR CONTACT 

WITH LIRING-3 DISCONTINUED. "GARCIA" WHO CLAIMED BE FAR REP 

ASSIGNED MAINTAIN LIAISON WITH LIRING-3 HAD HIS LAST MEETING WITH 
hD 

LIRINAS IN JUNE 67. LIRING-3 HBB NO OTHER MEETING WITH FAR REPS 
~ ! 

SINCE THAT TIME. ;
2. 2“ 23 JArFJARY 3DCE SERGIO VALDEZ TOLD LIZZOO-Z THAT FAR 

REP HAD RECENTLY ARRIVED MEXICO FROM HAVANA WITH MESSAGE FOR : 

ALBERTO DOMINGO THAT THREE UNIDENTIFIED FAR REPS IN HAVANA WANTED 

EXPRESS THEIR THANKS FOR LETTER CONCERNING TRAITOR OROZCO. FAR REPS 

ALSO WANTED "PERSONS CONCERNED" TO BE WARNED THAT THERE WAS ANOTHER 

FAR TRAITOR, A GUATEMALAN WORKING FOR WOFIRM. DOMINGO WHO NOT 

AWARE OF CONTENTS LIRING-3 LETTER TO FAR PASSED MESSAGE ON TO 

VALDEZ. AT SUBSEQUENT MEETING WITH VALDEZ FAR VISITOR IDENTIFIED 

TRAITOR AS ONE CARLOS (SALAZAR). VALDEZ EXPRESSED APPRECIATION 

BUT ASKED FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON SALAZAR AS WELL AS PROOF HE 

FAR.TRAITOR SAYING DID NOT PERSONALLY KNOW GUAT BY THAT NAME.

VISITOR PROMISED CHECK AND PASS ON FURTHER INFO. ■ j 
I I ....

3. CARLOS SALAZAR PROBABLY IDENTICAL WITH CARLOS ENRIQUE •

SALAZAR WHO TALKED TO LIRING-4 AT CUBAN EMBASSY 22 JUNE 67 (SEE $££RET
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PAGE 3 MEXICO CITY 4314 SECRET

REF D. AS NOTED THIS REF CUBANS GAVE THIS GUAT COLD SHOULDER,

LIRINS-3 DID NOT SUCCEED IN CONTACTING SALAZAR AFTER LATTER V^ISIT 

TO EMBASSY. INTERESTINGLY, CARLOS ENRIQUE SALAZAR PER REF F WAS 

REPORTED BY CUBAN CITIZEN OTONIEL (PENA) ENTEKZA (MADE CONTACT

WITH STATION IN MAY 65) TO HAVE BEEN IN CONTACT WITH ERSESTO CAPUANO

DEL VECCHIO. PENA STATED THAT SALAZAR BELONGED TO PRO-CCMMUNIST

GROUP DESIGNED SUPPORT YON (SOSA) REBEL FACTION IN GUATEMALA. 1 IT -

WAS PROBABLY TO CARLOS ENRIQUE SALAZAR THAT LIRING-9 REFERRED TO

WHEN PER PARA 5 REF G AND ATTACHMENT HE WARNED LIRING-4 NOV 67 TO

BE CAREFUL AS GUAT WHO WAS WOFIRM AGENT HAD MENTIONED HER NAME AS

REFERENCE.

4. IT APPEARS FROM ABOVE THAT LIRING-3 MAY BE ABLE TO RENEW

CONTACT WITH GUAT FAR. AS FIRST STEP, HE ENDEAVORING MAKE DIRECT 
0 Lu' L

CONTACT JI TH FAR VISITOR WHO T^CED TO SERGIO VALDEZ. IT ALSO

APPEARS FAR IN HAVANA DID NOT TAKE ERNESTO CAPUANO SUSPICION THAT

LIRING-3 WORKING FOR WOFIRM SERIOUSLY. IT WOULD APPEAR IN FACT FROM

ABOVE THAT CAPUANO IS NOT TRUSTED BY FAR IN HAVANA.
I 1

5. REQUEST ADDEE COMMENTS. |

SECRET SECRET
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15 dAHUAnV he a!TENDED

17 JaiE3u3232S

1 L1R1NG-3 truRiED inAi u« EVtninia

MEETING U? XICAN INTELLECTUALS AT HOME OF LUIS CARRION VILLA?

WAS DISAPPOINTED TO FIND ONLY FOUR OTHER PERSONS PRESENT. THE

TWENTY OR SO OTHER MEXICAN INTELLECTUALS WHOM,HE WAS LED TO BE- 
f ;

LIEVE WOULD BE PRESENT DID KOT SHOW UP. CLIEMBRACES OBTAINED

SOME PHOTOS OF PEOPLE ATTENDING MEETING.) 1

2. CARRION DID MOST OF THE TALKING, INTRODUCING HIMSELF AS

A TRUE REVOLUTIONARY WHO HAD ALWAYS SUPPORTED THE CAUSE OF ThE

CUBAN REVOLUTION, COMPROMISING HIMSELF ON A NUMBER OF OCCASIONS 

IN THE PAST, AND HE TRUSTED THAT EVERYONE PRESENT FELT THE SAME.

KE THEN LAUNCHED INTO STRONG ATTACK AGAINST CASA DE LAS AMERICAS

FOR HAVING INVITED THE "MAFIA" OF MEXICAN INTELLECTUALS, IN-
i

CLUD1NG SPECIFICALLY JUAN VICENTE MELO, JUAN GARCIA PONCE;

EMANUEL CARBALLO AND , 

CHARACTERIZED THESE AS

PART ICULARLY, CARLOS MONSIVAIS. HE

"OPPORTUNISTIC" AND WITHOUT THE TRUEsecutv IN­
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TEREST OF THE CUBAN REVOLUTION AT HEART.
3. CARRION SAID HE FELT THAT ALL "TRUE REVOLUTIONARIES" j 

SHOULD MAKE STRONG PROTEST TO CUBAN GOVERNMENT AND REST OF THE 

WORLD THAT WOULD FORCE CASA DE LAS AMERICAA TO "CORRECT ITS
I

POSITION" AND ALIGN ITSELF PROPERLY TO THE PERSONS WHO TRULY ' 

REPRESENTED MEXICAN REVOLUTIONARY THINKING. HE PRPOSED THAT , 

ALL 2Y T"Z 3ZLEGAI iuii Be SIuDicu
I 

FULLY TO GIVE MORE WEIGHT TO THE PROTEST, THAT HE HOPED TO •

OBTAIN FULL PRESS RELEASES FROM PRENSA LATINA SINCE HE DID KOT 

EXPECT MUCH TO APPEAR IN MEXICAN PRESS. !

4. CARRION MADE IT QUITE CLEAR THAT THE PROTEST WOULD NOT 

INCLUDE CRITICISM OF DAVID ALFARO SIQUEIROS OR JESUS SILVA 

HERZOG, WHOM EVERYONE RESPECTED AND WHO WERE CONSIDERED ABOVE j 

ANY SPECIFIC GROUP. . ‘ i
. 1

M ■

5. CARRION REQUESTED THAT GROUP MEET AGAIN AS OFTEjt AS 

NECESSARY TO FORMULATE THE PROTEST AND ASKED EACH PERSON PRESENT 

TO BRING SUBJECT OF THEIR MEETING TO ATTENTION OF OTHER INTEL-, 

LECTUALS WHO MIGHT BE WILLING SIGN PROTEST ONCE IT IS WRITTEN.

6. LIRING-3 WILL MAKE EVERY EFFORT OBTAIN COPY OF FINAL i 

DRAFT.
__?• . INASMUCH AS STATION HAS ALREADY DISSEMINATED TWO JwTEL j
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REPORTS THIS SUBJECT, AND AS YET NOTHING HAS MATERIALIZED, 

STATION RELUCTANT DISSEM THE ABOVE AT THIS TIPE, ALTHOUGH 

RECOGNIZE THE NEED TO SET THE RECORD STRAIGHT INASMUCH AS 

n««4revrn Ti»r tMftoreerAB tu»t MTYvCaU DOnTFCT
UHAUAkn w A — -  ................... -  . ..

WAS AGAINST THE CULTURAL CONGRESS PER SE. PROPOSE DISSEM BE 

WITHHELD PENDING FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS. IF PROTEST DOES NOT 

MATERIALIZE, WILL DISSEM GIST OF ABOVE.

SECRET. SICftET
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---------  2 October,19S7 I 

i 
Subject: SGSilRI* Examination of LIRIE'G/3. j

1. From about 1330 until 1530 on 29 September,19^7, LIRING/3 was 
given ah SGSa'IRL examination. Sowton arrived at the safehouse ( Tacu- 
baya) vith the SG3*I2L operator at 0930 that morning and remained with 

the operator until the examination was completed. He had not given LI- 
fiING/3 any previous notice of the nature or extent of the'examination, 
but simply asked bls,on 27 September, to keep the entire day of 29 Septem­
ber free for a lengthy dicussion with Sowton. Sowton introduced the 3G- 
SitflRL operator as senor Albertini, a trusted "sccio", and spent the first 
hour or so reviewing his relationship with LIEIEG/3, ostensibly for the 
Lvuexlv of All.A.t'-'. then of certain
doubts that he -hah in the past concerning HR~;G/3’s reporting, stated 
that Albertini had a means of checking scientie&fically the truthfulness 

of URING/3*s statements. Rowton explained that he was particularly con­
cerned about the possiblity of LIRIRG/3 having doubled back with LZEI2»G 
andaaintaining with them a secret agreement of some sort to report on 

Rowton and his activities. °

2. URIKG/3 wifet into a state cf visible shock at this and stated that 

even the thought of betraying Rowtcn had never occurred to him at any time, 
alien the SG3WIRL operator explained the scientific means he was to use on 
LIRHiG/3, the latter stated that he could not possibly accept this humili­
ating means of testing him since it was diaxentrically opposed to his 
principles. He pointed out that he had accepted °owton at his word and he ? 
could ®t see or understand why Rowton could not do the same for bin, adding - 
that the whole thing smacked of methods used by aCFAGT and LIRING. fie added 

that if this meant that he would have to break with Rowton, then regret­
fully he would have to accept this alternative. He explained that submit- 
ing to the SG3.»iRL examination would inevitably destroy the idealistic and 

profound relationship which he had previously felt he enjoyed with Rowton.

3. Rowton and the SGSaIRL operator spent the next two hours calming LIRIiIG/3 - 

down and finally convincing him that he would not be compromising with his 
deeply-felt principles by taking the test. He at last consented to be ques­
tioned on his loyalty to Rowton and insisted that he bp asked,"VDo you be­

lieve in Rowton?- I

4. After a brief break for lunch the examination was given inone of the bed­
rooms the apartment while Rowton waited in the living room. LIAING/3

. .jtaASU.r-7 , *
i



‘ t
1 I

2.
J-

appeared to be in reasonably coed spirits after the test, although 
he was obviously emotionally strained by the experience. Bowton made 
a date to see him again that evening at 2100 tn talk things over in 
a clamer atmosphere.

5. At that meeting with LIRliiG/3 Sowton explained that he had felt it 
necessary to ascertain as objectively as possibly the extent of LIHIKG/3’s 

loyalty to him and he was happy to have scientific proof that LIRING/3 
had not berayed him to the USING’s. LI.UliG/3 stated that after it was 
all over he felt Letter and admitted that he agreed with Howton on the 

necessity for such an examination, humiliating as it might at first have

- ---- - - --w — - - - — «---- ----- - — - --- ............  
that he had made in the past, were due to his intense desire to produce 
for Howton, since he still felt very sensitive about having to accept money 

from Sowton without being, able to render commensurate services.? He stress­
ed, however j that at no time had be ever been disloyal to Eowton or done 
anything against Sowton’s interest, as senor Albertini could prove with 
ths? results of the SGSalRL. LIRING/3 promised in the future to follow Bow­
ton's direction scrupulously and assured Howton that he no longer felt 
under any compulsion to exaggerate or fabricate anything to impress Bowton.

6. Headquarters and the Station may find the SGSWIBL e-zamination disappoin­
ting in its limited coverage, but it niust be realized that LIRING/3’s,. 
initial reaction was entirely negative and at one point he t&eatened to 

break off completely with Howton because of the insult to his "dignity**. 
Although the SGSWIBL operator felt that from a professional standpoint it 
would be better to administer the examination at another time when URIHG/3 

was less emotionally upset, Rcwton asked both him and LIRlnG/3 to go thru 

with it on the spot, feftling that psychologically it was essential to 
Dake LIRING/3 submit, even for a limited test. Rowt:n also feels that the 

test did serve as a very favorably deterrent over LIRIKG/3 in the future, 
when a second one can be more painlessly administered, in a calmer atmos-

1

i I ,
phere. It, of course, also covered the very pertinent question of whether 
LIRING/3 had been an LIKING double agent or betrayed Rowton in any way.

• : - L ; 1

Wallace B. Rowton
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1. Attached herewith is tbe'SGSWIEL report (Ideas u/s/c) | 
oa LiaiHG/3 .

2. Please note that the EGSHIEL interviewer has ffiide the 
point that the principal ais fortune in this interview probably 
was that LXEING/3 was not tested on the fabrication of contacts 
with the IDES D's, which was thought to be the most probable 
area of deception.

3. In view of LIRIKG/3’s threat to quit working for 
&OSTOH, we would be interested in hearing of any repurcussions 
or change in attitude that say have resulted froa LIRING/3's 
having taken the test. We also are interested in the Station's co>m>pntR and recommendations as to the continued use of LIRIh'G-3, 
bearing in mind ROWTON'S recent report oi uikiag suspicions :toat 
L-3 may be working for SOFIRM.

Chester R. BLEfiDRICK
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StTBJSCT : L.WM ®»BAj mmocA 1111 ■■.'! ii«««wi »i ■•jlM«a»«raaiB<BMOn

&s5>3Ct ■&&& is^ervisro'^s sad testst? ^Uh. SGSTW131.L. e®
Ml iz>. a X; ig-rtea Ctty rzXe a^s» Tas L^fesrvfeSFw e&e 3-®^ks©§s^ ts^ j&££^3E®s^
A. F2A3I&.

Tha ustorvtow urss coaafestea Ls tor t&r raj?a^3'X&ss>. 'S'-alias© A»
ROW TON. baaL&ct*e ortaciBaU, aaessh. •i'&o a«Mseas£ «&ms=a SBdaafi&aSlsiSSi ffiel 
of the istorvto'w cuxrsfi l&tt toe £®sas.«

Subject baa ass jxrairiMsaXy be®® tssearf.. &®a b&s so aesSwt. 
aay WO-FIRAl re^rssestetlves ochss tfeija aoWTOK. >,

Sab arc t la a snasTri-sd mai® iiaxU&S; saMa-sa, sui IDXXI ffi pfzs&ssg&wsa 
Prior to recr«iteMH& hia apyareat poLULcti a^asttaasstto vw ®«assrwt«®ro 
to the far left, tesfi ha ®sjs tsac &elia-fz«- to tes sigsfejlgasSiy tsre®lve<i is fatal* 
tlvoare aetitritlaa ar atrs^MiLa^ taaaiti^jsi vietoa. tea vsaa va*tmsiiis>& few 
ROWTON trader ths covj., of a LCX.7^ C. S'sh-jost «®-o (Ussa his rscrts^Saae^ 
had ecattxt wtkh IDEN D el&m&si&a as® m&b XXX&K K s.-ia^-aiS.sAa ia feii ^£<aeis 
to Laaart blmeeif asd RO'S'TC-N sssa i>s pc>iSi&-*>®0, Tha i-M&U ^s&i
of thio c-raerRttaa xa®4n ta «weh tjefSe sad pi<k ••..? ^'AUlsfstd
latolUgesee LafemaeMca ciifiht be tafi^sssdjT «s^eo%s<sar-«&. As s. w%» 
Md is, La hla <wb Laiae’nsac.reJSe ■«ays e eesaejssaaaiaS a-yie^si&ia®®', R.CWT0N 
has act iadicatod aay azfii-esuizBBffiist. K,cr asa-yewtetos&ry
alms.

£«b)eei was kstom to Save Sod aa4 c«fesFsaX&d lafsrtoa^ea e® tss2&$tsr<saa 
osc&aiMu, aad U xsaa psraaaaoed that coe^ldsrabiy txs&g-® Itos ware bm 'yas 
kaewa to WOFIRM. Gu this baaia, SGSWLRL. eevara^c ®saa to k&v« ®swr®d 
namereua issues, eesaered oa cCber tohslligeace tov^Lveaneel. febris^&e® 
of coatocts mtb oLgBxXlJ-i.al LXSEX I> cM 1GEN K and rewiA&oa &i
hit sssectottoa vtto ROWTOM. Tto Uena «d wsiftSse of aesotto^toa with 
ROWTON was rstosr cocn^lsj: to that AOWTON aavor reve&tod ibis 
eazcrt. sttttomlity, to ustorests to &to>sei, ased al&o fee tostnsctod &s&j4«t 
to reveal cerfcato eitosmtoto facto to v&rioae speaifto isdietdaalcu

Th® ex&mtae? uaa preeestod to Sahjeci aa as aeeectoto ef MOWTOW 
•f BalL&ffi esiracttoa.

. • ■ . T I

■ ><5 //^/* /</ /c /XZ WPU 6/
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PROCEDURE

jsx>ject llret refused to take its test, basically or etas jroutaas 
in hi fl eBM^.^iica his rolaXiocsai? «ixh aC’“>'TC'N, ae 'art'll a#. *da wfta»e 
i-ay z.' iJe, were at variaac® «4th any ssssa pffocccL^j-A.. Is ife« shrews ®r 
ti,~r t-iaze tteai Lais w«-e tsi_ag discoat..-.vfi, ikibject also d®cid;®d to 
working Jor ROWTON.

£ vertically, over a specific matte? at hawt pride. Safe lacs agreed, o? 
ratter camaruicd, to be Lvstod ua "two ^msUmss— •sbetba,? f&aj ss&e U^Sjray- 
Ing ?.C''>"TC’N to LDEN E irisillgeBca a&s -srasrtfe®? ibej L?-s«t®4 SOWTCN, B 
fcllewing which be would Lre&k off ccsitct with ftOW’TO.'', 'Under ttea 
circuu^wu... “'’’’ *■'“ woulzi be to folltfw
this Lead and attempt no rr.ere than a clartfioetion of 5vuj_!«<i's reLaSioasiiip 
trite IDE’, £ intelligence. The examine? taii optir.iixw: shout Las 
peasiaiiily of gettlog a valid last ussier tbs sc c ire vans Bt&jsceS; bcti.al.toe 
talf-eg «.Uh Subject tor a Lk.-.e it ■-■as possible to dsrelcp sre&t Lh« ex4’»ajl»s&r 
coas.dcrs a reasonable and technically acceptable test coveriag nauraps’s-tod 
iBTplvosne&t with any Lnteliigerxa service.

< 1 I
The above procedure ralgbt be mere eecosabsly il ULs

mtmtieaeci that o&ce having mei wiil uwb/OCi, 2C*?TON ?CM1 *ha rsssada?? 
had aimest no time tegetiter wildest Subjact b®lag pres&Esl, &a^ it ssw ec-? 
pcaatoie ler them to converse Ln aay laagu&ga ether thaa Spaaaala wWtsLaS 
<i®making their cover.

kESULTS ;
Subject has ee ccaaectkiM or coaomUmcmta eakaswa to RCWTON wi& 

asy governxn eat or trie lit rance remcc. He tee so iavolvem«&t wish &te® 
LOEN E’a that he wishes to cooceal from ROW TON, &&& hr» taae se ^saiiage 
with the IDES E's which are co&Lrary to xvh&S tea bMisvee to be ROWTO>Te 
iatereate. j

I
C one erring rovelatioa to the 1DEN E’e of Subject's edsoetattoa vrtSh 

ROXTON, the issue iloali not usaaoipectedly, a clowly c«a. la brief.
Subject staled that he could uot really recall the exact extent to which fee 
might have reveal«4 the fact that ae w&a bacismi by a 1DB1^ C or that t&e 
1ZXEN Co name waa (ROWTON'i aliasL. Sebject hbneeif ,e®gg«et»d that 
be be asked If he was ‘iufvrmlag the WEN Eeo of KOWTCH'a tBOvemeste, “ 
Subject's way -of sspresoiag tbo Idea of 'rsportUg on" RQWTOF. . The 
examiner abed this question, and Subject appears to have bees trectefel La 
hie negative aaswer to thia n®s«Uaa.
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I. Sv the of Uw? liutervLirw, gOWTON SsAjaet mSs&a Bsj 
appcinlrr.esxt icr 6 BOft-»*i>eg taat same ewaiRg^ LfcsC4c-.fldS5.-j that U Mr efKz’E®- -. 
aalikeiy that S«hJ«t ’iUl brcaj. coaSact «rHb XC^TON. ;

2. u »as not resil? pooetbla for tis® exami.®®* tw efe’a®rTKte© ife-e , 
ic ■•■xci-. SJojor.l :,<?;j&vss4 tie fS.r.vy of «.c iiiSA C asd tfess Itaxisa

-CJ :-’• L\ i- -s^arr-itier. Tto sxamlassr Leola ikai there >s®if ox, real, 
l-i the fruus^&ejutce c*i this CG?sr &.esS Uxs ec^ur's c-sdy r-e^i 
is its iJa&ere&tly onaay pbaoxtbility. SatsxM app®are« is axe opt sfe alias 
ww by is»s euu-nixier and cwa in&zls pi?.aaj£.g refstsz£ss So ii&tyj 
tikis wa» dcas aecMSe ha believed cb.?.! be was told o® ha iv.ni
thought It v/ie toe most courtacso -essay io xandbs ths slt^tsXisn la &i>* fcssr«-&. 
/it cis niit several -son- rei«rcrew:es v, t&3 ut/usti«® cl HG'ffTOt-i ss^l 
the o j-S-T-ina r oeEUttitlSEf’ to aae « L c-s fex?® wmob iaa 'ihi tsni ok»
1&5w for «cje --&«? RO«’TO?: vas. Os at Lea.it css ccc^tca tes 
that fcr ali bs kiaw ROWTON ralgisS eves it«s nrorHlajj te? 'iFfXrU’Lfet, TTtir, 
reference did itot eeera etTeisa-d, ast^engs U is eosscotvrJmjs thsi tia j!PS4rs-«S-» 
vis provoev tita; XO'wTOh' baa tele lias eiarr‘jse? it-Jit tijjt-Jextt r®8CEE,ly 
hypc'tbesired ovi iutsd taot RO'VTCN ml^it be & Sovtsf. 1 1

-5. The principal taiefcrtaKa of thle Latsrviev La es-eh&bta eaai &»fv» 
joct oes aot tested ce iaartcatlca sf ecsj-tecta with IXJSfls Ytela -&&e • 
thought to be the moot pro>>tJ»ie srsa axlaealvw coce«4ic%- 1? @.V;ial4a 
be pointed o«t. hewever, that tae Statics e.LreasJy kfttrea tz&t &ibjweg bsu»- 
fabricated ouch eostactB. sad the tnost lixaily ecciritea-tLc-ja of k'Xyt®'TK.L ■ 
wcuid os vs boea rssreiy s» rsrc&sr aemszntkl&tioa tsi ©sass pl® e of iSvls «®s® 
basic vice. It might nla« be p-eiEt&d cos tfegii to &sia
Uas dealt aknoot ejctluoively with Ut ew® activity, toexs hla Lafeaicafec® 
has been more an irrltatiea than & tesaaA. ;

j " i

Paul I. NAPOULU
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(E>£~» AVSUBJECT t EIRTO3 z&s &m Ji vraK\amtJ‘ ii ii ii-a-«ajra»

Sahjeefc wt*a tstorrteved 8©^ toito-fi cris& feCiS’irZSLL- a® 3® 0e«t&arJa»:s8® 
!$■£.? to. a Mas4«o CUy &s£e e-SSs. T&a U&ssetow ^i^sassaS *
A. FRA DYER- ' |

I

T%<® fci®Tv4sw waa «-«®gB©t®d La Spajsieh by fe? sasanaLaer. WtiJ.l&s® A® : 
IOWION, fjfbj&ci's prtselpai ag$«;3, ■Ksfea pres-ass tests® sateetosSjaily aS j 
of the totozvtow except In.'S toe-SiEg parted. J

<U-V.».-» «r-M* -~fti»*l«» kaoKi • ■< wjl «x«m4 Utua K<n X ®jffc <» n-artigto'^

&txy WOFIRM s,epre»«Kx¥®iv,8ffi c4h®sr Uss UOWTOi-i,

Sefejscrt l« & £si55jr3t&4 eu&ls Maxtesa eilSAea, &z. £&£& B by ;.
Prior to JcscrKUza®®® feto apysareaS ptLHte®! asE&a^sae osr®

Lb the far Left* b^ b® wus as4 teeUewj? to tes> sigi&ItosiEliy laweire^ Ea ; 
iigeaee acUvtUea er orfrsE&sed peUtteai asUvitteb* j-iis iz&a reersutees ‘ 
ROWTOK «sos? the corer cf a £X>O< C. 5sh*®et tea stoe® bls rarer®Jtesss®t i 
had ccaifict with iBEUi D elstee-ssis tsiia XDL'LJ S. &ijZ3ssss&e Is s£i»'S^a 
_- • ■ •   « * - - • •% I ■ t* J *_ A _ fcC — X* .*.2 —. ** J * A **_ - k. — - -1-* — • — - — W
CD Jlifisri S1XXI&VM 4BJS9 2XW W LUIV ^OSn9 «£S3 D’WiftCJStfc! A oav gwa

of tiilo cp®rfe*i®a t?s.s to mczzftor cers te-aXft-6 asd p&ch np w&&&r*w fMfeW®S8S3 
iataUlgooc:® bafcrma&oa mi.gM be L&sM&sSaliy (sace^sAss^A. Ac 
sad ie, ia hie cwa UUc sysstsafiic wajs a c oeirasssLet itO^TOM /*

alEUB. [

SuH loct wm fasowa to haeo M®4 &s^l ccjssrssais^ «® B’Easw®30
©ecaeioMt &£e4 it was t-T&e<ama4 &at ceeeLSseehuy rx&s^s- ii&» seee && :
lisfrw® to WCFIRM. Oa LMs baHs» ^GSFS’^L cmwi^a iw&s to «®ws,®4 
Bstaaaroua tetpaoa, c.sa^&si3^ e& ®*j&3T i^reifvQsneeS, :
of coatoctc v4Qt sL^iisXLcAst LOEN F> as^ LD-SN £C fX^azrea® ass^ r-cwLaStea 
his esiasLattoa with ROWTON. The JEense af tevsLanc-a of sseoetA&oa w&& 
ROWTON was retoer compl&s la that LLOWTON &>svo« Feveaied fels kirssi 
name, EaXtoessHry, or iateresto to Sc&Jocfc, aadl ale® h® iae&HKtod Bstejoei 
to reveal certoto oatoa«toLo tocto to r^toaa s^ee&^e LEB£4s3^aaalB*

The examtaar was fiaeefiaded to Se&jset aa as> easee&tta ef ROWFOW 
ef B&liaa estoaettoa.
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PROCEDURE
tesjtet first tn t&te ?kf» feifrt; fe&jElmli? ss Sias grots^©' I &«Ss8

Ib islft ssllcnatica srslMlceatei^ w!£fe SO’J TO?'C £» ■c^slS. fes v,~bsisn 
way of Ufa, were at vSjrtsuMte eltft &&•? ceefe ?ja tfes W
four kuswa that Utis ’M’.b teiag 4iesitae<s^, SaJst®ss<5 sX®<& ^ecttJesS t® ®s^g 
warku-g £or ROW TON. i

1
E'.'isasxMdly, ew a specific naSsSter ts£ fesrt jcs-tete, ©e?

rctaae fosretefttei, to W && "“toe* cMStetteato~~v.'fewte3’ {te} •<«?,£ iis^sfesay-
iag RO'S TON to E istaili.gs'sss wteeKter (i.s? EOTTOS,"
foUcwtE.® wkSo he hrssak eif c <?tvSS4-.t si-lfe Usa&w 4>'S
c ire sub a tans ©9 RO MOT ON L&SSi-erS toai »te totssc eesosj»'>&a «•»»-£** k»»'c« 
iAk« uK&a oac on&wsfA a® mere tfees *. ciy-stficettos o4 SKteyset4® r®l.^Jse«M.p 
witb LOJ7M E The ®xa?.tnUs®p «as opii^isUa ate«i t&s
poecibility cl getwij a valid tost tis^s Ctese elTC-s^iKakSaseSf tefi tw&sfr? 
talkie.j with Safejerei. lot: a. ii.me is ^aa pasashi* to £rps&lss wfeaf .'
coasicsr* & reaa&sa&te e^ssi teetelc&ily a^«er^toi-i« CA-^rertsg 
lavnl*«is«bk with a&y t&t^Ulgcaca c^r^leei. . ,

Th# above preee^sL?© rafgtet te vlesaK&ag utet-e ase-arstSeip if it ia 
meats oeed osxs as vine md <sflh 5.0'ffTO^' SsSf tte isssslis^ir
hte almost a® tlxac together vtttest $etbj«el feeiag y^s&esi-. sag is vsaa »k 
poaatbic for item ta «euverse is aay gS^s1 6Saa w^sffitsS
iassAgW^ Steia .;

Sohject testa ee cc&Escttsas co-wsiiS^ss^ is B0^7?Q^
aay geveremest er i-axalilgssca eervU-fu H& ta es? tins
ISEN E*» ttet he ^rtohse t» *eaccaJ frets &OWTCft, asd te han a» 
with tte iDEH E'e which are eeeto&ry £s wtei te fessaeves to HOSTS'C^Ts 
iaSaresls. >.

?
Cosee ndag revela&oa to tbe IS334 £’t> etf ®afejc«2'a seo®eftB&ss wfe2h 

aOWTCN, th* Leese Ltealf vao, set s&as^erts^?, a tm. la
8ab)oci etatte tteS he gcuM sat really reeali idhe eaeet 8a *3&£sb to 
mighi tere reveahxs the £aet that te wsta bs£to£ te a LftXM C «• <&3 '&® 
ISEN C'c wuns e«a (ROWTON’e alls^k. Safest fefemfcsls ss^g^stoa @&£ 
te te acted Lt to v&e Uaforsto&g tte ISEN K'o e< Q.O’SFTON’s ^wvecat^s, ” 
Stejecl'e w&y at erprosdag tte tsisa of "repeartiagi ss" RO^fTcW, Tfc® 
c cam tear a©®4 Lite jyasatioa, aad S&t>£set a^psore to «2a<R3 b®®ft £a
hto ae^Btlto ansvee to taia ^toe&aa»
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NOTE ; ’ !

1. By the <snd of the isscorrtew, BOWTON a®d Subject had meds ea 
appointment tax a meeting t.nat e-am® evenls„g4 tedacatiag tbai it L> ^ajis 
unlikely that Subject will break co&tset with ItOWTOK.

Z. B «-&• really possible tex tbs OBaniiesr to <toiermi&9 ths 
extent to which Scbjest oeAleved ths story of te« i.C£N C aad the isaitea 
SGue'IRL examiner. Tte o-wm-.iivar feels that tier® were &o real flaws 
is the msi&tosAuce of this cover aad that ths ccrsr's only real weakasoo 
is its tnaerenxly shaky plausibility. Sebject appeared U> accept tW alias 
used by the examiner asd evsn made packing :vjar&tsces to Italy; whether
----- —~ —-— — -—--- —. —- — ~™. — --------•--- — __ , ——-

thought it was tes most courteous vt-ry to fease'te ths stiMatior. is sunt sssva. 
Me did r:«axe eci oral "hart'' reference® to the Injustice of ROWTON and 
the exaraiaor demanding to esc a 1G3WIRL on him whets he did cot pv«b 

k.-u.w fox ewa uho nc-W ION eae. Oa at least ewi cx'-raatoa moKtisits«rf.' 
thfStt fit all be knew Rf/isrTON migist ev®?> worsts® fn? WOFUlfcG T^tn 
reference did net soera strained, although U is conceivable that ifU parpose’ 
wsb prc.vocatli.-Di ROW TON hae told the examiaer titel .jabject rece&Uy 
hypothesised oat load that ROWTON nti^ht bo & Sevistr

3. Tbs principal mlefortuM of this Interview io prob&bly th»£ 5b&- 

ject was tr.ot tasted ca fabrication of ecKtacts with WEN D*s. This w&s 
tboughl to be th« most preteabia area of extensive deception^ it suould 
Ka cW'-tFt^&cd ^ea< taeygvas HaAf Ktalbidt^C Kmuss

fabricated ssch coateeta. sad ths* most ilkaly coatxihssttoa of BG5WIKL 
would have been merely a farther EtccamulaticD cl ecaaeptee of this sasaa 
basic vice, it might also be pointed oust shat Subject's Mreport?.agM te fe89 
has dealt almost exclusively with his owe activity, bests® hie fabsicaSie© 
has been mere an tert tail oa than a threat.

Paul I. NAPOLILLI



SECRET

Chief, VQAC&E “ t !
i 

Chief, V0 Oivleloo

Chief of Stat Um, naxlco City

AQ8£TXC/BocneatatLca

Act tea Repaired: Sea Par 2. 
Befaresce: BJ3S-5614, 12 October 1967.

1. Eatnraed herewith te ore cigaod receipt as requested te Re fames, par 3.

2. per Par 4 of Refereace, Hallace B. R0KTC5 has stated that J.IEIEG-3 mid 
get backstoppad domeats at a cost of 1,000.00 X.&. (JSO.OO CS) plus trawl 
expense. These are ragloeal type "Passports." Saaethtag above an Identity card. 
RCHZQ8 suggests that too or three idantiflentteas be provided of such £eaaral 
tens that safest itstico uoe'd ha fairly easy. chat be seeds for each docaacnt 
era six photographs fall face sad fall profile, both left end right, alocg with 
• cos^lcte physical descrlpttoB. The subject shaeld be 4S”5O years old sod have 
a Ssxlceocr Latta appearanee.

3. Bleak Wrrlraa Passports son sal Italy at this rise becasoo of car United 
dealings with the Fcrelgs office. Go suggest yoe talk with the Hasten desk oa 
this point.

I

far Alii lerd c. CCKTIS

Attachnrnt> 
1 Receipt 8/V

Die tribat lea :
2 • C/KMCRE, v/att
2 • CAlfD, u/e att

HWff-8462

50-6-18/8
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Chief, Western Hemisphere Division
Chief of Station, JMW4VE

Chief of Station,

GO KXtlHG KCtffga 
|oc» C'jM.fifo oca 

iCU IKOSXIKG

HOCUSING ACTION

FOR BCOWS

unxex ox awioir, ny
ss«a q PBRUMEN/HRING-3?Rodolf'<Z:REYES-Cortes, CarmenMOLIXA de CARRASCO 

and/Carmejfe LOZADA de Ramirez. ^-5 ~ ,________________ j____ '
AHKM KOUIMD- ' ''*• Qfc |7 Ct.' J

Addressees' comments - (see para 5)
MEXICO CITY 3351

1. Forwarded attached are three reports dated 23/ 28 and 30 
October written by Wallace B. ROWTON on his contacts with Rodolfo 
REYES-Cortes, Carmen MOLINA de CARRASCO and Carmen LOZADA de 
t?.-. . r r.OTTC.T first r.~t th?" ‘hr?? p?r??rr ~v"
LIRING—4 to a party given by Carmen MOLINA on 27 October, passing 
himself as a wealthy Greek client of LIRING-3 who had called at 
the latter's house to pay for a painting he had ordei ed but had 
been invited by LIRING-4 to come to the party. As previously agreed 
with the Station, RCWTON directed his main attention to REYES. 
The latter has resided in Havana since 1960 when he founded the 
Cuban Ballet Folklorico. Until recently REYES has received the 
monthly salary of one thousand pesos from the Cuban government, 
and, according to LIRING-3 is well acquainted with political and 
government personalities in Cuba. As pointed out in Reference, 
ROWTON found REYES to be apolitical, a superficial sympathizer of 
the Cuban revolution and a great admirer of American choreography 
(he told ROWTON he would very much like to go to New York to see 
some of the shows there.) REYES complained about the relatively 
lew salary he is currently receiving from the Mexico City Belles 
Artes for organizing a Cuban Ballet Folklorico show to be held 
in Mexico City next December. He readily agreed to ROWTON’s offer

Attachments:
1 photo
3 contact reports

MICROFILMED 

NOV 2 41967

(CONTINUED)

<

Distribution:08ji)- CWHD, w/l cy ea att
1 - JMWAVE, w/l cy ea att

; 1 , 

eozjran; m 
CK43-43Mt

aostffQMin omta snra mo kuua 
HMMA-33442
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to be his patron (to "help bin out financially") if this coul d be do 
on a very discreet basis. He said he hoped to put on anothei' Cuban 
show in Chile, before returning to his family in Havana.' LIFEAT coverage of LIRING-3's apartment for 26 October showed,•incident­
ally, that REYES maintains close enough relations with Silvid 

Lee Harvey OSWALD fame) to be invited by her to her 
lunch.

DCRAN (of 
bouse for

le

Carmen MOLINA de CARRASCO is the leftist wife'of al 
local neurosurgeon, Juan CARRASCO with whom she spent 

some yea' s in Cuba. Both are Mexican citizens. According to what 
she previously told LIRING-3, Carmen MOLINA helped gather some of 
the information used to defend both Victor RICO-Galan and the 
ROSENBERGS. With the help of Alicia ECHEVERRIA and the latter's 
uncle (who is the current Mexican Minister of Interior) Carmen 
obtained a prominent position on the Mexican Olympic Committee 
in the publication department. She is a close friend of Carmen 
LOZADA who is planning to divorce her husband, Enrique RAMIREZ, a 
rabid pro-CASTRO Mexican chemical engineer who is still in Cuba. 
Carmen LOZADA's father, Armenegildo LOZADA, a noted Mexican ; 
physician is married to a pro-CASTRO Cuban. According to informa­
tion made available to LIFTER-1, in early 1967 both he (Armenegildo) 
and his second and present wife are hard core Marxists.; This

2.
prominent

LIFTER-1, is a personal friend of several Cuban leaders including 
the CASTRO brothers. Husband and wife maintain a close relation­
ship with the local Cuban Ambassador, Joaquin HERNANDEZ-Armas. 
Carmen LOZADA apparently also started out as a hard line Marxist. 
Information dated 1961 from RNLABILE indicates that she was ! 
active in Communist organizational work at UNAM and participated 
in Cubah led activities directed against ex-Peruvian President 
PRADO. Although she is still clearly a leftist, Carmen may not be 
quite as red now. She told ROWTON, for example, that she felt 
nothing but disgust for her fanatically pro-CASTRO husband and 
had strong resentment toward her step-mother. Per LIENVOY, July 
1961, Carmen was in contact with Teresa PROENZA when the latter 
was at the Cuban Embassy in Mexico City.

3. At a private lunch with Carmen MOLINA, 28 October, 
EOVTON explained that he was a Greek leftist (although not a KKE 
member) involved in lucrative international business. He said 
that because of the current situation in Greece, it was difficult 
for him to operate in Mexico as openly as he would like. He 
could thus use MOLINA*s help in obtaining certain types of 
information and making discreet contacts with Mexican government 
and business circles. MOLINA agreed to do what she could. She 
stated that she was not a member of any Mexican or any‘Other 
Communist organization, but merely a leftist sympathizer. She 
also stated that she currently maintains little or no contact with 
the Cuban 
REYES and 
stated he 
Embassy.

Embassy. LIONION-1, to whom a photograph of>MOLINA, 
LOZADA (copy of which is forwarded attached)jwas shown 
had never seen these three persons enter thejCuban

4. 
plans .to:

Following the developments described above, Station

a. Continue to develop REYES to the point where, per Reference, he may be recruited by ROWTON either under 
false flag as a Greek leftist or in alias as a WO^IRM j . 
member to become a reporting source in Havana. Primary.: 
motivation in REYES* case would almost certainly be 
financial. I j

i

. 53a US£ PUCVIOuS E&aftO**, SECRET -2
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b. To continue social development of MOLINA as 
access agent to Careen LOZADA (the two women are planning 
to live together) and a possible entree to the Mexican । 
Olympic Committee and foreign Olympic delegation.

c. To attempt operational development of Carmen 
LOZADA directly via ROWTON' or indirectly via LIRING-3 in 
the hope that we can play on her "disgust” for the 
fanaticism of her husband and her dislike of her mother- 
in-law to elicit information on the activities of the 
Cuban Embassy in Mexico City and its personnel, and, 
hopefully to attempt her recruitment.
5. Station would welcome addressees’ consents on the 

above. Headquarters attention is attracted to HOWTON’s report 
of 30 October which quotes REYES' statements to the effect that 
soae members of the Mexican colony in Havana believe that 
LIRING-3 may be working for WOFIRM (or for the CASTRO government.)

for Villard C. CURTIS



14-00000

28 Cctober,1967

Subject: aallace z>. Rowton Contact with Rodolfo Reyes Cortes (Sublet)

1. Rowton met Subject on the evening of 27 Cctob-sr,1967,' at a small 
party at the hone of Carsen Molina de Carrasco, Cal^e Amsterdam 252/6. 
The only other persons at the party besides/vhe son and daughter of 

Carmen Molina were Carmen Lozada and Snricue Canuias, the; latter two of 
whom had returned from Havana sone 30 days previously. All the above 

are Mexicans who have spent several yeurs in Havana and are social ac­
quaintances of L1R1EG/3 and LIRILG/4. i

2. RCiTCK crashed the party in the company of LIRUG/4 according to a 
previously agreed plan. LIRII;g/3 arrived at about 2030 alone, explaining 
that he iad had to leave URIHG/4 at home to wait for an imuortant client

ou one oi i.lttLi.G/3’s paintings that he had. re­
cently purchased. HRIRG/3 was to add t'nat LIRIHG/4 would try to persuade 
this client to accompany her to the party so that He could meet everyone, 
and have a LlkIhG/3 told Rowton he was certain that Carnet Molina
would have no hesitation in inviting Rowton to stay once he got into the 

apartnent.

3. Rowton and LIR125G/4 arrived about 2130 and fo-.nd the party in full 
swing with LIRIRG/3 and Rduardo Canudas struglling to get the phonograph 
operating ( they eventually borrowed another and played several* Cuban 
revolutionary records.). Rowton was introduced as 5r .^Harris,a Greek 

businessman and long-standing client, and felt at the end he was able 
to convince all present that he actually mas not from WCLADY (although 
nost apparently bad that impression at the outset). Rowton<managed to toss 

out a few phrases of Russian at the right tine in the direction of Carmen 
Molina to impress her ( fortunately her Russian is weaker even than Rowton 

Rowton spoke some Hnglish with as good an accent as he could manage. Garmen 
Molina volunteered to bin privately that she had a great many "progressive” 
friends in the U.S. Rowton was able to insert several comment? about the 
current political situation in Greece that was forcing him iinto a virtually 
clandestine exiestence in Mexico, as well as elsewhere. Evelryone appeared 

to sympathize with Rowtcn and ceased asking any personal questions.
. • ■ I

4. Rodolfo Reyes Cortes, apparently the guest of honor, arrived at about
2300, apologizing for being late and explaining that he had| to attend 
memorial service (un acto) for Che Guevara. He refused*!! Jff«rs of 11

puor
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i 
insisti..g on a Coca Cola. He appeared genuinely happy to meet Sowton and. 
explained in quite serious tones that he vas engaged in the training of 
a Mexican ballet group under the auspices of Bellas Arces to present a 
performance of the Folklorico Cubano in the near future. He added that 
he had been the founder of the Folklorico Cubano in the early, 60‘s in 
Havana and had a wife ( ballerina) and young daughter in.; Havana whoa he 

was anxious to return to.

5. Since Rowton felt that Rodolfo was at the moment the best target for 

assessment he invited bin to Join him in visiting the Senorial night-club 
to see the Greek dances put on by a group of Greek musicians'. Rodolfo 

accepted eagerly and they both left the party at about 0030. Rowtcn had 

perviously obtained the office telephone of Carmen Holina ( 34-60-32,ext 
38) at the office of the Glvmuic Committee where she wasi working end 

had promised to take her to lunch the following day. Sowton had also gotten 
in a few private comments ( i.e. compliments) to Carmen Lozada so that he 

could follow up at a later date if this was considered desirable. He found
Carmen Lozada in excellent spirits and at tines definitely provocative, 
despite her current marital situation ( stye had that same day notified 

her husband, Enrique Ramirez, a civil engineer working in Havana, that she 
had ■ hftTOn divorce p’*™*.^**”) _

! : 1
5. When Rowton and Rodolfo Reyes arrived at the Senorial,, they were refused 

entrance into the main room since Rodolfo was not wearing a tie and Jacxet. 
Fortunayely however, the Greek musicians, in their native costumes, were 

relaxing in a corner of the entrance lobby and Rowtcn was able to introduce
Rodolfo Reyes to them and speak enough Greek to convince: Reyes that he. 
knew them well ami was himself a Grrek. The musicians, who probably as­
sumed Rowton vas a Greek-American, did not speak enough Spanish to talk 
directly to Rodolfo. They invited Rowton and Rodolfo to return on 31 Cct 
when they expected fewer people in the audience and when: they '; could shew 
Rodolfo some of the cost popular Greek dances. ' ?

7. Rowton then invited Rodolfo Reyes to the Kinneret Restaurant for a ___ .
late supper ( no food was served at the Carmen Molina papty) and he was 

able to continue his conversation with him there. Rodolfb revealed that 
he plans to visit Chile in mid-uecember,1967, to organist a Folklorico 

Cubano group there, and then return to Havana. He said Rowton could con­
tact him daily at the Ballet Folklorico de Mexico from 1100 until about 
i3P0 arid gave the telephone as 21-04-18 or 21-16-09.' Ee ippeared ffon his 
cs.versatinn to be a n admirer of the Cuban revolution aid Castro although



'. • '3. ; : ,

at no time aid. he ezress and strong anti-s'CLADY sentiments. Ee complained, 
at one point of the meagEE compensation he received for his services at 
the Foi|dclorico in Kexicc City and said that he had just about enough money 
to live on end help support his parents ( he remarked that his family coxes 
from San Cristobal in Cuiapas). Rowten, explaining that he had brought 

a number of LiRHiG/3's paintings to help him with his living expenses as 
well as because he liked the style, stated that he had once aspired to be 
an artist but had drifted off into business and somewhat regretted this 

abandonment of art, despite his lucrative dealings in international trade. 
He took this opening to offer to help Rodolfo financially from tine to time, 
but on a very confidential basis. Rodolfo reacted spontaneously with great 
expressions of gratitude, assuring Rowton that no one would learn of Row­
ton's interest in him and his fanily. Rowtcn cade no commitment but indi­
cated Re •. sulf cor.rider FMolfo with his living expenses while
he was still in Hesico.

8. Rodolfo Reyes is obviously dedicated to his art and appeared to Howton 
to be a serionsminded kex choreographer. He showed a certain effexinite 
manner in his gestures and remarks ( speaking only in Spanish } character­
istic of many persons in his profession, 
meet again with Rowten at 2300 at the Kin 
1967, so that Rowton and he could revisit 
the Greek musicians penform.

ae accepted an invitation to 
neret Restaurant on 31 October, 
the Senorial night-club to see

A

— ■»
i

«
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23 October,1967

1. LISIKG/3 reported, to Sowton 23/10/67 that Carmen Lozada, neuro­
logist, and Canadas (fnu), chemical engineer, visited his hose evening 
21 October in. company Carmen Ceraseo. LIuIGG/3 and /4 state they knew
both Carmen Lozada and Canudas in Havana since 1961 (both are Mexicans) 

under contact 'with GOC and were surprised to learn iron,theta that they 
will not return to Cuba because of disillusionment. ■ ■

2. Carmen Lozada stated that she will divorce her husband. Enrinue 
Rauirez, a civil engineer, still in Havana and resume work in Joly-

f !
tecnico in Mexico City. j

i I

3. Canudas informed L/3 that mutual friend Rodolfo Reyes of the ballet
folklorico, nuoh to everyone’s surprise,will return to Cuba 
1IRIKG/3 promised Rowton to get in touch wita neyes to determine 
vation for return. L/> surmises that real reason may 
with family in Mexico and desire to be reunited with 
who, according L/3, is talented end very attractive.

parents who

next month, 
moti- 

be Reyes disgust 
his Cuban wife

4. Carmen Lozada informed L/3 that 
zxxxx Hernandez Armas(who frequent 
appointed to learn of her decision 
Mexico.

guest at their home)!will be dis- 

divorce her husband and retrain in

VBBowtotf
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30 October,1967

Subject: Report of LIRING/3 Suspect Affiliation with WCRIRM.

1. LIRING/3 reported, to ^owton at C9OO on 30 Gctc?er,1967, that he 
had finally ranged to have a private talk with Rodolfo! Reyes Gortes, 
his Mexican choreographer friend, on the afternoon of 27 October,1967; 
and that, in the course of conversation, Rodolfo 5eyes: had revealed 

to LIRING/3 in confidence ikxk the reason why the LIVINGS had assumed 
a rather cool attitude toward LIRING/3 over the past year. Rodolfo 

Reyes explained that the last time he was in uavana he tad heard rumors, 
among his friends in the Mexican colony, that LIRING/3 was working 
"either for «O?IRM or the Cubans". Rodolfo went on to say that the 
orxgxn ox tnxs rumor, as xar as ne could ascertain, was the fact that 
LIRING/3 had cade two trips into Havana for no known specificreason and 
at his own expense. Rodolfo Reyes, indicating that he himself did not 
believe the rumors or, at least, did not care whether they were true or 
not, commented to LIRING/3 that other members of LIRING/3’s profession 

were naturally jealous of the success of anyone of their group and were 
always quick to draw their own conclusions.

2. LIRING/3 commented to Rowton that, although this news had shaken hl.’ 
and LIRING/4 badly at the time, neither of them cared particularly what 
the LIRINGs thought of them, since their own conscience was clear; LI­
RING/3 added that it was important, however, to continue to develop ..his 
commercial activity in Chiapas ( especially since Rodolfo Reyes’ home is 
by coincidence located in San Cristobal) so that word would gradually 

filter back to the LIRINGs that he actually did have financial resources 
outside his art production. LIRING/3 continued that obviously the LIRINGs 

did not have any specific proof or they would long ago have cut off all 
contact with him as well as LIRING/4. He concluded that since the LIRINGs 
had certain suspicions, they naturally warned all his{friends and former 
contacts (including, of course, Arnol Rodriquez) to avoid close contact 

with him until their doubts could be resolved.

3. Tn reply to Rowton’s query LIRING/3 stated that Roc.olfo Reyes and Carmen 
Molina (separately) had commented to him that they were favorably impressed 
by Rowton and did not voice any suspicion of Rowton’s{bona fides (as a 
Creek leftist businessman). Carmen Molina, in fact, had gone so far as to 
show some irritation that LIRIiiG/3 had not introduced her to Rowtcn pre­
viously since she was anxious to develop some sort of lucrative business 
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dealing wito his. Careen Molina commented to LIH1LO/3 that she felt 
sure she could help Rowton in his business and political problems and 

at the same time make a little much-needed money for her own living 
expenses.

4. LLRIRG/3 continued that he had been maintaining discreet personal 

contact with Carmen Lozada over the week-end ( he consented that HHIiiG/4 

has already shown some signs of jealousy and therefore he iad to be careful 
not -to give her cause to-distrust him). LIRIUG/3 stated that Carmen Lo----------

zada bad told him that her father, a well-to-do Mexican doctor residing 
in Coyacan, had remarried thnd that her step-mother was a Cuban sicentist 

Lad Lx»ea iuauy year;, in Mexico. She added that both her father and 
step-aotber were on excellent social terns with Ambassador Hernandez Armas. 
She revealed that she nad already notified her husband, Enrique Ramirez, 
tt<t she intended to divorce him, and she expected a storm of protest both 
from him ( in Havana) and her father and step-mother, both of whom were 

“puritanic" despite their "progressive" convictions. She added that she 
expected Enrique Ramirez to rush over from Havana as soon as he received 
her letter and to appeal to her father and step-mother to save his mar­
riage. She, however, insisted to LIRIHG/3 that she had cade up her mihd 
that she would go through with the divorce. She added that for tnis reason 
she did not wish to live with her father and had decided, to stay with- 
her friend, Carmen Holina, until the divnoce papers were through and the 
store had blown over. She added that she did not particularly like being 
a house-guest in the small aprtment of Carmen Bolins, but at the moment 
she had no choice. '■ .

■-------------------------------------------------

Wallace 3. Rowton ; _____ __
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XXX RAISED FOO ®I EXA3TO
Chief, WH Division «0 BDOltt RB tfREDWft- _
Chief of Station, Tegucigalpa H OHLY QUAUHEd|0E> 

CAI *©G£ ®€X®S

FB0S Chief of Station, Mexico Cityl/\f7-—•-" ffiOOFUwaacr i
PBRUMEN/Letter received by LI RING-3 for Hailing to Rene OCHOA Funez

•cm ssjiuta - Kmata

Forwarded under separate cover is a letter and pho
received by IJRING-3 on 2 October 1967 from the mother
-fOCHOA Funez ~in~ Honduras for reaailing to her son ir/H 1- /

I r.'JuvA is a nunuuran revolutionary. i

v for 
Willard C. CURTIS

-

Attachment:
As stated above, u.s.c.^y^ jt p? f ,-y

Distribution: ~ -- -
Orig(b'f~- C/WHD w/att 1 cy, u.s.c.

— 1 - COS/Tegucigalpa w/att 1 cy, u.s.c.

(BW 1EicMtf k*msc

___ !/■ 7 1__________________________ PQ fflj?________________

i

tograph 
of Rene
avana. C f A ----- f------. -- — •

ULi 3i <•-»< $

I

-i r — — - - -
■' J

1 -7.9^301
OVBKEHM1CC TO W*TOI SVV8&vNe’*&*> 

HMMA-33278 13 O( tober 1967
cunranco 
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ir2 > Ir'lfw
E I 15?OR? CCIE MEXICO CITY 2476 IWV

u a o i c i a

IN LATE JULY MOISES (OROZCO)INITIAL/TALXS WITH LIRING-3

MERCEDES PEREIRSTaHOM LIRISG-3 KNEW IN HAVANA IS62-54

S E C R 
r 

ELECTOR,

PERUMEX 
©■ i. Ifr

LEAL WEST!

AS SPAKISH REVOI htthsaRY INVOLVED IN SUPPORT GUAT REVOLUTION) NOW

LIVING MEXICO CITYp^TRlNG-S OSiAlNED HER ADDRESS FROM ERNESTO

(CAPUAKO) DEL VECCHIO. j

2^XlRIS3-3 SPENT FOUR HOURS 13 AUG WITH PEREIRA AND 17 YEAR MG- & /ISO 

OLD ARMANEiTPEREIRA WHO CLAIMED HE RECEIVED GUERRILLA TRAINING CUBA.
/'■ F

PEREIRA STATED HER SISTER^OFlA^EREIRA CURRENTLY WORKING CZECH EMBASSY----- —-
Havana expects transfer czech embassy Mexico city in ‘near future* Jfoi »av6 r?)

PEREIRA WHO IN PROCESS BECOMING MEXICAN CITIZEN SAID SHE STILL IN

CONTACT WITH GUAT REVOLUTIONARIES AND HOPES CONTINUE SUPPORT GUAT

REVOLUTION FROM MEXICO AS "MATTER OF CONSCIENCE*. SHE FELT LIRING-3 i 

SHOULD MEET GUAT FRIENDS WHOM PLANNING INTRODUCE IN NEXT FEW DAYS. {

3. REQUEST ADDEES COMMENTS AND TRACES. STATION FILE CHECK i ’ • > i ।
PRODUCED ONLY 1962 LIFEAT INFO TO EFFECT PEREIRA (THEN LIVING MEXICO!

CITY) WAS IK CONTACT WITH

ESPINOZA (201-2528807).

SECRET

BT

NICARAGUAN COMMUNIST EDELBERTO (TORRES)

SECRE

AM.fi. FI 1
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SECHET 122C25Z CITE MEXICO CITY 3121

LIMA director isfo jmwave

PBRUMES

i

I. DURING VISIT TO CUB AS CONSULATE II OCT WHEN SHE FOUND ALL 

OFFICERS CUT, LIRING-4 WAS TaLKISG WITH CONSULATE SECRETARY 

WHEN MAS ABOUT 22 CAME IS, SAID HE WAS PERUVIAN, HAD JUST 

ARRIVED MEXICO, AND URGENTLY WASTED SPEAK WITH “SOMEONE" AS HE 

WANTED COMMUNICATE WITHOUT DELAY WITH COMPANERO IB HAVANA.

1 WHEN TOLD ALL OFFICERS OUT, PERUVIAN WAITED FOR LIRISG-4 OUT- 

' SIDE AFTER HEARING FROM SECRETARY THAT LIRING-4 PREVIOUSLY '

WOxGED IS CONSULATE. PERUVIAN EXPLAINED TO LIRING-4 THAT CCM-

PANERO IS HAVANA WAS ABOUT TO RETURN PERU AND THAT HE KOUU?

WALK INTO POLICE TRAP UNLESS WARNED AS POLICE SURVE1LLISG HIS 

HOUSE. HE SAID HE HAD BEEN DISPATCHED TO MEXICO BY CCJKPASEROS 

IN LIMA TO CONTACT CUBAN WHOSE NAME WRICES ON PAPER HE SHOWED

LIRING-4 WAS GARBLED VERSION LIRING-S’S NAME (IDES FOR LIMA).



SECRST
PAGE TWO MEXICO CITY 5121 SECRET

COMPAKEEDS IS LIMA HAD BEES ABLE COPSE UP OHLY WITH PRICE ONE ;

WAY TICKET TO MEXICO ASD PERUVIAN HOW WITHOUT A CERT AND COUNTED 

CS CUBAfi EMBASSY TO PAY HIS RETUES TRIP LIMA. PERUVIAN HINTED 

THAT ARREST CF COMPANERO SOW IS HAVANA COULD HAVE SERIOUS CON- 

SEGUEKCES IS PERU. AS HE AFRAID RETURN CUBAN EMBASSY BY HIM-: 

SELF, HE ASKED LIRISG-4 MEET HIM NEXT MORNING AT NEARBY SMALL 

CAFE SO THAT HE COULD GIVE HER WRITTEN MESSAGES HE MARRYING ' 

APPARENTLY FCR LIRIKG-9 CWi© KNOWN IS).

2. LIESBRACE TEAM WHICH COVERED AREA OF CAFE INDICATED BY 

LIRING-4 DID SOT SPOT HER NEXT MORNING, POSSIBLY BECAUSE, ACCORD 

ISr LIRUG-4- SHE ORLY SPENT FEs MINUTES INSIDE WITH PERUVIAN;. 

LATTER HAKED KER FOLS PIECES OF/aPER WHICH HE INDICATED CON­

TAINED BONA FIDES AND REQUEST FOR CUBAN HELP, WHICH HE WANTED; 

LIRING-4 TAKE TO CUBAN EMBASSY RIGHT away. LIRING-4 asked that 

PAPERS BE PLACED IX SEALED ENVELOPE WHICH SHE PROPOSED OBTAIN;
i 

Al NEARBY POST OFFICE. BY COINCIDENCE LIRING-4 SPOTTED OTHER 

URING MEMBER AT TELEGRAPH OFFICE NEAR POST OFFICE AND REFERRED i■— — -X. - • |
PERUVIAN TO HIM. PERUVIAN WAS TOLD BLUNTLY TO COME IN TO EM-!

I 
EASSY'IF WANTED ANYTHING AS HIS ATTITUDE SUSPISCIOUS. L1R1NG|>4 

LATER SAW PERUVIAN AT CUBAN EMBASSY BUT DUES NOT KNOW OUTCOME^ 

.. SECRET * . ■ j



PAGE THREE MEXICO CITY 3121 S E C R E T S£C r* — i

HIS REQUEST FOR HELP. \

3. WILL TRY HAVE LIRING-4 IDENTIFY PERUVIAN IN TALK WITH' 

CUBAN CONSULATE SECRETARY. A 2 OVE INDICATES ONCE MORE POOR 

STATE OF COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN CUBAN SiiPPnoTrn cwracocTucc i 

LATIN AMERICA AND ClEABS. CAS LIMA THROW ANY LIGHT ;

ON ABOVE? (

SECRET



Attachment A to da tod 6 Septaster 19£?

£®*2

1. SpajLel COti operatlcaa le. 1 ote Bo. t taw fteetlteed catlafactarlly 
a l th LJtalierpx arsletanea.

2. LLkXBS-JVlixSOr A 7iiE.*4JX~ tea tess. Itotalite for this sporetloa 
la llsh^of 8 There ®o e alLgSt problem at firwt ah®a tas i.? operator
reoarded'TwToud s-ja distorted tte teite. Ta* IX1A w«a tat ter lea ate taa 
quality has rrcotlj iaprowd fey f«ttitg off V.e AC lira. CCEhBCST taa eoa* to 
to* caeclcolaa that »'ssloo City d.txrB set tew a (fowl earth growsd. Coaae- 
qucaitly, greet edjssteesta seat bo tsteo vita szy «<tai'neat that eotes as earth

5- PISFEBSIt A separate report 1b Wle< prepared aa thia o-parati-ia. ?*' 
date, va *r* cot too tepry ri©i the results. They* la ra iBtarsltteat tezz 
tailch ws caaaat Idortify ate th* prweat wlt-^ilrr nmywest »ak«« it terd 
to felloe tehjeet free reo to rose, Eera tots lit? tell te laoltete in a 
oepanto dispa tea.

I
4. LISAXPUt ** bo* feel ttet tale operetlsa is tetewl&r to step* ee, 

thanks to th* *zp«rti»« «f Fetor J. JsS'il!?. Tsessoeh se XY?.j? tell provlfea 
e tashetovl rvpvfv* ate pfvnKaaly la aiili vara i&cr era am* m toe Treble*** 
th* details tell «ot bo rewatte hero. Tt la toe b <-s to eoy, tot so hop* to 
b« able to tew the 1? tee**** **w dofeetlw <?X~l'o oet ate replec* ttea 
teth eporetins salt® sdieasrer there la a falira'o. A ygeblaa 8ij<ht be tetexg 
to adjust each salt ea tao target 11b». ?to* tell tall.

J. Plaaa far clhfekPAg or* to aotlwt* to* CC? sf 1 TKAHM»/fag22 early 1*., 
Septaater u®ln® LI04IC3 as th* U*> SSca e* hew reliable rritoaitg os UMAFab/ 
BtC* tele* too* tell te plpte to LICB1C8 rta CC? free LItedB.

d. there *ere a fee other alaaelleaeoai A-XIO choree. Three duplicate 
tepee ted to a* aoto for the Coe, tar** towr* tap* rvoertere had to te eleaaed 
ate repaired, and om Ct-28 4000»L cos olrtnrrf *sd ropel^eda
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10 Chief of Station, Mexico City X K) HDU1KS KQU9S9 / <7

BtfO. over owcgo dess I / 

CAS JUDGt 0E£XBS ' *

Chief, WH Division ' i tBOX^M !

APBRUMEN/LIRING-3 -sz 1 ;

I
Action Required: FYI 
Reference : HMMA-3825O, 28 August 1967

Headquarters notes that on 9 August 1967 LIRING-3 I 
was in contact via LIFEAT with one Electa LNU. Given 
LIRING-3's artist background and the subject of 
conversation - the visit of Rodolfo Heisler, a Swiss 
artist, to Cuba - it is suggested that Electa LMU ‘ 
Bight be Electa ARENAL (201-173795), the Eother-in-laa 
of David ALFARO Siquieros the well-known Mexican Coasunist 
artist. 7

Andrew F. MERTCS

Distribution:
2 - COS, Hexico City

A*... *
r L 7^f3d/

aoaasBBaw
3 201-173795

mmkb jam «o nna

HETff-15790
- izy '-Vf
12 September 1967
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Chief, Western Hemisphere Division w KEknc etoaata

Chief, VR/Crxi
OCALXO

CN« 3UCX2 MDTTttt

Chief of Station, Mexico Cit
8
G FBSUKZH/The LIRIBG-3 Operation 

L_____________________________

221 «ICS3FU»

*ttc» eases: • khkmxs

Reference HJfife 32778

1. Forwarded under separate cover are six reports dated 31 July, 5, 11, 
14 ' <d 17 (two reports) Au&ist 1967 concerning the LIRING*3 Operation prepared 

_ by_ Wallace B. ROWTOH. . _ - - _ . - - - ■ "

2. The first three reports 31 July, 5 and 11 August deal with the recent 
Moises CROZCO Leal "affair" (see reference) and it’s aftermath. The 17 August

-.-Icb 1- i -L. uu L^aiarj, also deals with 
this subject. LIRING* 3' a conversation vith Her cede/^*PEREIRA (report dated • 
14 August 1967) was reported in MEXICO CITY 2476.

3. ROWTON's report dated 17 August 1967 is of sose interest. .

A. The departure of the secretary LIEIH>*4 previously filled Ln 
for reopens the possibility that LIRING*4 coy, again, work at LIRING. 
LIRIBG*4, in fact, recently received a necklace from this secretary 
(a rather unespected gift at this juncture).

B. The report indicates that LIRING personnel have doubts about 
some of L1X180*3'a activities (this is not too surprising).

for Willard C. CORTIS

Attachmentt
Reports a/a pars 1 UHDER SEPARATE COVER

Distribution • 
CAfflD w/att USC 
C/WH/COG w/o att 
FILES

MMTOI SW9QL MO *500

HMM-32850

OMsreeroi

SECRET
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28 August 1967
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from Horas as oririnallv planned. 7.11710/3 oc'-nnted that this right be 
the xuch-hoped-for chance for 17'-:'ll-/'-'- t° res'-.-e work iri 7,-7P.ZH'/~*s of­
fice. Howtcn asked 1/3 to encouz-are 7/■> to scc-ept the offer if it should 
be made. He aided that the last tine he talkci .ith 1/4.she appeared a 
little reluctant to pet involved agair., explaining that Ishe commented 
when discussing the shortare of funis (2-3,CC< iollars) 'that she was glad 
that she wasn’t still working and '■.".-.ce not subject to any investigation'. 
1/3 orc-nisod to out pressure on 7/4 i c accent the Job. 3e noted '-'fth sa- “ t
tifacticn that 1/- had recently received a neseare from ’.Araceli iepero ,

> that she he’ c gift z -.eelace'.- for bar. 1/3 acted that 1/4 has nor rushed
over- a,e yet io nick up she gift, but feels it better to jwait until lati 
has departed in the hope that traceli night talk -one fr'eelv at that tire. ‘ •

; • 2. 117.17'7/3 aalso rep-.rtei that _ co men ted in the! course c-f ccn-
. ■' versation that his colleagues did net believe that Hicc palan had broekn

down and talked to the 7-7o:cican police, despite the lettep- (furnished by 
1/3' to the contrary. 1/3 suggested that they check out |the letter with 

! Zler.a C-arro, since he understood that she was the one •-•hb hand-carried
i it to ths C-ooerr.ociSn. 1/3 commented-with sone bitterness to that
I it seems that evary time b.e tries..tohelp .tbe-revolutiorJ by pass cn bits
| of information ( Julian lopes case in particul---r) it turns out prejudicial'
j to Lis in the eyes of the superiors cf . At this! ! smiled
i * and -asked 1/3 to-have patience and try to understand their point of view. 
; lie reiterated that they had doubts but felt sure it would, be straightened

. out eventually. j -
- . 3« At the end of he meeting 1/3 . rer.i-ei iiowter. that he would try his

best to 'lie low” during Ilpvtcr.• r, abrer.ee. He a;.r-:ea •.■••ith nowton that

------------------------------------------------- . • j . i . - .
-- I ’ 4I i‘5, 8.
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.f ths lir-'l'l ir^erooptc for f~? period 2-14, Agcct ,1977, 
rr.ecicr. cf the f*H :.lng pci:.Is ;rc vi c .cly rc-p. :rted to

(a) for.r.ereial (ijvir.' activities of llf.chO/2.’ 3.114-21(7.2) con- 

fir-s that erita f.u-daluge Vss;u-, the friend of hergio 
"al-dez, was w .rkir.g cr. the license (as £- - August) fc-r the — 

i-xrcrtstlon of the- plastic flcuars fren Guataxala for 1/3. 
3he states that she is Ztir.r to court •..’it?.' the petition "right

T„ ’.■— v:. ,-.utusi, rergio is.ic.ez tells
1/3 that he and Aler'cnira (’.'rbir.a Torres} '-.ill rake up their . ■ 
legal and personal agreements the fcllcuir.g week ( with regard 
to "Cclcrlux",the glass factory located sz Zlaza hirlvaille). 
They expected to assemble the samples (for Venezuela) the fol­
lowing day.

(b) LTR7Z3/3 conversations with his Honduran friend, nene Cchoa, 
in Havana. 3.11-41 (7.7) reveals that Cchoa is anxirus to talk 
seriously with 1/3 and ■.••ants to get to h.exico vity soonest. He 
states that the only prtblex is the visa and promises to send 
1/3 d^ta so that 1/3 car.  to expedite a i’ezlcari visa.cttor.pt

(c) 111113/4*3 social contacts with the 1IHZ13 personnel, '-ith re­
gard to l/-’s .general feeling toaer’ the 1TRZHG establishment, 
1/3 tells R0J3.S (of the Cu’trual office) that. 1/4 visits 1IRT53 

"only occasionally”, and adds that "there people were very.. hard - 
to get along ■-ith and she no longer has anything to do there.. 
Cnly goes by once in a while to say hello."

(d) II"-.lt/j»s eor.tscts with. Zrnestc lepuano during the week of 

7 August, although the substance cf the ccrversaticns with him 
■is not corTirhed.' mg'-'-'*(5.0) in :.ic-*te3 thj.t 3ergio Valdes as­
sisted 1/3 in his attempts to locate Capuaho and make the first 
appointnent. . - ■ I j

(e) I.i?m'?/3*s costact with CSscr fegeii fcr.teea and sre. Herceded 

Pereira on if end 13 Arnot,1?C7. ;
I '

iha review likewise repeals that the following iiiiforaation not pre­
viously kno.-n by Rowtcn or passed to hir by. LTf.irtl/J:’.'



at

at”



Lubg'aot: HLTLd/3 Kiating with 'Lereedcu Pereira. I

1. Az his ne-.-ting with Er.*tcr. at -?tCC on ft August,'’7,1-7, 
reported that he-hcc leamei frcn Lrnesto Capuano that sra 
Jarcias, nas —parucn re—ovums.-ary friend, was Izvanr at 
Par. Antonio 4, i*. apartrrar.t u. ' Az icrding to L/3, biz in f
Pereira '..•as revived by a cc-n.ent node :c Lin by hcises Cror.co Leal | 

on 3* duly,'!?:?, zz the effect that heresies Pereira was dn_.Eexic.o,l.i__
- J

2. LLLZ2’3/3 continued that upon learning her address ha called on era. 
Pereira unannounced at 1C-33 on ..upusk uith 1x21*13/4 and forbunscely 
fcund-her in with her 17-yeer-old son, Amanda. Lie found the apartneht 
al cost conpletely unfurnished, except for a table and several chairs 

e_«. a urn—tun ci near con furniture. Accord_ng to L/3, Ira’. Pereira 
explained that she and her-son had Just returned to L.-uco and were 
orjar.isinp their ’household on their ver- Lirited resources. She eii^d 
that her son had found work in a factoi'y and that she hcped to locete 
a tOb- as soon as her Mexican imimant papers cane through.

3. She and her son -selected _I.c_.'7/3 and f- after so mny years, hut 
cis. Pereira omfessed later in the ccnvamaticn that she uu.s exp-ectinr 
1/3 to visit her since she had alrean;- received nori freu Zrnesto lapu- 
aac. lhe then recounted to L/3 and Af- the vicissitudes and turncil of 
her life since she had last seen then in ."'-varaida *7£41. dike stated 

that her very confused cdIareaship smtus had continued to plague her 
in lav-ana and ,when she finally decided to leave ir. crier to settle the 
inheritance left by her/l'tlilt*‘husband In dpain, she' had great diffi­
cult;-* in leaving Cuba. Ins em laired that nan;-- obstacles were put in her • 
way, despite all the work she had done for the revolution, and she -ran 
forced co leave in effect e-3 a ’’rusaxiba”. She said that her robber and ’ ~ . i
sister, dofia, we*e still -in Invars, and aided that her sister is stall 
working at the Czech nubass-..Ik? aim staled parenthetically that her 
sister, lofia, was hoping to be transferred to-the Czech elsbassy in Xe- *^ 
xico City in the near future, where nkc bad worked pr^cr to Going to La- ; 
vana. | ,[ i

• { t %
A. Sra. Pereira stated that hke was greatly disillusioned with the Cubaqs 
and felt that, the Triccntiner.tal had done core harr. than good by trunpe- 
tir.g its. ic-tcnticu of helping all Latin .'--.e'ricar. revolutions. She cos- •. 

sented that the situaton ir. uu.’teial i, which she had recently visited 
as a tourist with Spanish-ferments, vac very bod for, t_L revolutionaries. 
She explained that het only were there nany factions in the novexent -



was closely watched and cculd he a ccntsct that night ccncoivablgu conpro- 
cise L/3 in his future travels to Guaterals. She stated that she herself 

was bein=; extremely cautious because of her pact history in Guatemala as " 
well as Havana, and. had even gene tc the length of prying a considerable 
sun to have her file removed fren GoberaaciGn, so that there would not be 
a trace of her travels to Cuba and Gu=t-=nala. She explained that after 
leaving Havana, she and her son went to Spain and sanaged to collect a 
snail inheritance C about 7,COO pesos in value} and at the (same time took 

out Spanish papners and was issued a Spanish passport, as a refugee. LI- 
RHG/3 explained to Howtcn that sra. Pereira bad been born ;in Spain, but 
-coved to Xexico many years ago, narriei a Guatemalan doctor, accompanied 
his to Guatemala •.-.here he worked under the Lrhens regime, sought refuge 
in lexico with him after the overthrow of the government. After her hus­
band ( either legal or comr.on-law) died she left for Hr.van^t is 1?52,as 

L/3 recalls, with her son,Armando, who had been born in Guatemala City 
about *950. 1/3 continued that she became closely connected! with the Gua- 
t malar, revolutionaries in Havana and represented Guatemala! at the Pri- 
continental. 1/3 stated that sra. Pereira is : well educated woman of abou
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nctr.irr or ms person ai.a 30 r-s-lu-.-u v.^e .« .-I- 1ull... 1-

rozcc continued that be c:rl^ net let 1/3 know -.here he wes at the rcrcr.t 
but would jet in tcuoh with bin in a short tins, -.- soon an the he=t was 
off, through his nether, Accorddr.r to 1/3, Crcrr-c’z n:-/r.er’& hcce has beer 

searched several tires, sir.se Crozco’s release or. ~ . spust

up. ■.£ wan” to 

irytning,we under-

2. UlZHf/3 then explained that alter he learned of Crczcc’s erre.t end 
release ( ttroaph hrnestc dapoanc) he felt it -r_c-£.t that he ecxxnicate 

with Crozes to determine •.•.’hat Greece had revelled to the Mexican police 
and how he wrs treated. He therefore sent a teltprar. to Ztozz.z addressed

■ to Crczco’e notesr at her hone address ' tail-;- Tennis fl",Cel.Country Cl’-t
i

| on £ August, s inp ply ashinp Crozco in double talk to set in touch with hi:.
I ■.‘hen nothir.r happened, L/3 oor.tir.ued, he sent liHLi.G/4 around to Crozco’s

i nother’s hone about ICJO on 9 August with a short note;, the tent of .h.';h
is as follows: . , _

Valentin:

'«e have learned of late about your nisi 
give you the help we can, since, apart iron ev«

-i* stand the. h..san problems (invlcved). ....

ue want to see you to find out what we 
but we’ll leave it to your discretion as to the 

I enclose sene, money, which «e knew is

but we hope that it will be cf some use. to you. 
’ Cordial greetings'' frex ell.

3« 1/3 stated that he’enclosed 200 pesos in the note,
* 1 nrw»

'can do for yea, 
contact..

joaly a snail th 
<

?

and that the , nve-





Cercio 7nldez fest =cr.-.Lr.r that Allert a of .Cic-zpre _ |as. takizn——

plane tc Havana that ofternccn. l/j stated that took thia opportunity 

write a hasty note to Arnc-1 Sniris"-*-" ezplair.inp recent d.veloynents in 
l.oisSs Crozeo Leal affair and asking .-.rr.cl tc expedite new contact fcr 

1/3 with FAR either in Havana ©- Laatezola City. 1/3 explained to Loa- 
ten that in order put heat or. Arr.:! and 7.AH he wrote that if he not in- 
.vited -to--.a-V.ana witi.ir.- next two-.veeks hs-Krli-€7rfi3iit"e’lyybe~ ir. Guctenala 

City staying at hotel 71c rid a frtn 2'-2- August and that’ new FAR liaison 
should identify hinself as "Jcse Lois’*. He added that Arpol should cable 
his using code "La seLicina est& e:. r.al estadc” in event’F.AR wished hiz 

keep out of Crcrco affair. ;

2. L/3 stated that feriio Laldez t-erscnall- asked Alberto loningo de­
liver sealed envelc-re eentaizizr thin Letter tc -mol •‘odriruez. Valdez 
feels that lcnir.ro will net real letter, although it nnKtHinszm zer.ticr.s 
hiz as t-ersen who (ur-'-rittir-rly' tri sir al It referred Crczco tc lizixzxxxzi 
LIRIKG/3/ j

3. L/3 elno reported that he stoke with Truesto Capsazo by phone and? •
has appoir.tnant to neat './ifo kin at fLCf on 7/S/57. Capoano cautioned 
L/3/od’pSrte-h£.t*te"mtid nSr’S ty Live acne indication'of natupe o 

business. 1/3 stated it ccnremei “ihr zadinoir.e" and it' was then th 
±z Carounc mve hir a-zeintzent. I

*4 
<\l
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Subject: b'allace B. Borton Heeting -iih l".'LG/3. j

)
1. Lorton met with ~~?J.'.'"/3 st "l/CO or; 31 July,19^7, &t the ss

i .- - 
L/3 reported st tree that he had zev'ei hit family into the safehculse 
and that L/h and their oh'-Id were cut at th-;- zczynt sc that he and{ Bowton 

could talk privately. Be explained that things were zevizg very rapidly 
and that I'ios's Crozco leal was in- fact staying at his a-part.meat (Tacjtba- 

ya) in preparation Tor the trap tn ay ’--ere to ta.<e to S’apaonula. ..e stated 
that he had net with Crozco as planned at 22C2 on 2? July and,after a 
lengthy talk, Crozco had asked to be put up in. 1/3’s apartment for the 
night, sir.ee it was late and it would be better in vie-- of thfe trip that 
they planned to take together. 1/3 commented that Crozes appeared quite 

nrevous and was particularly concerned sheet answering the door in the 
evens seneone mocked -.■.•hide 1/3 was away. It *as agreed that he wo-Id
answer the door cnly in the event that there were three knocks, indicating 
that the person was 112ILG/3 himself. Accordirr to L/3 Crozco stated that 
he had at all costs to net to Tapachula within the next two or three days 
to neet JAR contacts that were expecting him there. Ee expressed fear of 
traveling by plane or even train and welccsei the suggestion of 1/3 that 
the latter’s friend Raul Moreno drive himarc L/3 to Tapachula:in Moreno’s *
car. 1/3 consented to Howton that he was crazed at the knowledge Crozco
had concerning him and his activities, including the dates ofihis (1/3’s) ।

trips to Guatemala and Cuba. ;
i

2. Rowton then realizing that L/3 had probably walked into a dangerous 

trap,, queried him very carefully concerning the origin of his contact with 
Crozco. Lorton explained that he was certain that 1/3’s story {of the trip 

to Capachula and the meeting with the Guatemalan woman there vjasuntrue andi 
that he assumed that L/3 had a good reason for distertin- the truth. How- ■ 
ton continued that he had cone tothe conclusion that L/3 had lad a domestic 
crisis again and had decided to disappear for a few days and Ead told his 

wife that he had to go out of town cn business for Rowtcn. He was therefore 
forceito lie to .Rowton also for fear that Horta night disclcse the truth'' 
to !/■*• Rowton stressed that it was essential that he know the true; facts ; 
ssurround-ing the first contact with Grozco, sir.ee, as 1/3 would see; later, ■ 
it night be a natter of life and death, fcr biz.
3* LTRILG/3 then confessed that he had.not- actually made the 

for t.he reason Rowton supposed. The rxr.l reason he explained 

Crozco contacted him he saw Gergio Valdez shortly thereafter 
ter to his amazement commented:" I have been contacted. Have

trip hr;. not j 
wjas thkt when" 
ajnd thk lat-

you bepn

-. i • • ■. ■ -
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I ' 
contacted also?" According to L/3, he asked Valdez how it was possible
that be knew of any new contact that he had, and Valdaz replied:”I*n in 

this thing also.” LIXLLG/3 continued that this .-.catement of Valdez so 
surprised and disturbed bin and he decided to investirate to what excant 
Valdez was i/.vbided in the whole affair of the Guatemalans. In the absence

— of- r.cwtcn -he had~no—rescurce’s^d"ther "th^”Lls_own “frrenui’tyT He- debited to 
' disappear so that he could investigate more securely and he informed L/4 

that he h;f to make a trip to Ghiapas. ~e then telephoned Valdez several 
tines, disguising his voice, and pretending to be "Valentin’’ ir| the hope 

of- eliciting some -sign of recognition -from Valdez. L/3 continued that this, 
however, did net work and he failed to prove an;.’ connection between Valdez 
end Crozco. L/3 errplair-ed then that he did not want to reveal this to Low- 

ton, first because he •was afraid that Sowten would consider him stupid or

. ...........- ----- ------ . -------------- ----■ . -C 
added that he hoped Lcu’ton could understand the terrible pressure he was ; 
living under from, all sides,-with people c-ntactir.r him, surveillinr his : 
movements, controlir.g bin. In fact he felt trapped by unknown force ■. He 
stated that for instance he was certain thit he entrance of Sergio Valdez . 
and Rail Xoreno on the scene was not coincidental but was part of sene 

larger picture that he could not understand. He added that this tire me 
was determined to find out how Valdez aas linked with Crozco.

4. lewten then asked L/3 what he knew about Crozco. 1/3. replied that he 
knew only what Crozco himself had revealed to hit, viz.,that his mother 
was living in Mexico City, that his father had hain: never been progressive 
and had in fast been arrested by the government (presumably Arbenz) but
had not been harmed since he had been so"honest,f and his reputation was
above reproach. Orozco also informed L/3 that he had been to Cuba several i1 I
tines and recently was in touch with Montes in Guatemala and up to recent-i 

ly had been doing propaganda work for the LA3.

5. Rowtcn then stated that he had been doing his best to collect as much 
information on Crozco as possible and that he was far from‘happy with what | 

----- he had managed to uncover to date. He explained that he had verified the |
address given to him by L/3 ( Calle Tenis 33/5) but discovered that it was ■ 
the home of Crozeo's mother and that Crozco was not actually residing j 
there. He added that he had also learned that Orozco’s father was procab- / 

ly unstable dentally and that his brother worked in Folitica,and this n±g ) 
might account for. Valdez’ connection wtih Lin (Valdez* working for Rafaga) 
Eowton then stated that he had a report that he had not aslyet been able



3

to check cut to the effect that Crozcc bad. been in Guatemala in I'.ay

sorter! " lovton agreed that_this_2xixht_i:je._t.he . case- and--added—that—tb-ia'~~

would explair, why he wanted to hide out in L/3*s apartment'. L/3 then ag­
reed that this prcbably was the case and explained again:" Rut' then it’s
very dangerous for hiz me to be sheltering biz!" Lawton agreed but urged ; 
L/3 to keep call: and exploit the opportunity to Learn from. Orosco the f 
true facts of his present relationship to ~AR and how be cane to use L/3 
unwittingly as a refuge. L/3 asked Rowtcn how he could confront Orozco : 

with his suspicions and get bin to reveal what x'.owf.n wanted to know. Low- 
ton then suggested that L/3 drop casually the nane of Ernesto Conn =><-<-. •
sayxng anat me had to see this lawyer the next day on sore business. Low- j 
ton explained that he thought this would force Grozco to talk since he j 
would naturally be fearful of L/3’s revealing his wherabo ;ts to .Capcazo. i 
L/3 replied shat he would willingly do this but unfortunately he did rot | 

know Capoano. He suiivnly thought, however, of a ruse that might work. He j 
could get in touch izzediately with Jacobo Rodriguez Ladilla, who would 
certainly know of 0apoazo, and ret as much information on ’’--aponano from i- 
Jacobo before springing the naze on Orozco. Lewton agreed and stressed that 
it was essential that 1/3 get as much of the true story from Orozco that 

night as possible. He urged L/3 to pose as a friend and offer to put -up- I
Orozco in sene other safe place, explaining that his continued presence'"' 
would jeopardize his own position vis-a-vis the FAR. r

6. Luring the zeeting 1/3 positiviely identified the photograph (xassp-or-t) 
that Rowton showed him of Hoists Orozco leal. L/3 consented: that Orozco | 

now was wearing glasses and a iroastache and had shaved his head, giving 
himself the appearnace of a person of at least years of age (his true !- 
age is 371accoriing tc- his own statement). L/3 recalled that Crozco in- i 

forced hia in passing that Leonardo Castillo of FAR had been killed in 
action-recently.-- ■ '---------------- ' <

?. In view of ohe urgency of the developemtr.s Rowton arranged another i
meeting with L/3 that sane evening ( 31 July) at midnight at Sanborns | 

Reforma. x-j ।
, I

Wallace 2 Rowton i
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AFTERSOOS 25 AUGUST 67 LIREBBt

HELD ON 23 AUGUST TO DISCUS

proved TO BE OF

VESTIGATICN KaD

OROECO LEAL WHO

PORTED THAT MEETING

ARLOS JURADO CATE AND

LITTLE IMPORTANCE!

TO BE MADE BUT HE HAS NOT BEES A BL

OTHER ITEMS

SAID as im­*£UANO

OCftTE MOISES

PRIME WITNESS. IN MEANTIME, CAPUANO W L CONTACT

1

CARLOS NAVARRETE TC REVIEW HOW JlRADO ORIGINALLY MADE CONT

2. PER SUGGESTION REF A THAT STATION SHOULD NOT FEED INFO

TO LIREBEL-2 IM ORDER PROTECT JWaDO, L REBEL-2 TOLD ONLY THAT

CASE SOUNDS INTERESTING AND STATION WOlLD LIKE BE KEPT ADVISED 

CF DEVELOPMENTS. STATION ESPECIALLY INTERESTED IN GUATEMALAN

COMMUNIST EXILE INVESTIGATIVE TECHNIQUES AMD CAPABILITIES

SECRET
SEGREi



■ ' ------!----------------------- crre DIRECTC* * *
to r PRIORITY MEXICO CITY INFO GUATEMALA CITY 2 S -|

KAPOK 
nrr?. irrvrrn /■'T'nv o=;ca frv 37717i <- -‘~-

HEADQUARTERS WOULD PREFER SIMPLY HAVE LIREBEL-2 CONTINUE
REPORTING ALL INFO RECEIVED RE LIRING-3 RATHER THAN TRY FEEDING
INFO DESIGNED PROTECT LIRING-3. THIS DISCUSSED WITH ROWTON WHO 
IN AGREEMENT.

END OF MESSAGE
'i

WH COMMENT: Ref advises info given LIREBEL-2 by Ernesto CAPUANO
de Vecchio, Guatemalan Communist exile in Mexico, 
concerning suspicions of LIRING-3. Station iting ; :
until results meeting Guat Commie exiles concerning
LIRING-3 
info via

a /JACOB D. ESTERLINE
AC/WHD

uuauxo oral

prior considering possibility carefully feed 
LIREBEL-2 designed protect LIRING-3.

REPRODUCTION BY OTHER THAN THE ISSUING OFFICE IS PROHIBITED.
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ArltKKOON 22 AUG 67 LIREBEL-2 REPORTED FOLLOWING STOP

IE RECEIVED FRO* ERNESTO CAPUANO DEL VECCHIO ON 19 AUG

(JURADO)

DELRAR HAS ATTEMPTED SAKE CONTACT IS MEXICO WITH TOP LEADERS FjERZAS

FOR PAST SEVERAL MONTHS, MEXICAN PAINTER CARLOS

RID COPY

f<L£,cC, e-slp-, <dc<

APOK

AR*A9AS REBELDES (FAR) TO OFFER SALE OF MEDICINE AND A.RK S,

FIRST “ADE CONTACT WITH CARLOS havaPSETE (KNOWN TO ADDRESSEES) AND

EXPLAINED HE HAS GREEK FRIEND WHO SELLS ART’S ALL OVER WORLD. GR-Er 

®ECA“E INTERESTED IN SELLING AR“S TO FAR AND ASKED JURADO TO MAKE 

NECESSARY. CONTACTS. NAVA9RETE FOUND JURADO TOO EAGER AND TOO 

INSISTENT ON MAKING CONTACT VITH FAR ARD. IMMEDIATELY BEGAN; TO SUSPECT 

Hl* AS CIA OR “EXICAN SECURITY SERVICE PROVOCATION. HAVARRETE

DID NOT HELP HIM AND JURADO SOMEHOW MADE CONTACT VITH MOISES (OROZCO) 
LEAL. CAPUANO DOES NOT KNOW VHAT RELATIONSHIP OROZCO HAD V^TH

JURADO EXCEPT THAT LATTER OFFERED HIM ARMS, MEDICINE AND MONEY (300 

DOLLARS' THE LATTER OF WHICH OROZCO DID NOT ACCEPT RECENTLY, —— 

JURADO CALLED CAPUANO AND ASKED TO MEET WITH HIM. SHOWED. C^PUA*O
i

LETTER WRITTEN BY OROZCO WHICH CLEARLY INDICATED OROZCO VA& TRAITOR
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PAGE 2 MEXICO CITY 2564 SECRET

70 ’CAUSE- CSEt’T ADDRESSEE" VI HM*A 32'' • A*‘D 32E2'7 .. AFTER '^EaX’N 

SECURITY’PROVOCATION RASED ON FOLLOWING FCI’iTSs

A. JURADO TOO EAGER AMD INSISTENT OK CONTACTING FAR

LEADERS. . ___________ __________________________________ __ .. _7\_

—— B. JURADO, WHO SUPPOSEDLY IN ARMS 9'JSINESS TO *AKE '

“■•"KEY, OFFERED OROZCO MONEY FOP FAR (3C2 DOLLARS). ACTUAL

rr, - a jcuttn »uuu. nnM oumh ur/Lfi. >

C. JURADO WANTED TO MAKE FAR LEADERS AWARE OF CROZCO* S 

TRAITOROUS ACT AND ARMS SELLERS USUALLY TAKE NO INTEREST I?I 

INTERNAL PROBLEMS OF GUERRILLA GROUPS THEY SELL TO.

D. CAPUANO DOES NOT BELIEVE "GREEK" EXISTS AND JURADO / 

USED THIS AS "COVER" TO PENETRATE FAP MOVEMENT.

2. CAPUANO ASKED LIREBEL-2 TO AID IN INVESTIGATION OF 

JURADO. FIRST PHASE WILL SE TO INTERROGATE OROZCO OS HIS RELATION­

SHIP WITH JURADO TO DETERMINE HOW FAR JURADO HAS PENETRATED THE FAR 

CAPUaNO SAID THERE IS NO PLAN TO DO JURADO BODILY HARM FOR THE 

PRESENT, BUT HE WILL BE IGNORED BY GUAT EXILES.

3. LIREBEL-2 SAID THAT IN CONNECTION WITH JURADO, A GUAT 

WHO HAS LIVED IN CUBA FOR SEVERAL YEARS RECENTLY ARRIVED MEXICO..



PAGE 5 MEXICO CITY 2554 SECRET 

WITH WIFE. THIS PERSON, ARMANDO PEREIRA, MET JU.RaDO IN CUBA NO 

DATE) AND WAS TOLD BY CUBANS THAT JURADO ACTS VERY SUSPICIOUSLY 

AMD IS NOT TO BE TRUSTED.
4. ON 23 AUG LIREBEL-2, CAPUANO, JOSE LUIS BALCARCEL AND !. 

LUIS CASTILLO RALDA WILL HOLD MEETING JO^DISCUSS GUAT COMMUNIST 

EXILE LEADERSHIP IN MEXICO AND JURADO CASE. r ~~ ~

5. IT OBVIOUS FROM ABOVE THAT CAPUANO DOES KOT HAVE FULL 

STORY JURADO’S ACTIVITIES AND HAS “ANY OF HIS "FACTS" BADLY 

MIXED UP, FOR ONE THIBO CAPUANO MADE NO MENTION OF JURADO’S TRIPS 

TO GUATEMALA WHERE HE ACTUALLY CONTACTED FAR NOR OF HIS MEETINGS 

WITH "GARCIA" IN MEXICO CITY. IF JURADO’S STATEMENTS TO WALLACE 

B. ROWTOH C/.-J BE BELIEVED, IT WAS FAR WHO ASKED HIM ABOUT POSSI­

BILITY TRANSPORT TO BORDER AREA WEAPONS PURCHASED BY FAR FROCURE- 

*ENT MECHANISM SOME OF WHICH WAS IN TEXAS. IT WAS ALSO FAR THAT 

ASKED FOR MEDICINES. DO NOT BELIEVE JURADO OFFERED FAR MONEY, ON 

CONTRARY HE REPEATEDLY ASKED FOR PAYMENT OF MEDICINE AND OTHER 

ITEMS "SOLD" FAR. EITHER CAPUANO MISUNDERSTOOD JURADO OR LATTER 

DID NOT REPORT HIS CONVERSATION WITH CAPUANO ACCURATELY TO ROWTON 

JURADO WAS INSTRUCTED TO POINT OUT TO CAPUANO HE TOOK DIM VIEW OF 

BEING USED BY OROZCO TO DTL'BLE CROSS FAR EMPHASIZING THAT, HAD HE



BAD ARMS TO GIVE OROZCO (WHICH HE DOO SOT) HE PROBABLY'WOULD HAVE 
* 

RECEIVED HIS PAYMENT IN LEAD SISCE OEO’.C.: CC*PLETE' Y BROKE.LTHUS 
I

IS OROZCO "AC-FAIR- IT WAS FINANCIAL A*O PERSONAL SECURITY ANGLES V 

OSTENSIBLY BOTHERED JURADO AS? NOT HIS INTEREST IS FAR • f 

IMNER POLITICS. HE FURTHERMORE LOANED OROZCO 322 PESOS 

AND SOY- THREE HUNDRED DOLLAPS, - — - - -----------  -------- ■ -—- ~ -

- WHATEVER HOLES ATO CO’iFUSION EXIST IN CfiPL'ANu’S STATEMENTS “ 

RE JURADO’S ACTIVITIES HE NEVERTHELESS HAS GUESSED BASIC TRUTH

IS ATPAE—UTL Ilio-.a ijitL >u flAXt Full INVESTIGATION. THAT 

JURADO MAY HAVE EXCEEDED HIS INSTRUCTIONS AND HOT REPORTED HIS . 

CONVERSATIONS WITH FAR AND CAPUANO ACCURATELY TO RCWTON MAY BE 

CAUSE OF CURRENT TROUBLE. ROWTOS SEVERAL TIMES CAUGHT HIM IN 
i ;

FABRICATIONS WITH HELP EXTENSIVE STATION MONITORING HIS ACTIVITIES 

IT HAS ALSO BEEN DIFFICULT TO PREVENT HIM FROM BEING OVERACTIVE 

IN HIS DESIRE PRODUCE VALID FAR CONTACT. STATION HAS ALREADY, TOLD 

LIREBEL-2 THAT IT HAS NO CONNECTION WITH JURADO. WILL WAIT FOR 

RESULTS FAR 23 AUG MEETING MEXICO CITY CITED ABOVE BEFORE EX­

FLOR ING POSSIBILITY CAREFULLY FEED INFO VIA LIREBEL-2 TO PROTECT 

JURADO. BELIEVE WARNING JURADO VIA LETTER SENT BY ROWTON OR s | 

OTJSR MEANS WOULD BE COUNTERPRODUCTIVE AT THIS TIME. ;
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INFO GUATEMALA CITY i =
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REF MEXICO CITY 247G (15 31815)
1. FOLIOWING EQS TRACES POSSIBLY I DEN OR RELATIVES PEREIRAS 3EF:

A. MERCEDES LLANOS DE PEREIRA, CUBAN WHO TOOK REFUGE MEXICAN 
EMBASSY IN GUATEMALA CITY AFTER FALL ARBENZ. LITT GUATEMALA 4 SEPT 1954
FOR MEXICO (ECGA—1434, 12 NOVEMBER 1954). !

B. SOFIA PEREIRA MARTIN, SISTER MERCEDES (HGGA-1434,
12 NOVEMBER 1954). 1

C. AUGUSTO PEREIRA LLANOS, SPANIARD WHO TOOK REFUGE MEXICAN
EMBASSY GUATEMALA CITY XXXX AFTER FALL ARBENZ. LEFT GUATEMALA FOR
MEXICO 4 SEPTEMBER 1954 (HGGA-1434). *

D. AMADOR PEREIRA REDONDO, SPANIARD WHO TOOK "SESS. REFUGE -
MEXICAN EMBASSY GUATEMALA CITY AFTER FALL ARBENZ. LEFT GUATEMALA KR
MEXICO 4 SEPTEMBER 1954 (HGGA-1434); DOCTOR AMADOR PEREIRA, PERSONAL

! ' «- FRIEND AND POSSIBLE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE OF EMILIO ROSENSTEIN STEM, 
POLISB-BORN COMMUNIST MEXICO AND SUSPECT SOVIET AGENT. PRACTICING 
PHYSICIAN WITH OFFICE AT CALLE MONTERREY 122-17., MAY BE I DEN' WITH

. . Buuwwwa SECRET i giow/i
j trm

BEPSQOUCnON BY OTHER THAN THE ISSUING OFFICE IS PROHIBITED!.
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. TO ^OCTOR AMAEOii PEREIRA REDONDO, SPANI SR HEPUBLICAN lh AxJUCO WHO HAS LONG ~i

BEEN ACTIVE IN CENTRAL AMERICAN REVOLUTIOXARY GROUPS AND IS MEMBER OF 
SPANISH COUNCIL FOR PEACE (KMM-15O1, 29 MARCH 1956). ;

E. A.MADA ENRIQUEZ PEREIRA, SISTER KIRKA TORRES, PGT KEMBER 
(GUATEMALA CITY 3625, 8 JANUARY 1964).

2. AT.sn PROCESSING TRACES MERCEDES AND ARMANDO PEREIRA, KILL 
ADVISE POSITIVE RESULTS.

END OF MESSAGE i
। 
I 
!

nH LIRING-3 in touch with MERCEDES and ARMANDO;PEREIRA. ■
” • I .
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REF: MEXICO CITY 2479 (IN 32323)
REGRET HAVE BEEN UNABLE COME UP WITH SUITABLE INTERIM HANDLER 

FOR LIRING-3. SUGGEST ROhTON SET UP PLAN FOR POSSIBLE CONTACT BY , 
"TRUSTED BUSINESS ASSOCIATE WHO MAY BE COMING THROUGH AREA." WILL 
DISCUSS POSSIBLE ALTERNATIVES WITH ROWTON DURING LATTER'S TDY HQS 
BEGINNING 21 AUGUST.

___ - END OF MESSAGE

WH COMMENT: ROWTON going on hone leave 18 August. Station feels 
it uost desirable keep direct contact vita LIKING-3 during ROWTON's absence.
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___ Forwarded as Atta chaser One. berewlth ,i*ar eport written

by Mellace B. ROWTOB dated 5 Angast 1967 about a letter recently.

received by LXPIHG-3 froa Rene OCROA Fsasi, the Bonduran revolutionary

photocopies of this letter. It does not look, froa ths sound of the

letter, that OCHOA’a nonle is too high.

:®S7
for Willard C. CORTIS

Attachment

t II* Copy of Letter USDZR SEPARATE COVSt

Distributiont 7 ■ '
C/WHD s/atts #1 & #11 use 
COS/Tegueigalpa v/att #11 only use 
FILES

sttMia paSBl MO 1C«S£»

DMA-32815

f-V

MTt

if Aosoat 1967 
‘ f tri# 1

nu eunn

201-798301
I trtMH ^.’.7^5
I »»i:r crl 

ttygy "'r*.S K C R E T



v------------ "nacea'ary to hove" ahead with one’s own' resources and to prove with
_‘ rde^s’L He/andesTthatrieThoped to send .details?: ^.nncFeie-^r?d co-plete—-. 

news’ but he still laboring.under difficulties known to L/3- He assures 
1/3 that he has delivered 1/3 *s last letter to Jtoird the: "conpanero1" 
(Lmol loiriguez) hut could not talk with his privately because of the 

nany visitors who had arrived that day. imo.1 s wife Huby told him that 
they had received. 1/3’s letters and had azs..ered them { l/jix told Row- 
ten that he has never received these replies fren Araul}. Ruby Rodrigues 
also inferred Cchoa that the ”organasnos corres cr.jier.tes" #ere going Yo~ 

invite L/3 to Havana. Cchoa promised 1/3 that he w-cold do whatever he 
could to expedite this trip ( hacer nuevas gesticnesj.

2. Cchoa cexplains of the “realicades cue re han too ado vivir aoni" xxX . 
but indicates that he has no intention "resign hinseaf” to bureaucracy 
commenting .that it is necessary "provccar la rupture, japrediendo a 
rasearse can las prepias uras", taking the initiative.ana now ex-recting 
anything free anyone. He aide that he has finally cut the”ties.. which 
have bouru’’hin to Cuba and although \e feels that he can do a great deal 

t
share, but it is’infir.itiely snail in ccnparison withiwhat he sust do ex 

cutside". He assures 1/3 that he is serious and that it-concerns a ” 
"planteaniento sario". j , .

i । ’■
3.Cchoa also cautions 1/3 against losing sight of th| ultimate objective 

in his commercial activity, iniicatir.g that he has discussed this as- ;
pact of L/3's plans with "a friend” who knows sor.e of; these1 questions 
tetter that 1/3. He adds that L/3’s "asuntos y acthri-jades"i interest 

hie iatr.sely, and tb-.t their situation is similar. I *• •:
I s

• ! r

i 
!
i

i 
i
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La Habana,27 de Julie de 1867

Estlssdo Ccrlicho:
Hoy hsce e«s de un nos que reclbi tu eartc.pe:* les 

cchversaclor.es tolef4nlcas* sostonldaahabr£s podldo eosprendo:* quo 

la dcr.oro en contestarte se debo,no proc 1 saaonte & opotla do nl per— 

to.slnpLCelta. de .canalo.s-fcdacuados para- talfln. f

Esta te laZenvli per la gentileia de ua coopailore da 

trabsjo cuya cp^esa va hKtff“4sa,dleho sea de peso ye no'ls cenezeo a 

ella,par lo tante es roalxsnte una casualldad quo te pueda envlar no­

de. Lasjpero oten no querla aecorer cas y he aqul estss Linacs.

Creo que entlende p-rfecter.ento tu situscl6n,pjas ’as-".

necesarlo abrlrse paso con los proplos nedlo3,deaostrar con hechos^es- 

to pueda que el principle to huela a conaoje,perc reslnente no la os 

puss precisosente la idea la he tonado do ti y shore 1c edopte ccao
t

position o sctltud ante les hoehos.Era id dosee poderto >enviar netl- 
i !

clas cencretas y acplissesta vez,p«ro justsconte tengejlss nlssas di-, 

ficultades quo tu enuueras.a pesar de la corcanla fislc».Entregu4 tu 

carta al eonpaflero no co fuo pesible hoblsr eon 41 sobre el parties- .

lar pues el cla quo fuf llcgsron nuchas visltas,antes de que 41 liega-

ra hsbl4 algo con la seflora(concretcnento ce dlje que habfan recibl- 
• । I

do tus notlclas.que tanblen, te hablsn centestado;quo to jlbsn a Inrl-tar

los organisKos oorrespondlentaa pere que olios adn Dp te'nlsn notlclas 
> I

ccncretss;despues seao te dlje llegaron las visltas y no pudo sacar

nlnguna coDclusl4n;estlno qua a estas alturas ya debes toner notteles 

posteriorsente no ho pedldo ocuparne de olio princlpalcento per lies 

de al parte^fundssentalaente^por cuestlenos de trabajo. J :

* Ahora bion,td prosete hacer nuovas gestloaes puss oa. 

estos d'as tenge un respire,aunquoi.las gentes per aqul oa oatoa dies
V • . ’

astln bastanta ocuXdos enn la. esntidad de actlvidades y io aconteel- 

clentos ospecialBonte de este| Bos,pore ya voreaos* j;



Creo quo no es necessrio quo to aclare,quo en goneral,toner*s quo 
acostuxbrarte a estofi preblemas,pues las ttn>3s'''s voces 1L psrecen 

a uue .--uj f-ciles y casco luoga no lo son ksj quo an apcriencia,es 
necessrio conpreudcr a los otros,mJxiso en osta^cesaSfuJ pace pen- 

sar cone alios;atguna vez en nueatras discusionos ate has! se^alade 

coco yo justificaba las costs sienpre con la fraso”hasta cierto

__——pun to tai. otalos-coaas eonizovitablo3',;cree quo os*a neesuna • . 

frase sin santide nojes una. casoda salida, os para mi una eenclu-
- - •* I 1

s!6n ce las realldades que ae han toaada ▼i.vlr aqulfhoy la alga r« 
-i

pittance y sun tiene sis sentide.Lo anterior,per supueste,no slg-

nxi'ica q«.e **—j q—a *«1^..*.’—« j q-C les u?;

desarrellen nomalneato,toco lo contrario,hay quo prevocar la rup­

ture, ceso?,Justasante "oprendiendo a rascarso eon las prepics nilaa", 

ookostranso con hechos y un pace ?no osparer nses de naeie“.
i •

Dif£s per fin caye en el plane del censajo,te ratifies

so so trats de ese,tu eisse le has dl oho eres lo suficientosente 

grande para eomprendor les responsebiliees quo adquleros,por lo tan- 

to huelgan los censeJos,sobretede les que se dan a'control rezote.
i

simplesente trato de inbuierte de una idea que ya jtienos.Ko pareeo 

que hay seriodad y responssbilidad on le quo haces era de esperar 

de ti,se coaplaee que nicae todo lo que inpliea per anbas partes, 

as un cazzino suxsEento peligrose.sd que lo sabes major que yo,pe- - 
! j

ro Carlos sieepro tu eres denaslado bueao y de lajbendad a la In- 

genuldad no hay a^s que un pssito,esto'slgo de lo aual tu no eres 

conselente,on estaa cdses es de vital ixpertaneiskonpronder a pro- 
t - -

fundidad osto.Sadie trabaja e lucha,busesndo aquelle on lo euel no
i i *

exista peligro,per lo nones entre nosetros,nadio le tieno alede a

los cuatro metros de' Sierra,pore el aliciento e la note no oa el 

peligro ni la Euorto,^oelnente con ose no se hacoInada,slopleKon- 
os deJar un nonbre para una Fabrica,en el meJor dl los easesjso

trato de algo muy distinto.Mo ha bias da una eosa formal .y luerati-



vo.,esto os buano a cendlciXn de que se oorprenda qua eso coabtitu- 
- - - $ • ■ - ' i-.

ye el aspect® externa de la cuesti5n,es decir la foma.pero le ixs- 
x • ■*! J

pertanto os I©’Interne el pentonldo lo esoncial;no se eenece le ea­

se per la rschada,6sta la xayeMa de las voces nos ongafia.A qu5 to-
-r ■ •' ; ’ ’■ • ' '

do este? ;bueno,on pr is or? Inger os la opinion de un anigo que'algu-

nas euestlonos las conoeo un poco ne’er quo tu,aden£o edneXlndoto 
V r - - -• ' ;

tenge necesidad do rcforlrno a'oste y en segun4a._lugar_perque-ne.ee-- 

. site de ti,de tu situaciin^db tu corp:'insl4n,porque taablin ye he
-- —I-C — --   '  —— ' •“ ~~ 1

sgetade cl capacidad ae espera y reeLnente ohostes Konontoscuon-

to connigo nisxo y contigo.no heco falta oxplicarte porque pues 

tri — —f w’ fl — * X — —— ° ff r *• —

=e interesan sobrenanera por las cuestlones apuntacas enteriorxente.

Ahora tus notlcias son funcanentales para nl,sebro tod® 

osne detallc3,qulero hacer les cosas sabiende y ooneclende le cue 

vey a hacer,tsngo prisa por haeor algo pore no por los posiblos 4 

netres de tior?a,no Icu'excluyo,pero taepoeo les busco espoclalsen- 

tc.lcr fin he resuelto lo quo ne ataba a oste gran paIs,cosprende 

qua sun puedo hacer nucho aqui,p«ro es infInitanonte poquefio c®xi- 

parade con lo quo ter.go quo hacer fbera do aqui;sabos bion quo no 

soy capaz de onberronar tantas cuartillaS sinplonento por llonsrlas 

se trata de un planteaslente serie. i '* o - ■»
. Espere quo la Clchayda C cuande so traduce del Inglis' 

j t
al ehlno suer.a cone CH o al revis)ya oste bion,e3as sen'les con- 

l !
secuoncias de ser su prople nidico{llbroterr),p«ro de toaas nano- 

ras nos alegracos ntuehe de quo ha ya pedido salir «'e lasgarrao do 

todos los OLCGes.Carliche nocesitaria quo on la prixixia! opertunidad 

bo censiguieras unes enceries (Zapates)para la Ceti,si de da cuen- 

ta.de data sollcitud no asof^na,poro ye cargo eon fl pedido,sen el 

mirero a ~ f [

espere tus netloias,saludos a Ciha y(Chichay-).
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1. MOTHER CF MOISES (OROZCO* LEAL PHONED LIRING-4 ON 14 AUGUST

ALRA MARINA ARREOLA, HER HUSBAND AND SON WERE RECENTLY DEPORTED TO

GUATEMALA 3Y MEXICAN POLICE WHERE EXECUTED ON ARRIVAL. .

JS-U^-W/VIEV OF MANNER IN WHICH REF INFO OBTAINED, DO NOT PLAN 

CHECK ABOVE V ITH.LITEMPOS. BUT TRYING OBTAIN DETAILS THEIR 

INTERROGATION OF OROZCO CONDUCTED ON BASIS STATION RECUlREMENTS

AND OROZCO BACKGROUND INFO
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I. WALLACE 3. ROUTON DEPARTING 0!i HOKE LEAVE 18 AUGUST. 
»

2. AFTER THROUGH REVIEW LIRI.XG-3 OPERATION FEEL IT KOST DESIR­

ABLE KEEP DIRECT CONTACT WITH LIRI.'!C-3 (WHO LIABLE GO CUBA AND

> POSSIBLY GUATEMALA IN NEAR FUTURE) DURING ROWTON’S ABSENCE. 
i

3 UNTIL SGSWIRL CAN BE GIVEN LIRi:/G-3 BY SPANISH SPEAKING OPERATOR
i I

I AS REQUESTED BY STATION, FEEL IT WISE NOT PUSH LIRIHG-3 TO WITTING

| LNHARP RECRUITMENT. THEREFORE BELIEVE LIRIKG-3 SHOULD BE HANDLED

: BY SPANISH SPEAKER ABLE PASS NOTIONALLY AS EUROPEAN BUSINESS FRIEND

I OF ROWTON (I.E. WITHOUT GRINGO ACCENT). ALTHOUGH KNOWLEDGE EUROPEAN

| LANGUAGE NATURALLY DESIRABLE IT NOT ESSENTIAL AS PER BOUTON LIRING-3 
?
‘ WILL iiOT QUESTION BACKGROUND HIS FRIEND OR MEET HIK IN PRESENCE OF
I ' :

| OTHER.FOREIGNER SI.'iCE MEETINGS HELD IN SAFEHOUSE. TO AVOID SECURITY

I COMPLICATIONS AT THIS JUNCTURE BELIEVE LIRING-3 WOULD BEST BE HANDLED
i i ■

f . . F03 TH3EE - F0U3 WEEK PERIOD BY TDYER FROM WAVE 03 HDQS WITH ABOVE 
u
a REQUIREMENTS. STATION WILL CONTINUE TO ASSUME COMPLETE DIRECTION

i........ THIS OPERATION.
.. +

13. ALTERNATIVE TO HANDLING 3Y TDYER WOULD EE TO PLACE T6

jfT-v 3 - • .> 4A -
(J
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PACE 2 MEXICO CITY 2479 S E CjR E T

LIPINS-3 "ON ICE” FOR PERIOD ROtlON’S^AESENCE SEEDING .HIK.OuT .OF

MEXICO CITY AS LONG AS POSSIBLE AND THUS CUTTIu'8 HIK OFF TEMPORARILY

FPOK FURTW-P rnHTarTc uttu r:io«c

MEXICAN LEFTIST FRIENDS. THERE NO GUARANTEE HOWEVER LIRISG-3 WOULD

STAY OUT OF MEXICO AND FURTHER OPERATIONAL INVOLVEMENT FOR FULL

PERIOD ROWTON’S ABSENCE,

4. PLS ADVISE PRIORITY
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